
1 

REVISED  
GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, JULY 17, 2023  

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. NPO Funding Recommended Allocation (Sherry Archibald, United Way)
b. FY22-23 NPO Funding (City Manager)

4. NEW BUSINESS
c. Industry Economic Development Update (Wayne County Development Alliance)
d. City Fiscal Policy Guidelines and Strategic Plan Finance Metrics (Assistant to the City Manager)
e. Public Art Selection Process Update (Downtown Development)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Archbishop Anthony Slater, Tehillah Church Ministries)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A.1 Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of June 20, 2023
A.2 Minutes of the Special Meeting of July 6, 2023

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Employee/Supervisor of Quarter 
C. Annual National Night Out Proclamation 
D. Goldsboro/Wayne Purple Heart Proclamation 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
E. Z-10-23 Meares Bluff Village (Residential 20 A to Residential 6 CZ) – North of US 70 on the east side of N

NC 111 (Meares Bluff Subdivision) (Planning) 
F. SU-5-23 Cemetery – T-intersection of Herbert St. and S. John St. ext. (Planning)
G. SU-8-23 Special Event Venues (POE/No ABC)– Intersection of N. William St. and W. Patetown Rd. (Planning)
H. SU-10-23 Bar (POE with ABC) – East side of N. Center St. between E. Mulberry St. and E. Walnut St. (Planning)
I. SU-11-23 Barber shop and Tattoo Parlor – North side of US 13N between Central Heights Rd. and Tommy’s

Rd. (Planning) 
J. SU-12-23 Vinegar Manufacturing (Storage of Flammable Liquids and Gases) – South side of W. Dewey St.

between N. George St. and N. US 117 BYP (Planning) 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
K. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 115: Alcoholic Beverage Permits of the City of Goldsboro’s

Code of Ordinances (Downtown Development) 
L. Contract Award for Consulting Services – Grants Management Software (Community Relations)
M. FY2023-2024 Annual Action Plan Recommendations (Community Relations)
N. Distributions and Collections Division’s Valve Truck Vendor Change (Public Works)
O. Amending Chapter 32: Boards, Commissions and Departments, of the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances

(City Clerk) 

- Moved to Old Business

- Moved to 8/7/23 Meeting

- Continued to  8/7/23 Meeting
- Continued to  8/21/23 Meeting

Continued

Continued

Moved 

Moved 



2 

 
 

P. Amending Chapter 33: Police and Fire Departments, of the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances (City Clerk)  
Q. Amending Chapter 53: Water and Sewer Systems to include the adoption of System Development Fees 

(Assistant City Manager) 
R. Departmental Monthly Reports  
 

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  
 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



United Way of Wayne County
City of Goldsboro

Non-Profit 
Organization Funding

CONNECTED WE CAN

w.s item a



Priorities identified by Goldsboro City Council 
by way of survey.  Priorities: (1)Basic Needs 
(2)Health & Wellness (3)Education (4)TRAC-
Tourism, Recreation, Arts & Culture

10 Non-Profits submit Step-One application

Non-Profit complete Step-Two application

4

Community Volunteers serving on COG NPO 
Impact Committee: Reviewing & Scoring 
Applications & Presentations.  

Volunteer Sub-committee Chairs to lead effort of 
scoring & presentations

46

4

United Way of Wayne County facilitates Non-Profit 
funding for City of Goldsboro

9



COG NPO Funding Process

As the facilitator for your funding, the UWWC created 
a process specific to the COG.  

The process followed your priorities with community 
engagement.  

UWWC created a COG 
Notice of Opportunity 

Funding. Opened 
process to all no-profits

UWWC created a two-step 
application process.  

Recruited 40+ volunteers to 
serve COG process 

Facilitated process for 
volunteers to review & 
score applications & 

presentations . 



Thank you!
2023 COG Impact COMMITTEE MEMBERS

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
ARE THE BACKBONE AND HELP KEEP

OUR COMMUNITY RUNNING 

TRACEducation Basic Need Health & Wellness



COG NPO Impact Committee Recommendations- 

Organization Am
ou

nt
 R

eq
ue

st
ed

 2
02

3

Aw
ar

de
d 

in
 2

02
2

Re
co

m
m

en
d 

20
23

Fo
cu

s 
ar

ea
: B

N
/H

W
/E

/T
RA

C
20

22
 b

y 
Pe

rc
en

t
20

23
 b

y 
Pe

rc
en

t

4Day Movement 19,500.00$ 7,398.00$     9,000.00$     BN 6.55 10
WAGES 20,000.00$ 10,148.00$  11,000.00$  BN 8.99 12.2
Boys & Girls Club 15,000.00$ 13,533.00$  9,000.00$     E 11.99 10
CSS 15,000.00$ 13,033.00$  13,500.00$  E 11.54 15
Literacy Connections 5,000.00$    9,601.00$     5,000.00$     E 8.5 11
Literacy Connections 5,000.00$    -$                   5,000.00$     E  
Arts Council 33,000.00$ 18,896.00$  6,000.00$     E, F, TRAC 16.74 6.7
Wayne Co Museum 13,750.00$ 13,783.00$  5,000.00$     E, TRAC 12.21 5.6
WISH 20,000.00$ 11,518.00$  11,500.00$  HW 10.2 12.8
WATCH 20,000.00$ 14,981.00$  15,000.00$  HW 13.27 16.7

166,250.00$    112,891.00$       90,000.00$       100 100
Available Funds 90,000
Over/Under (76,250.00)$    





Moved to Old Business

hjones
Sticky Note
Accepted set by hjones

hjones
Rectangle



Item______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

JULY 17, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT:     City Fiscal Policy Guidelines and Strategic Plan Finance Metrics. 

BACKGROUND: The City Fiscal Policy Guidelines adopted April 19, 2010, and revised 
February 15, 2012, establish General Fund (GF) available fund balance 
and Utility Fund (UF) reserve targets that enable our local government to 
fund operations and maintenance and capital requirements when revenue 
is down and costs may be up due to national, state, and/or local state of 
emergency or other City specific reasons. The City currently does not have 
a bond rating policy which enables it to be a low-risk borrower when 
undertaking projects. None of these important guidelines are in the City 
Strategic Plan. 

DISCUSSION: City staff and our Davenport financial consultants recommend the 
following revisions to the City Fiscal Policy Guidelines and Strategic 
Plan: GF “available” fund balance should be replaced with “unassigned” 
fund balance as depicted in Annual Comprehensive Financial Report with 
the target being “at least” 15%, vice 15%, to be more in line with other 
cities our size as recommended by the NC Local Government Commission 
(LGC). Utility Fund “reserves” should be replaced with “cash and 
investments” to properly qualify the necessary liquidity. Maintaining a 
“very strong” bond rating is crucial to the city’s financial stability and 
growth.  

RECOMMENDATION:  By motion, accept the Fiscal Policy changes and Strategic Plan metrics 
stated below: 

  RESERVE POLICIES 

Unreserved, Undesignated Fund Balances will mean funds that remain 
available for appropriation by the City Council after all commitments for 
future expenditures, required reserves defined by State statutes, and 
previous Council designations have been calculated. The City will define 
these remaining amounts as “available fund balances.” 

1. The City of Goldsboro will strive to maintain available unassigned fund
balances in the General Fund at a level sufficient to meet its objectives.
The City will target an available unassigned fund balance at the close of
each fiscal year equal to at least 15% of General Fund operating Budget
expenditures and transfers out; at no time shall the available unassigned
fund balance fall below 10% of General Fund operating Budget
expenditures and transfers out without Council approval.

dw.s







1 of 24 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 20, 2023 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 
214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on June 20, 2023.  

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 

Absent: Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 

Adoption of the Agenda.  
Mayor Ham requested that the resignation of Mayor Pro Tem Polack, the replacement of Mayor pro Tem, and filling 

the vacant seat be added as work session item a.  

Councilwoman Jones requested that Items V and W be moved to Items Requiring Individual Action. She also 
requested a point of privilege to share some information regarding the discussion.   

Upon motion of Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Councilman Batts, and unanimously carried, Council adopted 
the agenda as amended.  

New Business.  
Resignation of District 3 Seat and Appointment of New Mayor Pro Tem   
Mayor David Ham acknowledged the resignation letter of Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack effective June 20, 2023. 

Councilwoman Jones made a motion to accept the resignation. The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts and 
unanimously carried.    

Upon motion of Councilman Gaylor, seconded by Councilwoman Jones, and unanimously carried, Council appointed 
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews as Mayor pro Tem.  

Council discussed replacing the district 3 seat or leaving the seat vacant until elections in November. Motion was made 
by Councilman Batts to leave the seat vacant. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway. Mayor Ham, 
Councilman Broadaway, Councilman Gaylor, and Councilman Batts voted in favor of the motion. Councilwoman Matthews 
and Councilwoman Jones voted against the motion. The motion passed 4-2. 

Mayor Ham stated that the Mayor Pro Tem Oath of Office would be administered at the 7:00 p.m. Meeting. 

AFFF (Firefighting Foam) Litigation Discussion. Attorney Garry Whitaker provided handouts to Council.  He 
discussed Goldsboro’s right to join a suit against Dupont and 3M regarding Firefighting foam chemicals in the water system. 
Mr. Whitaker discussed that the chemical levels in the water system are higher than recommended by NCDEQ. He asked if 
Goldsboro wanted to join the suit against Dupont and 3M to attempt to recoup cleanup costs. Mr. Whitaker also listed some 
of the other municipalities that are already involved.  

Council discussed the suit, settlement, fee structure, and the chemicals found in Goldsboro’s water. Tim Salmon, City 
Manager, stated that we are currently adding carbon to bring it down, and determine how much carbon is needed to reduce 
the chemical levels below the threshold.  

Upon motion of Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Councilwoman Jones, and unanimously carried, Council voted 
to join the suit.   

Gary Whitaker thanked the Council and stated he would work directly with City Attorney Ron Lawrence, as he will be 
the designee on the representation.  

Item A1



2 of 24 
 

Downtown Social District.  The City of Goldsboro Department of Downtown Development, in collaboration with 
several city departments, has been researching the socio-economic impact of a Social District since the beginning of 2023. 

 
In June 2022, House Bill 211 (HB 211), Social District/Common Area Clarifications, passed both the House and 

Senate with bi-partisan support and was subsequently signed into law by the Governor on July 7, 2022. Included was a 
provision allowing local governments to create social districts in North Carolina.  

 
“A social district is a defined area in which a person may consume alcoholic beverages sold by an ABC permittee 

located within the social district. All preexisting ABC laws must be maintained and followed. A social district may include 
both indoor and outdoor areas of businesses within or contiguous to the defined area during the days and hours set by the 
local government in creating the social district. A social district may include privately owned property, including permittee 
and non-permittee businesses, and multi-tenant establishments, as well as public streets, crosswalks, or parking areas.” (The 
North Carolina Retail Merchants Association (NCRMA)) 

 
The North Carolina Retail Merchants Association (NCRMA) was the major interest group pushing for the passage of 

this important legislation in NC to drive foot traffic to downtown businesses. There are now over 40 social districts in North 
Carolina and numerous cities are considering the creation of social districts based on how successful social districts have 
become with customers and businesses alike. Surrounding neighbor cities have implemented Social Districts in the 
community, e.g., Wilson, Greenville, and Selma. 

   
The Downtown Development Department will present the findings and results of discussions with merchants, ABC 

Permittees, and other city departments, and will be prepared to answer questions from the council.  
 
It was recommended that Council consider the proposed social district and provide guidance at a later date. 
 
Greg Mills, Business & Property Development, presented the following: 

Goldsboro Social District Update

Greg Mills, Business & Property Development

June 20, 2023

• In September 2021, Governor Roy Cooper signed into law House Bill 890 (HB 890)
– ABC Omnibus Legisla�on – which passed both the House and Senate with bi-
par�san support-

• Included in HB 890 was a provision allowing local governments to create social
districts in North Carolina-

• In less than a year since the enactment of HB 890, nearly twenty municipali�es
successfully created social districts in towns as small as Norwood to ci�es as big
as Greensboro

Brie f Histo ry o f So cia l District Leg isla tio n Brie f Histo ry o f So cia l District Leg isla tio n

• In June 2022, House Bill 211 (HB 211) – Social District/Common Area Clarifica�ons -
passed both the House and Senate with bi -par�san support and was subsequently
signed into law by the Governor on July 7, 2022 -

• This legisla�on provides some much -needed clarity to the original social district
legisla�on and includes more detail on the inter -workings of social districts -

• The sec�ons of the North Carolina General Statutes regula�ng social districts contained
in HB 890 were repealed and replaced with a brand -new sec�on of Chapter 18B to
regulate social districts -

There  a re  no w  o ve r 40 So cia l Districts in  NC
Albemarle - Asheboro - Cary (approved) - Charlo�e – Southend & Plaza
Midwood - Cornelius – expanded - Davidson - Durham - Elkin
(approved) - Elon- Faye�eville- Franklinton- Garner- Gastonia-
Greensboro x2- Greenville- Hickory- High Point- Huntersville-
Kannapolis- Lake Norman- Laurinburg - Lenoir- Madison- Manteo-
Marion (approved) - Monroe- Newton- Norwood - Oxford- Pilot
Mountain- Raleigh – expanded- Rutherfordton (approved) - Salisbury-
Selma- Statesville- Sylva- Tarboro - Washington- Wendell- Whiteville-
Wilson- Youngsville

Why So cia l Districts

• The fastest growing downtown development program in the State
• Proven Economic driver for increased revenue for downtown businesses
• A�racts new events and new visitors
• A�racts more businesses to downtown
• Incen�vizes retail establishments to stay open later
• Increases pedestrian ac�vity and provides a variety of experiences
• Low implementa�on cost, low maintenance cost



3 of 24 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 of 24 
 

 
Council discussed the district boundary, concerns about people crossing Ash Street, and concerns about City Hall 

being included in the boundary. Council also discussed how the rules, restrictions, and regulations would be enforced.  
 
Repair/Restore Paramount Ornamental Façade Elements. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Adam 

Twiss, Paramount Director.  
 
The ornamental architectural elements on the façade of the Paramount were removed by the original contractor TA 

Loving, due to failure of several wall anchors. The rusted anchors were beginning to shear off creating a public safety hazard. 
Investigation found that specified flashing was not installed during construction leading to continual exposure to water and 
eventual corrosion. COG counsel indicates that after 15 years, there is no recourse, but the contractor has offered to share the 
cost of repair and restoration. The quote for the Paramount’s share of the cost is $39,776, TA Loving will cover $29,429.  

 
The Paramount currently has $30,651 available in a capital fund that was intended for replacement of an obsolete 

wheelchair lift; we recommend utilizing those funds for the immediate façade repairs and replacing the lift next year. The 
Paramount Theatre foundation will make up the $9,125 difference between available funds and the quote, so no budget 
appropriation will be necessary. The wheelchair lift is a convenience rather than a requirement, since the Paramount stage 
and backstage areas are at grade and accessible from the parking lot stage door.  

 
It was recommended that the Council approve the following entitled resolution authorizing the use of funds for façade 

repairs.  
 
Councilwoman Jones asked if other bidding had been done. Adam Twiss stated no, but TA Loving is the original 

contractor and is willing to work with us on the cost.  
 
Upon motion of Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Councilwoman Matthews, and unanimously carried, Council 

adopted the following entitled resolution.  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-43“A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TO REPAIR AND RESTORE 
THE PARAMOUNT THEATRE ORNAMENTAL FAÇADE ELEMENTS”  

 
Councilwoman Jones – Property Tax information. Councilwoman Jones shared concerns regarding property taxes 

and provided Councilmembers with a copy of an application the elderly can use to apply for property tax assistance.  
 
Councilman Gaylor asked if her constituents have had success with utility fee help through the county. Councilwoman 

Jones stated that she has worked with two of her constituents to get assistance.   
 
Consent Agenda Review. Items I – U and X – Y on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included 

the following: 
 
Item J - Request authorization to purchase a new Transfer Station Hopper Compactor Combination (Hopper) 

for the Solid Waste Division. 
 
Mayor Ham asked where the funds are coming from. Tim Salmon, City Manager, stated the residual funds are coming 

from extra money put into fuel.  
 
Item K - Resolution - Sale of Radios to Town of Pikeville Police Department and Town of Mount Olive Police 

Department.  
 
Mayor Ham asked if proceeds would go into the General Fund. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director, confirmed it 

would.  
 
Item P - Amending the Water Line Replacement & Booster Pump Station (BPS) Project WIF-1938 (W1111). 
 
Mayor Ham asked about the status of the project. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director, confirmed it is on hold at this 

time. Tim Salmon, City Manager, stated we would look at the CIP going forward; there are other ways to address the issue.  
 
 
Mayor Ham recessed the meeting at 6:48 p.m. 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on June 20, 2023. 
 

Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Dr. David Craig provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 



5 of 24 
 

 
Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews  
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 

  
Administering the Oath of Office.  Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk, administered the oath of office for the 

appointment as Mayor Pro Tem of the City of Goldsboro to Brandi Matthews. 
 
Approval of Minutes.   
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of June 5, 

2023. The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts and unanimously carried.   
 
Public Hearings.  
Utility System Development Fees. Public Hearing Held. The Item was presented by Tim Salmon, City Manager, and 

David Hyder, Stantec (via Zoom).  
 
The Public Water and Sewer System Development Fee Act (“SDF Act”) was approved on July 20th, 2017, and grants 

local governments that own or operate municipal water and sewer systems the authority to assess system development fees 
for the provision of utility service to new development. Per NCGS 161A-205, the City of Goldsboro contracted with Stantec 
Consulting Services Inc. to conduct a Water and Sewer System Development Fee Study. Per NCGS 162A-209, the Stantec 
analysis was published in a report made available for a 45-day public comment period which ended May 27, 2023; there 
were no public comments. A public hearing is now required prior to Council considering adoption of the analysis with any 
modifications or revisions. Should Council decide to implement system development fees, it may do so in its annual budget 
or rate plan or ordinance and shall update the system development fee analysis at least every five years. Per NCGS 162A-
213, the fees may be collected: at the time of application for a building permit; at the time of application for connection of 
the individual unit; or when water or sewer service is committed by the local governmental unit.   

 
System development fees are based on the costs of utility infrastructure including, but not limited to, water supply 

facilities, treatment facilities, effluent disposal facilities, and transmission mains. System development fees serve as the 
mechanism by which growth can “pay its own way” and minimize the extent to which existing customers must bear the cost 
of facilities that will be used to serve new customers. The SDF Act outlines three primary approaches to the calculation of 
system development fees: Buy-In, Incremental/Marginal Cost, and Combined Cost methods. The Buy-In method was 
determined to be the most appropriate for the City since it has existing infrastructure capacity and limited defined capacity 
for expansion in the City’s capital improvement plan. Tables 3-1 and 3-2 of the report identify the recommended calculated 
water and sewer SDF schedules; an equivalent residential unit (ERU) would pay $1,926 and $3,032 respectively to buy-in to 
the existing utility system. 

 
Staff recommended an ordinance be developed for Council to adopt the Stantec calculated water and sewer system 

development fee schedules identified in Tables 3-1 and 3-2 of the report, at the July 17, 2023, Council meeting. Those 
applying for a building permit or application for connection after August 1, 2023, would be charged the applicable system 
development fee. 

 
Councilman Gaylor asked how these rates compare to other surrounding communities. Tim Salmon, City Manager, 

and David Hyder, Stantec stated that the proposed rates are in the middle compared to surrounding communities.  
 
Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. The following person spoke:  

1. Dr. David Craig stated that monies collected for the maintenance and improvement of water and sewer systems 
have not been used, and claimed that the money had been put into the general fund.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews stated that if anyone believes his claims are not true, then they should provide the facts.  

Mayor Ham stated that utility funds are not allowed to be moved into the general fund. He also asked Councilmembers 
to review the video and Dr. Craig’s claims to determine their validity.  

No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Councilman Broadaway to adopt the utility system development fee structure as presented. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Batts and unanimously carried. An ordinance will be brought back to the July 17th 
meeting.  



6 of 24 
 

 
Public Hearing & Final Action - Z-6-23 Goldsboro Masonic Lodge (Residential 16 to General Business) – East 

side of N William St. off of W Tommy’s Rd. Public Hearing Held. Ordinance Adopted. The Item was presented by Austin 
Brinkley, Assistant Planning Director.  

 
ADDRESS: 1002 N Berkeley Blvd 
PARCEL #: 3519745404 
PROPERTY OWNER: Harmony Masonic Lodge #340 
APPLICANT: Cliff Grant (Harmony Masonic Lodge) 
 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning from a split Residential 12 Zoning District (R-12)/General Business (GB) 

Zoning District to the General Business (GB) Zoning District. The purpose of the General Business (GB) Zoning District is 
to accommodate the widest range of uses, providing general goods and services to the community. The district is intended to 
promote high quality, accessible developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding area. 

 
Access: N Berkeley Blvd   
Area: 1.10 acres                   
 
North: General Business 
South: Office & Institutional I & Residential 12 
East: General Business 
West: General Business 
 
The property currently is the site of the former Goldsboro Masonic Lodge #634  
 
The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Commercial land use designation. This designation was given 

based off of proximity to existing major transportation corridors and commercial development. The designation encourages 
in-fill development at existing commercial sites. 

 
The General Business (GB) Zoning District is identified as a corresponding district for the Commercial land use 

designation. 
 
This is a rezoning proposal for a 1.10-acre parcel to be rezoned from a split Residential 12 (R-12)/General Business 

(GB) Zoning District to the General Business (GB) Zoning District. The subject property is situated adjacent to N Berkeley 
Blvd. The adjacent uses are commercial businesses and a church adjacent to the rear property line. This is a general rezoning, 
and the future use is not yet known. 

 
Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson Air Force 

Base and NCDOT. There were no comments or recommendations due to this being a straight rezoning request. 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning request based on the fact that this parcel is adjacent to multiple 

General Business Zoning Districts and its consistency with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on June 12, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding 

the rezoning request. Planning Commission voted 4 in favor 0 against. 
 
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning Commission 

has provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement, or council shall vote to 
deny and adopt the Ordinance to Deny with the inclusion of a statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent. 
Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed.  

 
Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Councilman Batts to adopt the ordinance to approve. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Gaylor and unanimously carried. Council adopted the following entitled Ordinance. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-30 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
Public Hearing & Final Action - Z-7-23 Ground Zero (General Industry (I-2) to General Business) – Intersection 

of N William St. and W Patetown Rd. Public Hearing Held. Ordinance Adopted. The Item was presented by Austin 
Brinkley, Assistant Planning Director.    

 
ADDRESS: 103 W Patetown Rd.  
PARCEL #: 3600258551 
PROPERTY OWNER: Lillie W Taylor 
APPLICANT: Jeffrey Rudolph 
 



7 of 24 
 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning from the General Industry (I-2) Zoning District to the General Business (GB) 
Zoning District. The purpose of the General Business (GB) Zoning District is to accommodate the widest range of uses, 
providing general goods and services to the community. The district is intended to promote high quality, accessible 
developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding area. 

Access: W Patetown Rd.  

Area: 0.73 acres  

North: General Industry (I-2) 
South: General Business 
East: General Business/O&I 1 
West: General Industry (I-2) 
 
The property currently consists of a commercial structure with individual units upfit and occupied for business. 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Industrial land use designation. 

This designation’s purpose is to establish and protect industrial areas for the use of prime industrial operations and for 
the distribution of products wholesale.  

The General Business (GB) Zoning District is not identified as a corresponding district for the Industrial land use 
designation.  

This is a rezoning proposal for a 0.73-acre parcel to be rezoned from the General Industry (I-2) Zoning District to the 
General Business (GB) Zoning District. The subject property currently contains a commercial structure with induvial units 
that are upfit and rented out for business purposes. The adjacent uses are Wanda’s, Pennington Automotive, Greenleaf 
Christian Church, Kids-R-Us, and Tillman’s Restaurant Supply. This parcel has direct frontage on N William St.as well as 
frontage on W Patetown Rd. 

Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson Air Force 
Base and NCDOT. There were no comments or recommendations due to this being a straight rezoning request. 

Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning request based on the fact that this parcel has a history of being utilized 
for commercial purposes. There is also a heavy concentration of General Business zoning within the general vicinity of the 
subject property.  

The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on June 12, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding 
the rezoning request. Planning Commission voted 4 in favor 0 against. 

Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning Commission 
has provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement, or council shall vote to 
deny and adopt the Ordinance to Deny with the inclusion of a statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent. 
Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Councilman Gaylor to adopt the ordinance to approve. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Broadaway and unanimously carried. Council adopted the following entitled Ordinance. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-31 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE 
LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
Public Hearing & Final Action - Z-8-23 Performance East (Residential 16&20 A to Highway Business CZ) – 

East of the Tommys Rd./E Patetown Rd. Intersection off US Hwy 70. Public Hearing Held. Ordinance Adopted. The 
Item was presented by Austin Brinkley, Assistant Planning Director. 

 
ADDRESS: Tommy’s Rd. 
PARCEL #: 3611016091, 3601819447, 3601818362, 3611002767 
PROPERTY OWNER: JD Gupta 
APPLICANT: N&M Rental Properties, LLC / Performance East Inc. 
 
The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning from the Residential 16 & 20 A (R-16) (R-20A) Zoning District to 

the Highway Business (HB) Conditional Zoning District. The purpose of the Highway Business (HB) Conditional Zoning 
District is to accommodate highway-oriented retail and commercial uses which generally serve the entire City and nonresident 
traffic. The district encourages high-quality design, ample parking, controlled traffic movements and suitable landscaping. 

 
Access: Tommy’s Rd.  
Area: 36 acres (approximately, not surveyed) 
 
North: Residential 20 Agriculture 
South: Office & Institutional I (CZ) Residential 16 
East: Office & Institutional I  



8 of 24 
 

West: Residential 16 & 20 Agriculture 
 
The properties are currently vacant. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan locates these parcels within the Medium-Density Residential land use designation. 
 
Medium-Density Residential: This designation was given to areas based off existing residential development patterns 

and consideration of water & sewer availability or where plans exist to extend service. 
 
The Highway Business (HB) Conditional Zoning District is not identified as a corresponding district for the Medium-

Density Residential land use designation.  
 
This is a conditional rezoning proposal for four parcels that are approximately 36 acres total to be rezoned from the 

Residential 16 & 20 A (R-16) (R-20A) Zoning District to the Highway Business (HB) Conditional Zoning District. Tax 
Parcel 3611016091 is a parcel split between the R-16 district and the O&I 1 district, only the portion zoned R-16 is proposed 
to be conditionally rezoned. The subject properties are currently vacant. The adjacent uses are Wayne Preparatory Academy 
and residential uses.  This parcel has direct frontage on Tommy’s Rd and is adjacent to US Hwy 70. 

  
This is a conditional rezoning request for the purpose of establishing Performance East, a retail business that deals in 

power sports and marine products. These parcels are located within the ETJ and would need to be annexed into the City in 
order to receive City services. 

 
Staff has distributed this proposed conditional rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson 

Air Force Base and NCDOT. There are no comments at this time, based off the concept design. If approved, this will require 
Site Plan submittal and will undergo TRC Review.  

 
Staff is recommending approval of the conditional rezoning request based on the location of the property and its high 

visibility from US Hwy 70. The properties proximity to US Hwy 70 aligns closely with the purpose of the Highway Business 
(HB) Conditional Zoning District. Furthermore, the Comprehensive Land Use Plan encourages an environment which is 
friendly to business as well as the location of commercial uses along major thoroughfares, or in proximity to.  

 
Staff is recommending the following conditions be placed upon this conditional rezoning request:  
 
• A modified Type C1 Buffer yard be required along all property lines that are adjacent to an identified Residential 

Zoning District. (Type C1 required by UDO, Type C1 is 20’ width, TypeC1 modified would increase the width to 
35’) complete visual separation is required using densely, planted, evergreen landscaping that will provide complete 
visual separation within three years of planting, or a six-foot fence (constructed of masonry or pre-treated lumber). 
Recommending a condition be that the fence is eight-foot if the developer chooses that route. 

• The developer shall install a driveway at a width of 50’ to accommodate the types of vehicles associated with the 
use. 

• Deliveries to business to not occur between the hours of 2:00 – 3:30 PM, and other hours scheduled for school day 
release to prevent any potential congestion with school traffic. 

 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on June 12, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding 

the rezoning request. Planning Commission voted 4 in favor 0 against. 
    
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning Commission 

has provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement, or council shall vote 
to deny and adopt the Ordinance to Deny with the inclusion of a statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent. 
Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

 
Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. The following person spoke:  

1. Trey Taylor, attorney with Warren, Kerr, Walston, Taylor, and Smith, spoke in favor of the rezoning.  
 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Councilman Batts to adopt the ordinance to approve. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Gaylor and unanimously carried. Council adopted the following entitled Ordinance. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-32 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE 
LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
Public Hearing & Final Action - Z-9-23 Hawthorne Trail (O&I-1 & Shopping Center to Residential 6 CZ) – 

Intersection of Cuyler Best Rd. and W New Hope Rd.  Public Hearing Held. Ordinance Adopted. The Item was 
presented by Austin Brinkley, Assistant Planning Director. 

 
ADDRESS: Cuyler Best Rd. 



9 of 24 
 

PARCEL #: 3610616566, 3610723076, 3610713058 
PROPERTY OWNER: Best-Allen Associates, LLC 
APPLICANT: BRD Land & Investment, LP 
 
The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning from the Office & Institutional I (O&I 1) & Shopping Center (SC) 

Zoning District to the Residential 6 (R-6) Conditional Zoning District. The purpose of the Residential 6 (R-6) Conditional 
Zoning District is to accommodate both single and multi-family residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial 
nature.  

 
Access: Cuyler Best Rd. 
Area: 27.54 acres 
Single-Family lots: 119 
Townhomes: 193              
 
North: Residential 16, Office & Institutional I 
South: Office & Institutional I, R-12, Neighborhood Business 
East: Office & Institutional I, General Business, Residential (multiple) 
West: Residential 9 
 
The properties are currently vacant. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan locates these parcels within the three separate designations. These designations are Mixed-

Use I, Office & Institutional and Conservation. The parcels fall predominantly within the Mixed-Use I and Office & 
Institutional designation. 

 
Mixed-Use I: This designation is intended to allow for a mixture of uses and have a minimum impact on the adjacent 

areas. This land use designation is intended to serve a localized area with a preferred land use of 40% or greater non-
commercial. 

 
Office & Institutional: This designation has been given to areas that have already developed as such or require buffering 

to prevent potential conflicting land uses. This designation is given to areas that have the potential to serve as a buffer 
between residential uses and commercial uses. 

 
The Residential 6 (R-6) Conditional Zoning District is not identified as a corresponding district for the Mixed-Use I or 

Office & Institutional land use designation. Despite this not being a corresponding zoning district, much of the surrounding 
area falls within the Medium-Density Residential land use designation. The availability of water and sewer also supports 
high-density development to occur on this parcel. 

 
This is a conditional rezoning proposal to establish a residential planned unit development to allow for 64 lots with 50’ 

width, 55 lots with 40’ width and 193 townhomes for a total of 312 lots. The adjacent uses are Glenda’s Pointe Subdivision, 
Cuyler Best Apartments, Pentecostal Christian Assembly, Brighton Academy, Mimosa Park and undeveloped land. This 
parcel has direct frontage on Cuyler Best Rd. and W New Hope Rd. The proposed access for the development is off Cuyler 
Best Rd.  

 
Staff has distributed this proposed conditional rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson 

Air Force Base and NCDOT. There are no comments at this time, based off the concept design. If approved, this will require 
Site Plan submittal and will undergo TRC Review.  

 
Staff is recommending approval of the conditional rezoning request based on the fact that this development would not 

be out of character with the overall residential use of the surrounding area. While staff does believe that a mixed -use 
development incorporating both residential and commercial elements would be an ideal use for the property, staff cannot 
recommend denial for this conditional rezoning request. This development would also aid in satisfying the growing demand 
for housing in the City of Goldsboro. The availability of water and sewer does support a higher density development which is 
allowed in the Residential 6 district.  

 
Staff is recommending the following conditions be placed upon this conditional rezoning request:  
 
• The existing multi-use walking trail currently fronting W New Hope Rd. be extended along the full extent of the 

property line along Cuyler Best Rd.  
• The wooded areas around the stormwater ponds include a network of walking/biking trails for the residents of the 

development.  
• TIA conducted in coordination with NCDOT. 
    
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on June 12, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding 

the rezoning request. Planning Commission voted 3 in favor 1 against. 
    
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning Commission 

has provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement, or council shall vote 



10 of 24 
 

to deny and adopt the Ordinance to Deny with the inclusion of a statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent. 
Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

 
Mayor Ham asked for clarification of the walking trail being extended on the property toward Cuyler Best Road. 

Auston Brinkley, Assistant Planning Director, clarified that the existing trail would be extended along the property line that 
fronts Cuyler Best Road to the terminus of their property line.  

 
Scott Stoneham, American Engineering, representing the applicant, BRD Land & Investment, LP, presented the 

following: 

 

 

 

 

 



11 of 24 
 

 

 

Mayor Ham asked about the right-of-way for the turning lane on Cuyler Best Road. Mr. Stoneham confirmed that there 
is an existing right-of-way, and that the development would also leave plenty of room for the turning lane to be added.  

Councilman Gaylor asked about the likelihood of bringing this project to fruition and over what time frame. Mr. 
Stoneham stated that, if approved, the design phase should begin within a week, and should be able to break ground in 6-9 
months.  

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. The following people spoke:  

1. Shirley Salt, resident of Mimosa Park, raised concerns about the number of cars that would be added to the 
area. The greatest concerns of neighbors are the traffic, water pressure, the cost, and the need for better 
crosswalks.  

2. Wade Leatham raised concerns about the size of the lots and the effect on property values. He also raised 
concerns about the traffic, and stated this development would not be a benefit to current residents.  

3. Mr. Martin spoke in opposition to the development. He raised concerns about the City’s ability to service the 
development, when the road improvements will take place, and the water pressure.  

4. David Craig suggested having 4 entrances to the development off Cuyler Best Road, and taking the walking 
trails above the roadways.  

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Councilman Broadaway to adopt the ordinance to approve. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Gaylor. Mayor Ham, Councilman Broadway, Councilman Gaylor, and Councilman Batts voted in favor of the 
motion. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews and Councilwoman Jones voted against the motion. The motion passed 4-2. Council 
adopted the following entitled Ordinance. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-33 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE 
LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 
PUBLIC HEARING - SU-7-23 Bingo Hall – 1406 W. Grantham St. Public Hearing Held and Findings Adopted.   

After being properly sworn in, Kenny Talton presented the following:   

ADDRESS: 1406 W. Grantham St. 
PARCEL #: 2690221593 
OWNER: Won Nam Hong 
APPLICANT: Won Nam Hong  
 
The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the establishment of a Bingo Hall located in the General Business 

Zoning District. The General Business district is established to accommodate the widest range of uses providing general 
goods and services to the community. The district is intended to promote high quality, accessible developments serving the 
needs of the community and surrounding area. 

According to the City’s Unified Development Code, a Bingo Hall is permitted only after obtaining a Special Use 
Permit from Goldsboro City Council. The UDO also requires that the applicant deliver to the City sufficient evidence that the 
proposed bingo hall complies with North Carolina state requirements for bingo hall establishments as specified in NCGS 14-
309.5-14. 

General Business (GB) 



12 of 24 
 

Vacant building and formerly operated as an Advanced Auto Store. 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Commercial land use designation. The City of Goldsboro 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan emphasizes that the area’s future development should focus on the control of strip 
development, in-fill development, prohibition of commercial encroachment on existing residential neighborhoods and the 
inclusion of parks/opens space to provide pedestrian-friendly and landscaped areas which will break the commercial 
landscape.  

The proposed Bingo Hall will have a maximum occupancy of 60-65 occupants including employees. The concept plan 
shows a total of 30 bingo tables with 2 seats per table within the facility.  

Hours of Operation:  Monday – Sunday: 2:00 – 12:00 PM 

Employees: 5 

Parking: 1 space per 32 sq. ft. of floor area excluding storage. The site can accommodate 36 parking spaces. 

Due to the nature of this proposal, TRC was not asked to review.  

Staff recommended that if Council votes to approve, they shall require the applicant to provide sufficient evidence that 
the proposed bingo hall comply with North Carolina state requirements for bingo hall establishments as specified in NCGS 
14-309.5-14. 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. The following person spoke:  

1. Won Nam Hong, the applicant: Hey. I am Won Nam Hong. I am here to open Kings bingo hall located at 1406 
West Grantham Street.  
Mayor Ham: Are there any questions that council member has of the speaker? Have you operated a bingo hall 
someplace else before?  
Won Nam Hong: Yes Sir  
Mayor Ham: May I ask where? 
Won Nam Hong: North Carolina 
Mayor Ham: Ok so you you've done this before.  Any Questions? OK. Thank you. 
Won Nam Hong: Thank you very much. 

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

After the Public Hearing was closed, City Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in 
order to determine whether or not the Special Use Permit shall be issued.  

1. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews made a motion that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 
Applicant will be required to provide sufficient evidence that the proposed bingo hall comply with North Carolina 
state requirements for bingo hall establishments as specified in NCGS 14-309.5-14 before issuance of SU-7-23. 
The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.  

2. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews made a motion that the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining 
or abutting property. The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts and unanimously carried.  

3. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews made a motion that the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses 
within the area in which it is located. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried. 

4. Councilman Gaylor made a motion that the use will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING - SU-9-23 Deep Space Tattoo Parlor – South side of W Mulberry St. across from St. 

Stephens Episcopal Church. Public Hearing Held and Findings Adopted.   After being properly sworn in, Austin Brinkley 
presented the following: 

ADDRESS: 116 W Mulberry St. 
PARCEL #: 2599867356 
OWNER: Mulberry Junction, LLC 
APPLICANT: Jae Thomas 
 
The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the establishment of a Tattoo Parlor, located in the Central Business 

Zoning District. The Central Business District was established to maintain and strengthen the concentration of commercial, 
service, residential and institutional uses that serve the entire community and region. The district encourages a mix of high 
intensity pedestrian-oriented uses compatibly designed and arranged around the existing compact core.  

According to the City’s Unified Development Code, Tattoo Parlors are permitted only after obtaining a Special Use 
Permit from Goldsboro City Council. The UDO also requires that In the Central Business District that there is to be a 
minimum 500ft radius separation between Tattoo Parlors. This proposal satisfies this requirement. 

Central Business District. 

Vacant commercial structure. 



13 of 24 
 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Mixed-Use Downtown land use designation. The City of 
Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan identifies the following goals related to the Mixed-Use Downtown designation 
and desired development for the downtown Goldsboro area. The plan indicates that infill development is an action that is 
essential to the continued development of Goldsboro, this proposal qualifies as being infill development. The plan also 
identifies a goal as being to focus on improvement of the downtown Goldsboro area. 

This is a proposal to establish a tattoo parlor with piercing. The proposed business will operate under the name “Deep 
Space”.  

Business Hours: Tuesday-Saturday 12 Noon – 10:00 PM (hours may vary but will not exceed the listed times here) 

Employees: 6 (maximum) 

Due to the nature of this proposal, TRC was not asked to review. 

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

After the Public Hearing was closed, City Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in 
order to determine whether or not the Special Use Permit shall be issued.  

1. Councilman Gaylor made a motion that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. The 
motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, Councilwoman Jones, 
Councilman Broadaway, and Councilman Gaylor voted in favor of the motion. Councilman Batts voted against the 
motion. The motion passed 5-1.  

2. Councilwoman Jones made a motion that the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or 
abutting property. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, 
Councilwoman Jones, and Councilman Gaylor voted in favor of the motion. Councilman Broadaway and 
Councilman Batts voted against the motion. The motion passed 4-2.  

3. Councilman Gaylor made a motion that the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses within the 
area in which it is located. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem 
Matthews, Councilwoman Jones, and Councilman Gaylor voted in favor of the motion. Councilman Broadaway 
and Councilman Batts voted against the motion. The motion passed 4-2. 

4. Councilwoman Jones made a motion that the use will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem 
Matthews, Councilwoman Jones, and Councilman Gaylor voted in favor of the motion. Councilman Broadaway 
and Councilman Batts voted against the motion. The motion passed 4-2. 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. David Craig made a point of clarification that he had incorrectly stated general fund in his earlier comments. 
He then referenced the June 7, 2021 meeting regarding unused monies rolling into the fund balance.  

2. Bevon Foster, County Commissioner, asked questions about land on the corner of Mulberry and Carolina 
Street; 200 Carolina Street. Mayor Ham let him know that they would get an answer. 

3. Norman Uzzell, 204 Carolina Street, stated that he has been maintaining the grass at 200 Carolina Street. He 
also voiced concerns about the sidewalk on Mulberry Street. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews requested that the City 
follow up with Mr. Uzzell.  

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All items 

were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a Councilmember 
so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered separately. In that event, 
the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. Councilman Batts moved 
the items on the Consent Agenda, Items I – U and X - Y be approved. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway. 
Mayor Ham, Councilman Broadaway, Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, Councilman Gaylor, Councilman Batts voted in favor of 
the motion. Councilwoman Jones voted against the motion. The motion passed 5-1.  

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:   

 
Request authorization to purchase a Ford F-250 Crew Cab with Service Body. Resolution Adopted. The item was 

presented by Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director.     
 
The requested vehicle will replace a truck that was recently totaled in a motor vehicle accident on May 16th while 

stormwater crews were working on Highway 70.    
 
The total purchase price for the new F-250 is approximately $63,300.  The majority of the funds ($45,100) will come 

from the insurance settlement for the totaled vehicle and sale of a surplus sweeper through GovDeals.  The remaining 
difference between the available funds and purchase price ($18,200) will be paid out of residual funds in the current FY23 
Stormwater budget.   

 



14 of 24 
 

Staff recommended that Council, by motion, approve the purchase of the new Ford F-250 Crew Cab with Service 
Body for $63,300.    

 
Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-44 “RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO PURCHASE A NEW FORD F-250” 

 
Request authorization to purchase a new Transfer Station Hopper Compactor Combination (Hopper) for the 

Solid Waste Division. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director. 
 
The City’s transfer station has two Hoppers.  One was installed in 1985 for refuse and a second one was installed in the 

mid 1990’s for recycling.  They are used to collect and compress refuse and recycled goods into a transport trailer. Due to 
their age, no parts are readily available and repairs typically require remanufacturing old components.  It has proven to be 
very costly and requires extensive downtime.   

 
The refuse Hopper is in worse condition and needs hydraulic and structural repairs well in excess of $150,000.  The 

compactor’s main beam and pusher platen assembly need to be removed and used as a template to manufacture a new one for 
an estimated $85,000 alone.  The main hydraulic cylinder is failing and needs to be removed and remanufactured for 
$65,000.  Several sections of the steel support structure have been exposed to corrosive refuse contaminants for 38 years and 
need to be replaced.  Sections of the steel have rusted through and even separated.  We have replaced a few of the steel X-
type bracing supports, but have not received a final estimate to accomplish any major structural repairs.    

 
Replacing the refuse Hopper will cost an estimated $350,000. It will upgrade the equipment to current standards and 

ensure reliable service for years to come versus making costly short-term fixes.  Most of the funds ($231,000) will come 
from residual funds in the current FY23 Solid Waste budget. The remaining $119,000 will require a fund balance 
appropriation from the General Fund. 

 
Staff recommended that Council, by motion, approve the purchase of the new Solid Waste Transfer Station Hopper for 

$350,000. 
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-45 “RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO PURCHASE A SOLID WASTE HOPPER” 
 
Resolution - Sale of Radios to Town of Pikeville Police Department and Town of Mount Olive Police 

Department. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
The City of Goldsboro owns Police radios and equipment that is surplus, and no longer required by the City.  
 
General Statute 160A-274 establishes that any governmental unit may, upon such terms and conditions as it deems 

wise, with or without consideration, exchange with, lease to, lease from, sell to, or purchase from any other governmental 
unit any interest in real or personal property.  

 
The Police Department has surplus radio inventory and has requested disposal of this property. These radios have 

completed their useful service life.  All radios being disposed of are no longer manufactured, and have been replaced through 
the Police Department’s multi-year equipment replacement plan. These radios and accessories that Pikeville and Mt. Olive 
Police departments are requesting to purchase are still capable of operating on the County radio system but are outdated. The 
Town of Pikeville and Town of Mt. Olive Police Departments wish to use the radios for operational purposes.  These radios 
are not currently Phase 2 ready for the County Radio System and will require at a minimum, additional programming to be 
able to operate on the current radio system. We have reached out to a local radio communications company for fair market 
value of the items. 

 
Description Available 

for Sale 
FMV Town of 

Pikeville 
Town of Mt. 

Olive 
Viking VP 900 Portable radio kits 6 $500/Ea 4 2 
Harris XG-75 Mobile Radios 3 $750/Ea 1 7 

 
It was recommended the Council authorize the sale of surplus Police radios and equipment to the Town of Pikeville 

Police Department and the Town of Mount Olive Police Department. 
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-46 “RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS AND SALE OF POLICE RADIOS AND 
EQUIPMENT TO A GOVERNMENTAL UNIT PURSUANT TO NCGS § 160A-274” 

 
Amending the Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Ordinance (G1108). Ordinance Adopted. The item 

was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 



15 of 24 
 

On June 15, 2020, City Council authorized the establishment of a special revenue fund to account for donations and 
sponsorships that are funded with donor specific restrictions, such as the Human Relations Committee, Interfaith Breakfast, 
Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Commemoration, Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities, and the Mayor’s Youth 
Council. 

    
At this time, minor corrections are needed to the budget revenue and expenditures for the Martin Luther King, Jr. 

Commemoration and Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities.  When creating the fund in June, 2020 an error was 
made in the allocation from the General Fund.  The net correction is $1,420.60 and will be funded with a reallocation of 
revenues and expenses, and a transfer from the General Fund. 

 
Also, an appropriation of revenue is needed to capture fundraising revenue from the Mayor’s Youth Council gift 

wrapping in the amount of $554.00.   
 
It was recommended that the following entitled Grant Project Budget Ordinance for the Community Relations Special 

Revenue Fund (G1108) be amended. 
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-34 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT BUDGET FOR THE COMMUNITY 
RELATIONS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (G1108)” 

 
Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Police Other Restricted Revenue Funds (P3104). Ordinance 

Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.  
 
On June 17, 2019 City Council approved the creation of a special revenue fund for the Police Department to create more 

transparency in the collection and disbursement of funds received from special court allocations, storage fees, various 
fundraisers, donations, sale of found property, and other restricted revenue sources for the police department. 
  

The Police department has received $5,831.52 in various donations, surplus sales and interest income.  It is necessary to 
appropriate these revenues so that the Police department may expend them according to the applicable purpose.  The table 
below provides additional details. 

 
Entity Purpose Date Received Amount 

Walmart Shop with a Cop Donation ~ Dec 2022 $5,131.50 

Property Room.com Found guns sold Oct – Dec 2022 156.43 

Private Citizen Donations Donations for Community Police Services Oct 2022-May 2023 520.00 

Investment Income Applied for use towards Police supplies Jun 2022 23.59 

 Total Revenue Appropriations $5,831.52 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Project Budget Ordinance amendment for the Police 

Other Restricted Revenue Funds (P3104). 
 
Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-35 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND FOR THE POLICE OTHER 
RESTRICTED REVENUE FUND (P3104)” 
 

Amending the Parks & Recreation Special Revenue Fund Ordinance (G1107). Ordinance Adopted. The item was 
presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   

 
On June 15, 2020, the City Council authorized the establishment of a special revenue fund to track the various 

donations and sponsorships in which the donor/sponsor has requested that the funds be spent on various special programs 
sponsored by Parks & Recreation. 

 
The fund has received several donations and sponsorships related to sports tourism totaling $6,435.48. 

St. Paul United Method Church  $   375.00 
NC Tennis Association  $4,000.00 
Kepner Cup    $2,060.48 

Total    $6,435.48 
 
These revenues need to be appropriated to support expenditures within the scope of the fund. Included is a minor 

correction for a sports tourism receipt of $492.98 that was incorrectly posted to the Duke RX for Play grant. 
 



16 of 24 
 

It was recommended that the following entitled Grant Project Budget Ordinance to amend the Parks & Recreation 
Special Revenue Fund (G1107) be approved for $6,435.48. 

 
Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-36 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT BUDGET FOR THE PARKS & 
RECREATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (G1107)” 

 
Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Fire Other Restricted Revenue Funds (F3110). Ordinance 

Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
At the September 6, 2022 Council meeting, Council authorized the establishment of a grant project ordinance for the 

Fire Other Restricted Revenue Fund (F3110) in order to create more transparency in the collection and disbursement of funds 
received from various donations, local grants, fundraisers and other restricted revenue sources for the Fire department. 

 
The Fire department has received donations earmarked for summer camps to be taught by the Fire department in the 

amount of $450, and it is necessary to appropriate the expenditures in order for the department to begin fulfilling the terms of 
the donation.  The expenditures will be funded with an appropriation of donation revenue. 

  
It was recommended that the attached Special Revenue Fund Ordinance for the Fire Other Restricted Revenue Funds 

(F3110) be adopted. 
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-37“AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND FOR THE FIRE OTHER 
RESTRICTED REVENUE FUND (F3110)” 

 
Amending the Water Line Replacement & Booster Pump Station (BPS) Project WIF-1938 (W1111). Ordinance 

Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
On September 17, 2017, the Council approved a resolution to apply for a state revolving loan for this project, and The 

Wooten Company was selected to perform the engineering services on September 18, 2018. 
 
On June 6, 2019, we received notification from the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality that 

financing was approved from the North Carolina Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) in the amount of 
$3,610,000 at an interest rate of 1.82% over 20 years.  

 
On July 15, 2019, the City Council authorized the establishment of a capital project fund for the replacement of 

existing water lines at various locations in the City and install a new booster pump station in the New Hope area to address 
low-pressure issues and remove outdated pipe materials.  The water line replacement includes: 

• 4,000 LF in the Lanetree Subdivision from Fedelon Trail to Titleist Drive 
• 3,100 LF on Ash Street from Herman Street to Williams Street 
• 2,700 LF on Ash Street from Berkeley to Meadow Lane School 
• 5,300 LF on Elm Street from Madison Avenue to Lee Drive 
• 2,700 LF on Slocumb Street from Westbrook Road to SJAFB 
  
The City Engineer, Mr. Bobby Croom, has notified Finance that the project (New Hope Road High Pressure Zone 

project WIF-1938 aka 2017 Water System Improvements) will not be done at this time. DEQ tentatively will reimburse up to 
$32,400.00 in engineering fees, and the rest will be funded by the Utility Fund Capital Reserve.  It is necessary to reallocate 
the funding to reduce the state SRF revenues and increase the transfer from the Utility Fund Capital Reserve to $198,112.60 
in order to close out this project.  Corresponding expenditures will also be reduced to the amount spent to date. 

 
It was recommended that the City Council adopt the following entitled project budget amendment for the Water Line 

Replacement and Booster Pump Station (BPS) Project (W1111). 
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-38 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE WATER LINE 
REPLACEMENT AND BOOSTER PUMP STATION (BPS) PROJECT WIF-1938 (W1111)” 

 
Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Federal and State Drug Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund 

(P3101). Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
In order to create more transparency in the collection and disbursement of funds received from federal and state drug 

forfeitures for the Police department, on February 17, 2020 City Council authorized the establishment of a special revenue 
fund to account for the inflows and outflows of resources.  The fund is amended as necessary to appropriate revenues 
received. 

 



17 of 24 
 

The City has received the following funding from the Equitable Sharing program (Asset Forfeiture) through the 
Department of Justice. 

 
Date Amount 
8/26/21 $3,409.17 
11/16/22  10,612.00 
11/16/22 15,914.36 
11/18/22 15,771.97 
2/17/23 1,844.21 
Total $47,551.71 

  
The City also received multiple distributions from the North Carolina Department of Revenue for Unauthorized 

Substance Tax collections which is levied under N.C. G.S. §105-113 to 105-113.  Seventy-five percent (75%) of the money 
collected is returned to the state or local law enforcement agency whose investigation led to the assessment.  The remaining 
twenty-five percent (25%) of the money collected is retained by the State of North Carolina.    The total received to date 
since FY20 is $24,085.25. 

  
Investment income credited to the fund for Federal Forfeiture from 6/30/21 to 3/31/21 is $1,555.03. 
 
It is necessary to appropriate the revenues from federal forfeiture, state forfeiture and investment income so that the 

Police department may expend the moneys to support police operations. 
 
It was recommended that City Council adopt the following entitled amendment to the Special Revenue Fund 

Ordinance for the Federal and State Drug Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund (P3101). 
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-39 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND FOR FEDERAL AND 
STATE FORFEITURE ACCOUNTS (P3101)” 
 

Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
Investment Partnership Program (HOME) Special Revenue Fund (C2101, C2102, C3101 and C3102). Ordinance 
Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   

 
The Department of Housing and Urban Development has granted funding for the CDBG, HOME, CDBG-CV, and 

HOME ARP programs to the City of Goldsboro as an entitlement city.  These grants will be managed by the Community 
Relations & Development department. 

  
HUD conducted a monitoring visit last August, which resulted in a monitoring letter dated 10/11/22.  One of the items 

in the letter was HUD’s recommendation that the City change the existing accounting structure so that the City could balance 
and reconcile to the HUD IDIS system.   

   
The corrections to the accounting have been made to satisfy the HUD requirements, but took extensive time due to the 

volume of transactions.  The corresponding budget adjustments have been compiled and presented in this budget amendment.  
In order to satisfy the changes recommended by HUD, separate funds were created in the City’s ERP system to account for 
the CDBG, CDBG-CV, HOME and HOME ARP programs, however, we will continue to report this as a single special 
revenue fund for financial statement purposes.  

 
Also included within this amendment are the allocations for 2022 as per the signed agreements from November 10, 

2022. 
 CDBG 2022 (B22-MC-37-0019)  $  358,697 
 HOME 2022 (M22-MC370209)   $  280,171 
  Total Funding    $  638,868 
 
Staff requests that the Council appropriate expenditures in the amount of $638,867 so that the terms of the grant 

agreements may be carried out.  The additional appropriations of $2,205,709.60 represent reallocations and corrections to the 
new coding structure to satisfy HUD’s accounting requirements.  The allocation of the expenditures was based on 
recommendations from Ms. Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director and any limits placed on the funds by HUD. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Grant Project Ordinance amendment for the Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) Special Revenue Fund (C2101, 
C2102, C3101 and C3102). 

 
Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-40 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG AND CDBG-CV) AND HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 
(HOME AND HOME ARP), SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (C2101, C2102, C3101, C3102)” 



18 of 24 
 

 
Resolution – Disposition and Destruction of City Owned Ballistic Vests. Resolution Adopted. The item was 

presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
The City of Goldsboro Fire Department provides access to ballistic vests for its members to utilize when needed.  

These vests expire every 5 years and are replaced on this schedule.   
 
General Statute 160A-266(d) provides a City may discard any personal property that is determined to have no value.  
  
Goldsboro Fire Department replaces the ballistic vests available to its Firefighters every five years.  This replacement 

cycle leads to vests that are un-warrantied that become surplus. Disposal and disposition of these vests need to be done 
securely to prevent the possibly that they could be used against law enforcement. We are requesting to use Fiber Brokers 
International, LLC to destroy the vests.  

 
Fiber Brokers International, LLC provides secure destruction of ballistic vests. The company is based out of Brent, 

Alabama. This company provides secure destruction and recycling of aged ballistic vests and other ballistic materials. They 
have been in business for 15 years and serve both law enforcement and the military.  Typically, there is $.50 charge per vest 
and the client pays for shipping. The per item cost will be waived and we will only have to pay for shipping of the vests to 
their facility. All items are disposed of securely and per National Institute of Justice (NIJ) guidelines and the company will 
provide proof of chain of custody and destruction. 

 
It was recommended the Council authorize the disposition and transfer of surplus ballistic vests to Fiber Brokers 

International, LLC for destruction. 
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-47 “RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZATION FOR DESTRUCTION OF 
CITY OWNED BALLISTIC VESTS” 

 
Resolution – Donation of Personal Property to a 501(c)(3) Non-Profit, Global Gear Initiative, LLC. Resolution 

Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
The City of Goldsboro owns fire-fighting equipment that is surplus, and no longer needed by the City. This firefighting 

equipment consists of turn out gear that is in excess of ten years old, and can no longer be used in service for the Goldsboro 
Fire Department (GFD) per NFPA Guidelines.  There are also old and outdated air packs that are beyond repair that have 
been replaced and upgraded by the GFD.  History has shown that there is little to no monetary value ever received by these 
items when sold on public auctions due to the fact that their use is limited in the United States.  In an effort limit the liability 
of the City of Goldsboro with these items and to be good stewards of our resources, it is our recommendation that these items 
be donated to Global Gear Initiative.  This non-profit collects and distributes fire equipment to firefighters in other countries 
such as Guatemala, Mexico, Colombia, Paraguay, Peru, Brazil, Philippines, Ukraine, and Iraq where their usage is not 
governed by the National Fire Protection Association.  These firefighters have little to no equipment so these items would be 
of great value to them.  

 
General Statute 160A-280 establishes that a city may donate to a nonprofit organization that is incorporated by (i) the 

United States, (ii) the District of Columbia, or (iii) one of the United States, any personal property, including supplies, 
materials, and equipment that the governing board deems to be surplus, obsolete or unused.  

  
Attached is a list of the surplus equipment. Any equipment that Global Gear Initiative does not accept will be disposed 

of by the City. 
  
The entity is organized in North Carolina as a non-profit corporation and is current and active with the Secretary of 

State. 
 
The Governing Board shall post a public notice at least 5 days prior to making any donation of surplus, obsolete or 

unused personal property. 
 
It was recommended the Council adopt the following entitled resolution to authorize the donation of surplus fire-

fighting equipment to the 501(c)(3) non-profit, Global Gear Initiative. 
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-48 “RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZATION FOR DONATION OF FIRE 
EQUIPMENT TO GLOBAL GEAR INIAITIVE, LLC” 

 
Operating Budget Amendment FY22-23. Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, 

Finance Director.   
 
Council adopted the FY22-23 annual operating budget on June 20, 2022.  



19 of 24 
 

  
Goldsboro Event Center 
Ms. Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation director, requested an appropriation of $47,000 for the repairs needed to the 

plumbing at the Goldsboro Event Center.  The expense will be funded with a reduction in outdoor pool repair expense in the 
Parks and Recreation department. 

 
Paramount 
Mr. Adam Twiss, Director of the Paramount Theater, has requested additional expense appropriations for part-time 

salaries, food and beverage for resale, electricity, and Paramount ticket sales for a total of $65,000.  This will be funded with 
additional revenues from ticket sales, food, beverage and alcohol sales, and investment income.  

 
Solid Waste 
Mr. Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director, requested an appropriation of $231,000 for the purchase of a new trash 

compactor for the transfer station to replace the existing compactor that is approximately 40 years old.  Mr. Fletcher does not 
have an estimate for the replacement of the compactor at this time, but expects it to be approximately $350,000.  He 
anticipates having lapsed funds in vehicle fuel and dumpster expense which will be reduced to fund the capital request. 

 
Police 
Chief Mike West has requested an additional appropriation to fund the upfit of police cars in the amount of $12,000.  

The expense appropriation will be funded with an appropriation of investment income. 
 
Non-recurring capital outlay 
The City has sold 10 properties in FY22-23 and collected $21,940 in proceeds.  On the jointly owned properties, the 

City is responsible for remitting one half of the proceeds to Wayne County.  It is necessary to appropriate the expense paid 
out in the amount of $10,000 which will be funded with proceeds from land sales. 

 
Stormwater Fund 
Mr. Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director, requested an appropriation of $63,300 for the purchase of a 2023 Ford F-

250 crew cab truck with service body to replace a truck that was recently totaled in a motor vehicle accident.  The expense 
will be funded with an increase in insurance proceeds of $15,000, an increase in surplus equipment sales of $30,100 and 
reduction of consultant fees of $18,200. 

 
Utility Fund - Finance – Utility Billing, Meter Services & Inventory 
An additional appropriation is needed to fund the final billing for the FY21 in the amount of $ 15,000 which was not 

addressed with the April 17th budget amendment.  This will be funded with an appropriation of investment interest. 
 
Utility Fund – Distribution and Collections 
An appropriation for repairs due to insurance claims is needed to cover the cost of damage done to a sewer line on Ash 

Street in the amount of $24,500.  The contractor took responsibility for the damage and the City has received payment for the 
damage.  The additional expenditure will be funded with an appropriation of insurance proceeds. 

 
Civic Center – Occupancy Tax 
An appropriation for the final lease purchase payment to Musco for the sports field lighting is necessary in the amount 

of $4,610.00.  This will be funded with an increase in investment interest. 
 
An appropriation for the anticipated fourth quarter payment to Wayne County is needed in the amount of $10,000.  

This will be funded with increased occupancy tax revenues. 
       
It was recommended that the City Council, by motion, adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the FY22-23 

Operating Budget for the General Fund, Stormwater Fund, Utility Fund and Occupancy Tax Fund. 
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-41“AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
FOR THE 2022-23 FISCAL YEAR” 

 
Purchase Order Approval for Telephone System Replacement. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by 

Scott Williams, IT Director.   
 
The City Council approved the expenditure in the current fiscal year budget. 
 
G.S. 143-129 requires formal bidding when the estimated expenditure of public money is greater than $90,000 for 

apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment, and further requires that the governing body must award the contract. The 
statute allows the governing body to delegate the authority to award contracts, reject bids, or readvertise bids on behalf of the 
unit to the manager or other employee. City Council authorized the City Manager or the Finance Director this authority on 
April 19, 2021, in RES 2021-30. 

 



20 of 24 
 

The procurement of the IT equipment was done through the Sourcewell Contract Number 022719-MBS as allowed by 
law. As per internal memorandum dated April 19, 2021, the City Manager and Finance Director stipulate that the delegated 
authority limit is $250,000, and contracts over this amount shall be presented to City Council for approval and award. The 
purchase order amount is $266,515.42 to ATCOM Business Technology.  

  
 It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution authorizing the award of IT equipment to 

ATCOM Business Technology in the amount of $266,515.42 as documented on Purchase Order P2301202. 
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-49 “RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PURCHASE ORDER FOR TELEPHONE SYSTEM 
REPLACEMENT” 

 
Departmental Monthly Reports. Accepted as information. The various departmental reports for March 2023 were 

submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that Council accept the reports as information.  
 

Consent Agenda Approval. Batts / Broadaway (5 Ayes, 1 Nay). 
 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Amending Chapter 117: Pushcart and Mobile Food Unit Vendors, of The City of Goldsboro’s Code of 

Ordinances. Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager. 
 
The City of Goldsboro recognizes the need to maintain correct descriptions of the City’s Code of Ordinances. Sections 

of the City Code of Ordinances related to Pushcarts and Mobile Food Units were revised in March 2007. Planning staff are 
revising the current application to clarify the requirements in the Code of Ordinances and to make the application user 
friendly.  

 
After a review of Chapter 117, city staff recommend revising the coverage area in Section 117.01, updating the 

definitions in 117.02, updating the application requirements in 117.03, and removing the bond or security deposit in Section 
117.04. Staff also recommends revising the allowed locations and the distance that pushcarts or mobile food units must be 
from any established restaurant, the right-of-way, private property, utility boxes, utility vaults, handicapped ramps, 
emergency call boxes, and fire hydrants.  The update also corrects administrative errors and shifts most authority to the City 
Manager’s designee.  

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance amending Chapter 117: Pushcart and Mobile 

Food Unit Vendors, of the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances. 
 
Mayor Ham asked for clarification regarding downtown events and permitting. Matthew Livingston, Assistant City 

Manager, stated that mobile food permits would go through the City Managers designee, and would require drawings to 
indicate their distance from established restaurants.  

 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to approve the Ordinance amending Chapter 117. The motion was seconded by 

Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried. Council adopted the following entitled Ordinance.  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-42“AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 117: PUSHCART AND MOBILE FOOD UNIT 
VENDORS OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES” 

 
Adoption of the Annual Operating Budget Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2023-24. Ordinance Adopted.  The item was 

presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
G.S. §159-13 requires that the governing board adopt a budget ordinance prior to July 1 to make appropriations and 

levy the taxes for the budget year.  Specifically, the Budget Ordinance establishes the property tax rate and any special taxes 
which may be levied during a fiscal year, such as the Special Downtown Municipal District Tax.  Other fees and charges 
levied by the City are also described within the contents of this document. 

 
 The major emphasis of a Budget Ordinance is to identify by fund the estimated revenues a municipality anticipates 

collecting during a fiscal year and to delineate by fund, department, and activity how these monies shall be appropriated.  
The Budget Ordinance may also describe any special authorizations granted to the Budget Officer.  

 
Passage of the Budget Ordinance is an annual occurrence.  No budget for the fiscal year can be implemented without 

the formal adoption of the provisions of this document.  The Budget Ordinance reflects the decisions made by the City 
Council during its budget reviews and discussion.  The Budget Ordinance assures compliance with all pertinent State Fiscal 
laws.  It must show an exact balance between revenues and expenditures.  If circumstances do not warrant the adoption of 
this document by the prescribed date, an interim budget must be approved by the governing body.  The specific 
authorizations granted to the Budget Officer are the same as were delegated in Fiscal Year 2022-23 that relate to the 



21 of 24 
 

reallocation of departmental appropriations, interdepartmental transfers, and interfund loans and transfers.  Also, the Finance 
Director and Assistant Finance Director are authorized to sign all pre-audit certifications for budgetary appropriations as 
required by G.S. 159-28.  

 
Council met with staff on several occasions to discuss the FY2023-24 recommended budget.  During those sessions, 

Council discussed increases to water and sewer rates by 4%, and a property tax increase of $0.05 from $.68 cents to $.73 
cents per $100 of valuation.  Increases in fees are also presented in the ordinance in Planning, Inspections, Engineering, 
Parks and Recreation, Goldsboro Event Center, Golf, Fire, and Public Works to address cost of service.  

 
REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS 
The proposed adopted budget presented here reflects the following revenue changes: 
• General Fund - The property tax rate will increase from $0.68 cents per $100 valuation to $0.73 cents per $100 

valuation.  The property tax was increased in FY2021-22 by 3 cents to help build fund balance and was the first 
property tax increase since FY2008-09.  The property tax for the Downtown Municipal Service District remains 
the same at $0.235 per $100 valuation. 

• Fund balance appropriation – There is an appropriation of fund balance of $1,500,000.00 presented in the proposed 
adopted budget. 

 
EXPENDITURE HIGHLIGHTS 
The proposed adopted budget presented here reflects the following expenditure highlights: 
 
General Fund-Agency Support 
An allocation of $100,000.00 has been established in Agency Support.  Council authorized the use of the United Way 

to coordinate and recommend the allocation of the agency support at a cost of 10% of the allocation amount.  When the 
United Way has completed its process and forwarded a recommended list of agency funding, staff will bring a budget 
amendment back to Council to approve the line item appropriation by agency.  Agency support in the amount of $20,000.00 
has been set aside as unallocated to comply with Senate Bill 473, Enhance Local Government Transparency Act, signed into 
law December 9, 2021.  Separate budget amendments will be presented for each agency as needed so Council serving on the 
board or commission will be able to recuse themselves from voting on the funding. 

 
 Position Allocation 
          FTE Count  

FY22-23 Adopted           482 
Elected Officials              7 
Added During FY23              0         
FY22-23 Adjusted Adopted         489   
  
FY23-24 Manager Recommended        486   
Elected Officials             7 
FY23-24 Proposed Adopted         493   

 
 A total of four full time positions were recommended.   

Human Resources Nurse 
Paramount Theater Technical Director 
Engineering  Administrative Assistant III 
Golf   Golf Course Maintenance Technician 

 
Permanent part-time employees will be reduced from 15 to 11. 
 
Salaries & Benefits 
Included in the FY2023-24 proposed adopted budget is a 2% cost of living adjustment for all full-time and permanent 

part-time employees that are employed on June 28, 2023. The raise will be effective on July 12, 2023 which begins the first 
full payroll in FY24 in biweekly payroll 15 which will be paid on July 28th.   

 
A net bonus of $400 (full-time) and $200 (permanent part-time) for eligible employees is budgeted and will be paid the 

week of Thanksgiving between biweekly 24 and 25. Employees who are on probation will receive half the amount.  
 
A merit raise of 1% has been budgeted for all full-time and permanent part-time employees to be effective on January 

10, 2024 to be paid with the first full paid payroll on January 26, 2024.  Eligibility will be in accordance with the personnel 
policy. 

 
The deferred compensation plan 401(k) remains at 5% for sworn officers and 4% for all other employees.  LGERS 

retirement contribution for employees remains at 6%, and employer contributions are set at 12.91% non-LEO and 14.24% LEO. 
 
Contingency 
Contingency appropriations are as follows: 
 
 



22 of 24 
 

Fund Amount 
General Fund 0 
Stormwater Fund 138,912 
Downtown District Fund 0 
Utility Fund 392,224 
Occupancy Tax Fund 37,886 
Total Contingency Appropriation 569,022 

  

 
As required by G.S. §159-11, the Budget Officer submitted to the governing board a balanced recommended budget with 

the required components on May 15, 2023, ahead of the statutory deadline of June 1, 2023.  The filing of the recommended 
budget was also properly advertised in the Goldsboro-News Argus on May 13, 2023, and an electronic copy of the budget was 
delivered to the City Clerk and made available online on the City’s website.  Further, the Council conducted a public hearing 
on June 5, 2023, at the 7:00 pm meeting, and conducted a budget work session on May 26th.  Finally, there has been at least 10 
days between the presentation of the recommended budget (May 15th) and the tentative adoption of the budget ordinance (June 
20th). 

Summary of FY2023-24 Budget 
 

 
A published copy of the final Adopted Budget for FY2023-24 will be produced and furnished to Council and available 

on our website as soon as possible. 
 
 It was recommended that City Council adopt the following entitled Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2023-24 

including the Manual of Fees and Charges. 
 
A motion was made by Councilman Batts to approve the Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2023-24, and 

seconded by Councilman Broadaway. Mayor Ham, Councilman Broadaway, Councilman Gaylor, and Councilman Batts 
voted in favor of the motion. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews and Councilwoman Jones voted against the motion. The motion 
passed 4-2. Council adopted the following entitled ordinance.  
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-43 “ANNUAL BUDGET ORDINANCE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024” 

 
Adoption of a Resolution for Utility Fees and Charges for FY2023-24. Resolution Adopted. The item was 

presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
In conjunction with the adoption of the FY2023-24 annual operating budget ordinance, Council shall establish utility 

rates and fees. 
  
The attached resolution incorporates a 4% increase in water and sewer rates effective for billings on or after August 1, 

2023.  Additional changes are detailed below.  These changes will be effective July 1, 2023. 
 

 
 

SUMMARY REVENUES APPROPRIATIONS

General Fund 49,622,612$               49,622,612                 
Stormwater Fund 1,934,200                   1,934,200                   
Utility Fund 23,409,993                 23,409,993                 
Downtown Special District Fund 102,683                     102,683                     
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,465,450                   1,465,450                   
General Fund Capital Reserve 1,000                         1,000                         
Utility Fund Capital Reserve 100,000                     100,000                     

TOTAL BUDGET FY23-24 76,635,938$            76,635,938$            

Fee Title Current Rate Proposed Rate

Late Fee $5.00 $5.00

Service Fee $15.00 $15.00

Reconnection Fee            
(Normal Hours) $10.00 $30.00

Reconnection Fee               (After 
Hours)  New $80.00

3/4" Water Tap $500.00

1" Water Tap $525.00

1 1/2" Water Tap $1,350.00

2" Water Tap $1,999.00

Above 2" Water Tap Cost + 10% Cost + 10%

4" Sewer Tap $600.00 $1,200.00

Larger than 4" Cost + 10%  Contractor

Water Meter Reading 
Device (MXU) MXU Replacement Fee $0.00 $175.00

Sewer Tap Fees

Water Service Fees 
for Disconnection 

Due to Non-payment

Water Tap Fees 

$1,200.00

$2,200.00



23 of 24 
 

It was recommended that City Council adopt the following entitled resolution incorporating the 4% increase in water 
and sewer rates to be in full force and effect on all billings on or after August 1, 2023, and other rate changes effective July 1, 
2023. 

 
A motion was made by Councilman Batts to approve the Resolution, and seconded by Councilman Gaylor. Mayor 

Ham, Councilman Broadaway, Councilman Gaylor, and Councilman Batts voted in favor of the motion. Mayor Pro Tem 
Matthews and Councilwoman Jones voted against the motion. The motion passed 4-2. Council adopted the following entitled 
resolution.  
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-50 “RESOLUTION AMENDING THE WATER RATES AND SANITARY SEWER RATES FOR 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 

 
City Manager’s Report. Tim Salmon thanked everyone that made the Juneteenth event happen. He also recognized 

the 4th Mission Group Change of Command, where Col. McElhaney turned over command to Col. Todd Walker. He thanked 
Col. McElhaney for her service and welcomed Col. Walker and his family.  

 
Ceremonial Documents. 
National PTSD Awareness Day Proclamation. Read by Mayor Ham. The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed June 

27, 2023 as NATIONAL PTSD AWARENESS DAY in the City of Goldsboro, and called upon our citizens and interested 
groups to observe the day with appropriate ceremonies and activities that promote awareness and understanding of PTSD. 

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilman Batts.  As always, I just want to say thank you to all department heads and especially all the city 

employees. Thank you for what you do every day.  
 
Councilman Gaylor. Just a quick thank you to Councilmember Polack for his years of service. When I was competing 

for the council vote, the appointment to District 5, he was the only person on council that voted against my opponent. Since 
that day we have grown to really love each other and to value each other’s input and opinions. There are very few people 
who I trust in a professional way. It's very few people who have trust as much in a professional way as Taj Polack and he 
will be missed. Ms. Matthews, it is the right thing to do, it's the right decision. Congratulations, you just made history. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews. I just want to encourage everybody to, when you get a chance, to keep at it and play full 

out. Even when you feel unseen and unheard, play full out. Even when you don't feel like you're making a difference play 
full out. Take it from me, play full out. Keep showing up at 100%. I do want to say to District 4 that we are fast approaching 
the end of this term, and as your representative and as a district together what we've done is, we have accomplished some of 
the things that we set out to do in the very beginning and there are a few more things that we are finishing up, but I just want 
to say let's keep at it and let's keep at it together. Thank you to the council. Mayor Ham, when I got elected I have always sat 
beside you and served alongside you on this council and I do really look forward to serving, to continue to serve beside you, 
as Mayor Pro Tem. So, thank you. 

 
Councilman Broadaway. I too would like to congratulate Councilwoman Matthews. Congratulations. I would also like 

to thank Councilman Polack for all that he has done. Over the 12 years I have been on this council, and those of us that have 
known it, Councilman Polack has gone through almost a transition, from a number of things, but he's always had his heart in 
the right place, he's always worked hard, and I'm going to miss him. This is a chair I hate to see get empty, because the guy 
really cares. He cares up and down his street, and he cares across town. We're going to miss him, and I just wish him the 
best, and I want him to continue to have the best of good fortune. Thank you. 

 
Councilwoman Jones. First, I want to say best wishes to Mr. Polack. I know that when I first was appointed, he wasn't 

really sure about me, but we have really worked through some differences, and we built a good relationship. That's what it's 
all about you know, to get to really know a person. So, I am going to miss him. I also would like to say congratulations to 
you young lady. You deserve it, you've worked very hard, and I know that you will do a good job. I also would like to 
commend the city policemen for Juneteenth; it was a wonderful event, very well organized. I'm glad that there were no 
casualties. It was just really wonderful, I just can't stop saying enough about it, it was just really great. I would like to also 
thank this council for allowing me to have the opportunity to be a part of you. To see the unity that it has come to, and I think 
we work together well. Just thank you. 

 
Mayor Ham. Let me also say that, thank you for all the people that participated in the Juneteenth event this weekend. I 

was down there; we had a great turn out; lots of vendors were there on the street. The weather was pretty decent, and as far as 
I know everyone had a great time. So, thank you for all those that participated. I want to thank the council tonight. We've 
approved a budget; the largest budget I think that we've had during my time probably. There's a lot of things that were 
funded, there's some things that were not funded, and there were a lot of discussion as I've said before about this with staff 
and department heads, but we have a budget that I think is well thought out and certainly planned and discussed. So thank 
you for your support on that tonight. Again, let me congratulate our new Mayor Pro Tem, and we will work together 
harmoniously. I want to save my last comments for saying something about our outgoing Mayor Pro Tem. I want to thank 
Councilman and Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack for his service to the residents of the 3rd district, as well as all citizens of 
Goldsboro. Mayor Pro Tem Polack has distinguished himself while serving on the Goldsboro City Council for 3 and a half 
years through his attendance to regular and special called meetings, which important and necessary business was addressed 
and acted on. When called upon to act in my absence, he did so with confidence and authority. His forthright and articulate 



o  

b  

o

0

o

y

3

0

an

U

o ) 

Q, 

o

C

cd

Ocd
Ucn

Y

cd ^ 

c op• 

U • 

ami

p

0[ 

40

c

0

U

10

W

o

3

o

c7

U

3

ul

bo

bA

U

S]. 

O

o

b

Zo

C

o

0

cd

y

3

3

a

CIS

a ` 

o

GO

uo
0a (
D ° 

0

aj

m

u

C

U

cz , 

y

p

O

cz " 

tai' 

C/

i

O

V)
i

fi

t° 

3 > 

En
0

o -

o

bp °

o, 

N

C

CZ

on

U ° 

ru-' 

0

o

0

0

N

0

0

ti0x

a UUN



MN0N

C4

a

o  

El
x

a) 

o

F

r., 

N

i

o 

0

b

bD
c 

0 .

o

a

i

Oca
Cd

Z

O

M

M

a) 

cd

Nvs
C 

3 ` ! > 

O

1.  

O

U

w

U

O

ti _

O

C,

j

O

DC779
C,

3ca
on ;

5

co

0

cz

z

z

a " 

m

c 

p

m

an

O

c 

O

o

Nyy11" 
1M
I

ai)

y ( 

O

tom, 

x

x

Q

U

o

O

cs, 

N

0

o

xo

0 

Ml

0

00  

0

0

0

Y

o

Y

C7

b

is

0

o

0

0

0

o

U

3

as

rn - 

cz

Q

O

o

o

O

o

o

a' 

A

Uzx
x

UUUU
U

ati'(

v

GO

0

y. . 

U

cU

o

P4

ani

o

N

pt

UU
V

ai

N

o

N

0

co

U

cz

0

a

U

O

0

0

Q) z

on

a) 

O

0m

o

En0

w

Cl

ani

O

U

o

y

cd

cz

Ui
U

N

O

o >, 

U

a, 

0. 

n

0

3

0rl
3

Q
o

C

o

o
o

ti

C40

w

o

n

N" 

M

W

N06.
w

O

a) 

U

On

p

y0

L7

bA

YO

c" 

M

U

cz

z

a) 

bA

U

bA

O

O

o

0

a

v

o

3

U

a 

o

0

C) 

U

0
I

o 

o
tt 

o

ami

0. 

d

o

P

0

3

U

O

C

o

Q) 

o

o

H

U

0

cz

GG • 

a

N

0

co

U

cz

a

U

Item A2

http://www.westoakchoice.com/


Ell23

a0I

a)/ 

o  R

IL

R

m `

f

t

R«. 

Ke

Q

pR

q

LLJ

S  

S

OmI

to
to

2 

m

e

r*

4

w

a)/ 

9

k

o

S

2

to

0

f

2

to

2 

m

e

k

oma. 

k

m

r
2

E

2

S

k

7

7

m° 

o

c

k

ff

0

Co

to

C

fjE
0) 

k:§/ 

a

e

7  

0

2   

7

2

k

a

2

0--

aco

o

o

J$ 

CL

6

a

w$ 

E

2

62a o

a 

a

m- 

oma
to

a> 

cu0

fm
to

2%

k

0otj

0-

00
0-

0

o

E

ko

o

o

e£

0

So§ 
m

20

2\$%

0k/ 

E 

A2> 
G

to .

o

M. 

0

2

kf

f $ 

U

E

2

k' 

2$ 

E

0: 

2

az

R2: 

WSJ

Q  : 

2

r*

4

w



Owca) E0N

mL

NO

s

E

m

O0.

10- 

A

oA
i

m

IzT

m

10) (

D

Nm

smc)
P

O

CL

y

O

v

Uc

r
c) 

N

L

d

d> 

N

V

U

t

C

w

Na

a) 

y

a

s

7

N

N

p

to

O

in ) 

0

a

a) 

x

ns

G

w3

t

yo

Ec= 

r

o

rno> 

s

Q.

3

o

r- N

3 

cu

ami

rn

O

d

rn

c

E

Z

N

NO

M

C

X) 

C.

0

0

ac° 
o

0

0

s

aaVi

oLU

Mn

o° 

U

p

Oa
L

O

t

C

N

c

wy0N
0)

CD

0)

N

a) ` 

2

y

a

c

U

0

y

N

Z

d

7 .

3

t

fl

w

Q

Q

00

U

L •

o

a

10

C

cp

a) 

V > 

N

t

O

a) 

ns

a

s

O

V

L

N

C> 

U£ 

O

N

a) 

M

ai

Q

Nc . 

0

c

r

UL
O

c •' 

C) '

T

G .

L. 

O

O

N'  

Z

m

a~ 

o

m

3

tm

o,

m  

ccc

oCL

v .: 

c° 

C

O

C

a) 

c

d

3

y- 

O

r

iO
03

te

W-

0

sU

e)'>, 

a3

a) 

o

72

c

o

53u1.
G

o QEaa
W

m.

S

t° 

Ho

OU
Q.

9

A

A

A

A

IzT



E

c

0

U) &/ £ 

E>

2£ oX2o % 

LLI

2

2

0

f

2

2

0® 

R # 

IL

832 = 
o

f . E0ƒ o _  

2

a § 

a
0

k

2

0 § 

k

34

LU

2/

0

2$ _¢

23

0.

0) 

a

2$ ,/ 

kk =~® °

ca

o

k

E

2© 

g$ 

f

uAc

mg23

e

e

a

k2

kE
b

kQ"
R/ 

m

R

a

E

k

k{ 

c

2 § 

0-

0

2

S

o

2

Bc

7

cD

0-

0

E

0) 

0S &

2# 

aa'
a

2

S

2

q § 

E

5-

6

W

m

kE0
E> 

CD

a

k

5MA
2

E

w

G

2ƒ 

ke

o

n

2cu

o

LL7
o

U) 

Ef
O

4

2

0

2

2

CLo
O

a

E

CLZ

2

2

2

E

z

a. 

m

@

o

d

0

k - 

U

jj

o

5

E

LU

kAn3S$ 

7

z

m

2§ 

I

J(

DL.
L

d

CN

m
T

Lo

3f

AM
U) 

tea_ 

W

m



vCOYU
IOL

a) 

E 

as
r- 0am

0 (

DN

O

z

a

D

3

NCN

E

Q

3

m

h

a) o

0La) 

0

V

O

y

O

w

o

0

swoOZwa) 

cu
a) 

a) 

0

U

N

C

Nm
O

3

U

m

a) 

v

o

a

m

O

a) 

LX

y

C

aL

N

C

0, 

C

a) 

m -'

C
v

r .

o

o

m

8M

a

0 '

D

a) (

D

cn

L

m

M

m

3

c

G

fa

Q . 

f` 

00 >' 

3

D1

O

O

a3 — 

L

o

c

L

a) > 330
cc

3

t

a) 

a) 

N

C

L

L

C

0

C

a) 

p

cu 0U '

O

O

w

L > 

C

N

O

C

L

L> 

O

as

3

o

Uto

3

z

C

N

U

Dayi > 

t

C

M

X

C _ 

0

U

o

Y

y

as

o

c 

c

Q

r

3

a

N

3a) 
m — 

a

m

N

C (

0

UZ
cm

Y

N

C := 

6

o

N

c

w

p

y

m

a) 

10

N - 

ccim

CD>>y

C

7

C

E

C

a>

r

Q

Q

L

N

M

rt

In

CO
t- 

n

00

Ict

0aUwaWwDLLZ

Moss

w

ME

7

Ix

7• 

DU

UY

zin

p

n

t+ 

NW

tn

00

Ict



v

ik
0 

oo
a2

c :

3
c § a%% 

21eBkEEf 

A

0:

3IJ7
G

o0)

2

E§ 

Noe\ 2«

gcl. 

cCL
kf

k

2

f

t

2\ 

M £ 

I © 

m(

a_ 

a

k

m

d

a) 

g

Ln



d

mom

2laalls
e,—, 

qIJONCFJ

d`

A~ 

C__ 
a

y 

yE§ 

k

k

k

tk

j

o

R

vS

k $

k

k\ 

k

m

o

f

I

f

k/ $/ 

a? 

R

2

m® «

n

k

4} 

wyw
o2z

w

w

4

00QLU

e
e

N

R

I

y 

yE§ 

k

k

k

tk

j

o

R

vS

k $

k

k\ 

k

m

o

f

I

f

k/ $/ 

a? 

R

m: 

m® «

n

k

4} 

w

w

4

N

R



L3dtCm
4.

1IAmCL
Q! us tVIN

H
H
mOMOS

C

E

M

r -

I

r - 



k $(

D

Q2

C

22 Iy33
E2

CO

r - 

to

c' 

IR'

WO

f

f

2

u

0

2—

a) 

02:

g

0) .:= r£

@22

C,

xowzzaf

S

M

k

0CL
c ' 

0

0c

S

k20

k

c

c

cu

t

ui

2

DG

@2

kk
@

k

0

k

c

0

00
m

2

av

@© 

@

LLm 

2

2

a 

I

a

CL

@

k` 

k

k0f

@

co

00

m• 

e

CD

k

k

2

E

k

7

E

CU
C

o

0

o

o

o

e % 

f

ca

k

c

k

k

k

3

KcG2: 

E 

3

I/«< 

c#

Ia) 

k

k% 

f

d § 

c

ca

k

co» 

2§

2

k0
k\ 

j8k

k $(

DQ2

C

22 Iy33E2

CO

r - 

to

c' 

IR'
WO

f

f

2

u

0

2—

a) 

02:

g

0) .:= r£

@22

C,

x

owzzaf

S

M



r, e

J(ƒ 

R

0

6E§ 0C 
no

0

09966

f

ko0o
2

c

2

U) 

0m. 

I

o

c ' $Kc

7§ 

k

om 
@ & 

K

1=

0

2c
f
C, 

Mh

@E2tf2E32oa

x4) 

E

k

e

0-

4

E

o

E

k

2

k

2kak

a

ItEo

2

M0> a

0

o

a

2

E

m0-
0

x

a) 

dk{ 

o  

m

fk@2

a§/ 

o

o

c

r, 

e

Do

W

R

0

CL

0

ff

E S

@

c

2

D 

I

c ' $Kc

e

k

1=

0

Mh

x4) 

E

e

E

o

E

k

2

k

to

a) § 

2

7

0

D

E

m0-
0

x

a) 

o  

a§/ 

o

o

c
C) 

k

k

2

U-) 

d

Do

W



qlxP

0Ek020

2: 0m  

c

E

a

6

0f

G D

U) 

Z

am
M

8

G

02

m

Cd

f4) 
2

R&£ 

0 /\ 

2

0 $ 

6

o ƒ  

a « 

2

0 § 

2 § \ 

o

e

o

e = 

2

0

0

0% 

0

O\ 

0\ 

k / 

a. 

a

E

E

E

k

ca

ca

2 > ccom

ca) 7

f

k

k

k

2 § 

2

m

3: m

a: 

kD ° 

2

D

o

c

22 

0

E

t £ > 

k

2

2

CL

2.

0

W

L)'

a

c

7\ 

7

2§ 

0) 

m

m2: 

k7

2 '

a) 

m = 

g

0

J/ 

E

0@

c

c£ 

R

2

m\ 

ago
ck

e

2

E § 

k

R

@

E

c

q

0w



An

k ) 

c: 

e

Cl. k

o

kms
E/ 

0

a) 

0

E

Co

v $ 

t

4)\

C

k/ 

60 . 0

e0

X22 ƒ
E

CoM4)

24) §/ X40
2\ 

E

Gfma

k3:
U

w

kO

k

2

EM

b

e
r'

4

q

ew

D

f

offa) 

f

2k 

20k
7k

kd

EE/ o-

k

k

2tt
f

0

7

E

m 

k

0

K

0

kc
k# 

0k2\
E

k

kk

2

00

Ra

823
o

F -

Z

k

2

7 ° 

a

w

w

j22%
i

q

ew



to _ • •

ry

ui

O 

CLXW 

iEl

O

LL

aou
Z

t

0

N{} 

C

0

0

Z

C

WaN ...,

sin ` 

MN

oaogsp
og

umo;

uMoa

z

r " 

pp

v

Q _ 

ci

f

C

w

p

0

w

f

u

Ems_ 

ILL

f

0' 

LU

Z

ui

0

v"Z, LU

d' N

N
r -
I



Qm0

LnN

rAOWIL

N / 

0

1\ 

0

WWLLQ

a

t3O *- 

O

vi

Q

C9aN

z

O

Q

OQtO

ZW
F" 

m

zLu

ZOZ

UN

o

O

U)

Nd

wI

vI

Ma
LON

M
r -
I



000o

k  E  

k

m

E \ 

k

k

E

7 \ 

c

7k

k >\

2

f

m

t - 

cCo

k

a)

6

k

E \/

o

12
2

2

a. — — 

k

m

d

6

w

C

r - r'
4

N

w

k\

t

U) 

2

2

k2

IS

t0

a

k

22

A

c

m75

M
C'. 

E

0+ 

tk

2

kf2

k

E

E

4

z

2

2£ 

e- a» 

2\ 

2

LU

0

2

m

c

e= 

o

w£ 

e

k

M

o

E

E

S

0

k

c

m

f.. o

o

0

o_ 

m

o

cm

0

0

k

k

k

zui

R

2

a

N

w



00

0k\ 

c

0.

02

o

EaEad
a

0

c00k
0a

k

@

q

Lr) e

0

kk

vt

LMC
c

0Z. 

e2

c

20

2

0

f

m

e

2\ 

cm%§ 

77

20) 2

5— 

20

3 (

D

0 

0

0 > 

0%- : 

o

2& 

e

0
2

022

CL

4)® 

m

Co

m

2

2

w

E

E

f2

f

2

m

c0

k\ 

to

0

0 ƒ

k

G2

20
0= -

0

@2
a

L

2

3

c

o

O

c

d

2

q

Lr) 
e



CCL  

C

Cm

Q

E

O

f0

OC > 
E

0E

N

O

O

O

2 > 

2

z

m -

0

U "

O

N
Uccaa5

N

O

U

d

C

Q

a) 

f

U

6

O

O

Q

E

L

a> 

N

w- 

O

M

N

a) 

O

t

O

V ` 

N

O

d

z

a

z

d 

a

U

D

a) 

Nm

to

aa yG

n. a

d

i

O  cLO

G

a

c

O

Qu

G

o

c

0

3

Q

0ti

O

a, v

O

a

r

O

U

LO

G1Q

fo

00

4J
O

OL

a) 

OL

0M
L

o

s

j

en

p'

G

u

Q

C

N

a) 

a

00

N

C

m

O

G

a

Q> 

i

2

CT

v

U  

Nm

to



E

E

k

k/

i© 

X0-
0

t#= crw
6o

Ecn
0==

o

00%— 
M

kk
k

t § 

2

J

o.

a)

mk
oma: 

m

0

co772ƒ
2

t

022omcmo3m'

x

CL

0kkE
E

m2& 728
E
@

om£
@£ 

D

J = 

E £ £ 

m

0

0

0

f £ o 

5

I £

o

k

k

U) 

q 

2

f

f

2

G (

D2f/: 

k) 72

k

S

k

k

2 = 

2

0

c =

m

i

fE

k

c2
a» 

22 £ §

2

a

2k ® 

2

f

0

Ef

2

D

B

0

2

R

2

K' 

k

EE »

a

5 $ ® 

k

f

t %

foc

mc

J & / 

c

3

z0

q

en

w

0

Z

o.

I

E

o

C

2

k] 

a ƒ 2

2

E§ 

2

Z} 

a

o £ g

o

i

pvo

k

f& 

k

L

7

x3: 

en

w



V1m

NO

C

a) 

CL

a

N

3

T

ti

e

y

C

m

0 `¢ 

e

c

C

o (

D

y0

cm

C

Gv1

a

s

U) 

y

0

Q

L

C

E

o

m

d
c

o

C

m

O

O,

G

O

H

a) '

y

w

U •- 

y

O

O

N

g

A

O

a) 

p

2,

n

o

C3

y0

m

WE

r

O

vo

gN

m 

ai

mac

r

mau, 

L

a+ 

3

b

ai

FF

va) 

w01

U) 

CL

a)= 

L

m

E

w

3

m

C, 

3

Nt

C

3

a °' 

b
E ` 

0

L.

7

aLL

U

O

i

c3

n

o

c

m` 

w

A

m

t

a

Rt

E

o

0

2

RtE _

c  

m

r -

N

E

Lm

t

b

c

Md
O

y

N

c

N

o

c

i

E

y

q

i

V

a

a

T T

N

o

Z

N

O

o

O

T

t, 

0

3

0

m (

D

O

O

C

m

E

C; 

C

m

o 

gc
C .'. 

d

m

j

A

O

a  

a

gmo<< 

k

a7

L

s

0.

0

E

m

3

0= m

m

N

m

c

rnm

m

c 

z

a) "

a

c

a

rno

ao

t

Nd

E

n

t

r

L

V

E

w

C

w

3

z° 

A

o

u> 

m

E

r .

c

o % 

V1m

t0
M

00

NO

C

a) 

a

N

T

ti

L

m

C

m

e

c

C

o (

D

y0

30

a

U) 

y

0

Q

L

C

r

o

C

m

O

O,

G

O

H

a) '

y

w

U •- 

y

O

O

N

A

O

a) 

p

2,

n

o

C3

y0

m

WE

vo

m 

ai

mac

rn

r

mau, 

L

a+ 

3

o

D

aE.
m

23)

d

m

O

m

N— 

C

ai

FF

v
a) 

w
01

U) 

CL

a)= 

L

m

E

w

3

m

C, 

3

Nt

C

0

L.

7

aLL

U

O

i

o

N

C

C

aNE0 -

0 

CL
r -

N

E

Lm

c

MddO`
OCC ,

N

m

La) 

L> , 

U

a) 

NLQ. O

M

o

c

0

3

0

m (

D

O

O

C

m

E

N

a

in

o

a7

L

s

0.

0

E

m

3

0= m

m

N

m

c

rnm

m

c 

z

a) "

a

c

a

rno

ao

x° 

aa) 

c

C'

c

t

r

L

w

mLvcLm
o0

o

u> 

c • O

y

m

3

r

w

t

0

d 

m

o

C

O> 

E

E

C

Z

H

c

c

z

o

Q

om

U

O

t0
M

00



nM

0E

oL

m

a

E

h

m

wc

N

p

ow

m
O

a

O

tT

tLj > 

N 

tT

N

mLtL
V

m`. m

U

m.

c

t

CL (

D3o0> 

E

m`

cmc

m

o. 

m

L

oc

C

CO

3O

Oc

y

N

LLQ

U

m

v) 

N

C

O

O

C

O

C

K

N

O

OL

m

V

pL

O

L

LN

a

O

o

N

O

a) 

c

E

3

O

t

U
CO

c

E

m

O• 

U

2) 

C

3

m

p

0

N4) 

3

OL

mw
E-- 

v_ 

F

O

CY

N

d

E

N 

O

p,

CO

c

O

U) 

0

m

XE

mmoo
D

CU) 

N

rn

0
m

rO

O

CO

o ) 

cE i

OOm
E

mC' 
O

E2L
dU

C

M- 

N

O

a

y

E

0) d

UO

N

p ' 

O

N

N

O

C

C

O

O

L

N- 

0

0L •., 
rol

C

N" 
N

p

3

U

O

om

0

N

w

pOL

y

p

m

u1

0

L. 

0

t

O

C3m° 

o= w

a.: 

to

o) '

CmoaL3pca

Z. 

N3

U

O

a•

a

2

L

3

U

U .

Lm-. 

N

U

O

t' 

L

O

y

U

o' 

3

N

E

0>

M

a

m

D

Ew_ 
o

C

O- 

a

7

ve0

U- 

D§

0) 

3

cc
m

N

o

w

CL
o

5— 

O

N

m> ma

p) 

O

c

m

E

OCf

m

m

m

C • 

m

o

W

m

U' 

6

rpA

U

w

j

p` 

0

N

a

O

f6

w

C

0

t0

N-. .

N, 

o

c

c

a

v

aNi

O) 

N

N

o

0

E

t

0 '

p

C

C

c

aC

Eo

p= 

Oa

O

O

y 

3

w

m

H
e

m

I

U

Q

Z

o

m >' 

0

Q

N

NHY.
E

Q

m

U

w

nM

W
M

rn

h

O

ow

m
O

mC

tT

N

0

a

m

m

o

U

L

O

r

U

N

mc

Oc

y

N

N

C

O

Oo
No

l:

r• 

m

V

O

C
r- 

0O

O

t

U
CO

d

O

0.- wL

3

OLL
U

a

to

0) 

N

E

a

C

c

E

t. 

o

N

rn

0p

O

CO

N

N

dU

C

M- 

N

0

O

CT

m

C

O

o

v

N

om
om

a

m

u1

0

L. 

0

t

L

a

U

U

Z. 

N3

LU

U .

Lm-. 

N

O

N

ve0

U- 

m' 

C

cc
m

N

m

C

UQ=L

0`, N

0U

O

w,

Cor- 
C

N

N

U) 

3N
O

o

0

E

3

vC

N

U

O

rmt

Tm

m

as
a> 

MmmOc
p

C

C

UCD
N

431

aNZ

w

CC

53

L

6

3—

oto CL

Ln

O

C
O

m

75

O ' 

ONN
y

cu

V

O

L

w

0

Corn
W

OZ

OZ

LL

ri

r- 

U) 

Ci

W

c

cm

N

W
M

rn



k4

LL

f $ 

2

Qi/ 
Cl) 

cc

22

q2
2

me

a

m

Of

j

0 / 

co

0

0

o

U 

m

CL

uj

Q) 

k

kk

C #

A

j

kC

a

2 % 

a

a: 

U) 

c

2t

e

e

o

C'

4

a

ci

k4

cC

f $ 

2

Qi/ 

22

q2

0)$ 

k

2

me

a

m

Of

co

f

0

o

U 

CL

toS

k

k

a

2 % 

to
e

m

e

omCL

a

b

2

g

0

t

2

2

c

t

o

C

E

m

f

m

I

c

k

t

o

a- 

m

m

2

2

k

6

d

2

f

2

q

9

v



20220i

0EEk@  k

kk

E : 

01: t20k  

0

d / 

k 

0

k

7 \ k

2

c

@

L

o

O £ 

6

2

k

6

d

6

Q

ww

0k

00

0)

0k

i

D

2

c: 

oJ

o2
o

0§ 

m

o

2

02cc

3

CD/ 

D

2

Co

k

k

2

E

k

f

0

k

o 

fE

q2

777
22

0

w

22

0

2

k

E% 

k

6

d

J

k

b

Q

ww



LO
N

ai

C

L

Q

m

U

6

w

MV

114- 

NN

m

c

O

4

O

c

o

a) 

N

NO

y

Oa

y

7

N

C3.

L

O

Y

O

t

O

fN

ap U

O

ma

C

C

CL) 

3

a

0

CN

O

O

C 

L

C

O

O

O

N

M

a7

y

N

E

E

j7

Orn
y

0

3

y

0

0

rn

rn

N

m

O

c

N

L >

1

N

a

0

c

a 

c''

m

c
a 

Oto
o

N > 

m

c

3

c

oL

N

L

N

Z

N

C

O

O

L

t0

0O

3N
O

E

rn

L

N= 

m

4) " 

v_) 

N

N

C
C

3

c

C

U

O

V

a> - 

x

Z- N- 

a) 

O

O

N

CL
N

C

cc(
D

2

X 0

N

O

tr

mmv

D

a) 

3

O

O

OaL+ 

L

y

a

3

C

O

NN

a) '

D

Y

O

F. 

C

Nom' 

x

O0

Ow
O

O

O

O

LS. 

O

r

o0 =

3

O

a)' 

O

C

O

L

fl.

E

ON

o)

V

rL-.

L

C

0

Qa
a

p

O _

N

N

2

O

V

N (

D

N

Lin
a) 

y

E

N

N

L

j

a) 

N (

D

N

O

p

tm

a) 

t -%

u

y

CO

a)

m

a

Z

v

O
N

Q

cao

c

Q

oo

U

0

2

N

O

114- 

NN



Ln

sLOy

OO

s

0

C

lD

Q

C

V

X

N

L

N

3

N

On

N

4 

o

r

E

Qs
W

v

L

Q

A
Jecm

U

N` 

X

U

U

O

E `

5

0

c

o

c

NC' 

0

wc

m

U00

U

N

Vi

N

N

E

OL

7

L

N

O

a

E

F

O

E

p .> 

N

N

CN
N

UO

E

O

U

Q1

0

OO

O

N

y

C

O

N

c

L

7

C

O

O

N

O

U

O

00

cn

O

N

Ocu> s
w

c

OO

Q

c

y

m

C 

N

Ep .

0

oQ

N

C

X0
0

U

O  

O

@

C

y

0

Y

O

Y

E

U

Y

O

0

d

tO

Z

N

U

U

O

Oc.>_ 

f0O
a ° 

o

Co

Cl. 

p

ca

cn

C.

0

c

Z

O

U

o

N

N

Ln

IM

mN

sLOy

OO

sW
4 

W

bb

Qs

W

v

L

Q

AJecm

IM

mN



2

a)

f

E

0

k

7

f

m2

0

2

3

2 ® 

2§/

f

j

00
4) - 

E2

r

J/ 

E

77

b% 

20

m

e% 

M

o

0 

a 

0

M

mE

f

km

a0

0£& 

0

o- 

7

X

d

kD

E» 

k

t

M

02

2 ° 

2£ 

2

2+ 

0

u

E

77

o

ca) 

o

E

0

m0)/

2

k

CL

CL

mf0< 

r- 

t

k0

kkk/ 

a) cO

222§

2

a) 

2f

k

SCD

ca7

Gk

a£

Cc_

o\

f

20co

E' 

a, 

t

f2

MLS/ 

2

2

a) 

0

co

2

2

co

c

E

0- 

k

f

D

f

o

0
E

CL

f

2ƒ 

ka

kkƒ§ 

k// 

fk}

0

0

0

k\

0

rD \=\ 

2

ca

E \ 

k \ 

A

2  

m

C

m

J% 

0

k

6

d

6

k\\ 

e8&

eE£ 

2

2

0

m2

f

m

2

3m

j

00

4) - 

r

E

2

75

0

m

0

0

Ma0

0£& 

X

k

2

k

D

E» 

k

k

M

02

2 ° 

2£ 

f

0

0f

m0)/

2

Et

E_

oama) 
222§

2

@£

a

a) 

2f

SCD

a£

Cc_

o\

f

o

m

CL
2

e- 

2££ 

2

f

c. 

m

a

3

E

0- 

a) 

E

o

m

E

2

e

K

o# 

fk}

02

Eƒƒ

kms

J% 

k

t

f

0\ 

f

0

o

o

e8&

eE£ 

a/ 

k

m

d

o

RtC14



r: < 

E

Ko

uj

t § 

S

0

E

k

E2

7

LC

aa) 
k 0— 

kmu
R

u

0

k

k

a

ka

x 

8

La

Bf
o

Ulm, 

X0)
07

k

7{ f

k

20CL

2; 

c
k/

zz- 

m. 

n

o<

Cdd

7

J

0 

ak

E

K
o

S

0

E

E2

7

LC

o

u

0

k

k

a

ka

x 

k

Lak2; 

o

m. 

7

J

ak

o

ci

0

@



0

k

2 \ 

E

f

e £ 

z> 

a

L) 

o

kk% 

c

E ® 

o

Co

28

0£ 

ow

CL2

CL (

D

C_ 

E

2: 

e8

E2

2 =

0

3a $« E \ 

2 /ƒ 

g@
t § $ $ CL

CLk8§ 

k

0\ 

t

@

EE

e
Ln

E

E

0E

a

E

n

0> 

k

0

f

0

u

k

46

k

k

E

o

a

E

k

mo \ 

2

2

2

cu

2

o

f

La

g

I

wk

k

J

2

k

6

d

6

w

LL

eLn



m0
w

E

0E
a

m

e



m

r14

Ik

r14



mNONnn

Lr) 

W

m

0OL

P

C  o  a

ycm
w

o

con

c

o

3

E

o

Ec0

O

t % OT

W

m



m0CN n

k

s! 

f

Ef

m

k

s! 

f

EE

m



wm

k° 
tEi

wm

S

Ln

k° 
t

t2E
i

S

Ln



2

R

rzrz

7E ! . 

r

i] 

i

2

R

2

R



m0n

r- 

of ` 

r- r- 



IR



k 

I} 

il, 

CY

I

k 

I} 

il, 

o$ 

I



3

3

Ce

7

i| 

3

3

Ce



q0

Q

q

i

7•` 

21

Q

q



m0

2
2

E

q

kCL

E

q



m0

Ln
r1i

f§ 

r ){ - 

2  

Ln
r1i

z

q

E

a

z

q



mNn

k







Item C



Item D



P a g e  1 | 3 

Item _______ 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
JULY 17, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING & FINAL ACTION 
Z-10-23 Meares Bluff Village (Residential 20 A to Residential 6 CZ) – North of 
US 70 on the east side of N NC 111 (Meares Bluff Subdivision) 

ADDRESS: Pickens Dr. & N NC 111 

PARCEL #: 3611048404 & 3601933033 

OWNER/APPLICANT: CE2, LLC 

BACKGROUND: The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning from the Residential 20 
Agriculture Zoning District to the Residential 6 (R-6) Conditional Zoning District. 
The purpose of the Residential 6 (R-6) Conditional Zoning District is to 
accommodate both single and multi-family residential uses and to prohibit all 
activities of a commercial nature.  

Access: Pickens Dr. 

Area: 22.4 acres 

Single-Family lots: 79 (3 phase construction) 

Phase A – 35 

Phase B – 21 

Phase C - 23 

SURROUNDING 
ZONING:   North: Residential 20 Agriculture 

   South: Residential 20 Agriculture 
East: Residential 20 Agriculture 
West: Residential 16 & Residential 20 Agriculture 

Existing Use:  The properties are currently vacant. 

Land Use Plan:  The City’s Land Use Plan locates these parcels within the Low-
Density Residential designation. 

Low-Density Residential: This designation is intended to locate in areas where 
development pressures are the least.  

The Residential 6 (R-6) Conditional Zoning District is not identified as a 
corresponding district for the Low-Density Residential land use designation. The 

E

Continued to  
8/7/23 Meeting















ORDINANCE NO. 2023 – 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE LAND 
USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the City 

Council at a regular meeting held in the City Council Chambers, 214 N. Center St. in the Historic City 
Hall building, on Monday, July 17, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., for the purpose of considering and discussing the 
passing of an ordinance amending the Official Zoning Map and the Comprehensive Land Use Map of the 
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, and the Planning Commission heard the item on Monday, June 26, 
2023; and 

WHEREAS, CE2, LLC has submitted a petition to rezone Tax Parcels 3611048404 and 3601933033 
from the Residential 20 Agriculture Zoning District to a Residential 6 Conditional Zoning District; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the proposed conditional 

rezoning area in the Low-Density Residential land use designation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed Residential 6 Conditional Zoning District is inconsistent with the Low-

Density Residential land use designation; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Residential 6 Conditional Zoning District is designed to accommodate both single-

family residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this conditional rezoning is to establish a residential planned unit 

development to allow for 79 single-family lots, built out in three phases; and 
 
WHEREAS, this type of development would not be out of character with the  residential use of the 

surrounding area; and 
 
WHEREAS, this development would aid in satisfying the growing demand for housing in the City of 

Goldsboro; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2008 CE2, LLC purchased sewer capacity in anticipation of for future development 

and the availability of water and sewer to the parcels supports high-density development; and   
 
WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning request is reasonable and, in the public’s best interest since the 

proposed rezoning classification will not impair or injure the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
public; and 

 
WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation of the 

Planning Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it advisable and for the best 
interest of the City and those residing within its zoning jurisdiction that the Official Zoning Map and 
Comprehensive Land Use Map of the City of Goldsboro be amended as herein below set forth. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 

Carolina: 
1. That the Official Zoning Map and Comprehensive Land Use Map of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 

be and the same is hereby amended by changing: 

From Residential 20 Agriculture to the Residential 6 Conditional Zoning District 

From the Low-Density Residential Land Use Map designation to the High-Density 
Residential designation. 

Z-10-23 Meares Bluff Village (Residential 20 Agriculture to Residential 6 Conditional 
Zoning District) 

Wayne County Tax Identification Number: 3611048404 and 3601933033 

2. The above amendment is effective upon the adoption of this Ordinance.  
 

Adopted this 17th day of July, 2023. 
 

___________________________   
David Ham, Mayor 

Attested by: 
 
______________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023 - 
 

AN ORDINANCE DENYING AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE 
LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the City 

Council at a regular meeting held in the City Council Chambers, 214 N. Center St. in the Historic City 
Hall building, on Monday, July 17, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., for the purpose of considering and discussing the 
passing of an ordinance amending the Official Zoning Map and the Comprehensive Land Use Map of the 
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, and the Planning Commission heard the item on Monday, June 26, 
2023; and 

WHEREAS, CE2, LLC has submitted a petition to rezone Tax Parcels 
3611048404 and 3601933033 from the Residential 20 Agriculture Zoning District to a Residential 6 
Conditional Zoning District; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the proposed 
conditional rezoning area in the Low-Density Residential land use designation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Residential 6 Conditional Zoning District is inconsistent with the Low-

Density Residential land use designation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed conditional rezoning request is unreasonable and, not in the public’s 
best interest since the proposed conditional rezoning classification will impair or injure the health, safety, 
and general welfare of the public; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed conditional rezoning request could encourage development that could 

negatively impact properties in close proximity; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed conditional rezoning request is not consistent with the Goldsboro 

Comprehensive Land-Use Plan and Land-Use Map; and 
 

 WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it unadvisable and not in the best 
interest of the City and those residing within its zoning jurisdiction. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina: 

1. That the petition to amend the Official Zoning Map and Comprehensive Land Use Map 
of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, conditionally rezoning Tax Parcel: 
3611048404 and 3601933033 to the Residential 6 Conditional Zoning District is 
hereby DENIED. 

 
 Adopted this 17th day of July, 2023. 
 
 
 

___________________________   
David Ham, Mayor 

Attested by: 
 
 
______________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  



F

Continued to  
8/21/23 Meeting

















G

















H

















I

















J

















Moved to  
8/7/23 Meeting

hjones
Polygon





ORDINANCE NO. 2023 - ____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 115: ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMITS, OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES, AND CREATING THE DOWNTOWN GOLDSBORO SOCIAL DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 160A-205.4 authorizes local governments to create and designate one or more 
“social districts” under N.C.G.S § 18B-300.1 within their jurisdic�ons; and 

WHEREAS, a “social district” under N.C.G.S § 18B-300.1 is “A defined outdoor area in which a person 
may consume alcoholic beverages sold by” businesses holding one or more permits issued by the Alcoholic 
Beverage Commission; and 

WHEREAS, local business owners within the Downtown Goldsboro area have expressed interest in 
crea�ng a social district within; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to limit its “social district” to a walkable geographic area in the downtown 
area where local bars and restaurants can sell alcoholic beverages to be consumed throughout the district, 
subject to certain rules and limita�ons; and  

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro City Council hereby finds and declares that this ordinance is in the best 
interest of the public health, safety, and welfare. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, that Chapter 115, 
Sec�on 115.02 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, is hereby created to read as 
follows:   

Chapter 115 

§115.02 DOWNTOWN GOLDSBORO SOCIAL DISTRICTS 

Pursuant to the provisions of G.S. § 160A-205.4, one or more social districts may be created within the city. The 
city hereby creates and designates the following social district: Downtown Goldsboro Social District which is 
designated as shown on a map originally dated July 17, 2023; the map is available in the office of the City Clerk, 
and signage and/or markings shall be posted clearly delinea�ng the boundaries of the Social District. 

Staff are hereby directed to submit a detailed map of the Downtown Social District, including the days and 
hours during which the district is in opera�on to the North Carolina Alcoholic Beverage Commission.  

General Requirements. 

a) Management: The Social District shall be created, designated, and managed in accordance with the 
requirements contained in N.C.G.S. §§ 160A-205.4 and NCGS 18B-300.1.  

b) Applicable Hours. The Downtown Social District shall be in effect between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 10:00 
p.m., Monday through Sunday, except that these hours and days may be extended in conjunc�on with an 
approved Special Event Permit when otherwise permited under the law.  

c) Permit Required: Any business establishment located within or con�guous to the Social District that holds a 
valid ABC permit and desires to engage as a Social District par�cipant must apply for and obtain a Social District 
permit from the Goldsboro Downtown Development Department. The establishment shall be responsible for 
opera�ng its business in accordance with all City and State ordinances, laws, rules, and regula�ons governing 
Social District ac�vi�es.  

d) Unified Signage Required: Businesses that do not have ABC permits but desire to par�cipate in the Social 
District must display an official Par�cipa�ng Business sign in a visible loca�on during the �mes when the social 
district is ac�ve. A customer may not bring an alcoholic beverage into a non-permitee business that does not 
display the uniform sign.  

e) Viola�on; Penalty: Any person who violates any provision of this Ar�cle, and any person who aids, abets, 
encourages, assists in, or contributes to such viola�on, is guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 
18B-102(b) and may be subject to addi�onal fines and administra�ve remedies including but not limited to 
suspension or revoca�on of the permitee’s Social District Permit and/or state ABC permit. State law reference: 
NCGS § 18B-104. 

Management And Maintenance Plan.  

Staff are hereby directed to create a management and maintenance plan for the Downtown Social District that 
complies with the provisions of N.C.G.S. § 18B-300.1 and to post the plan and a rendering of the district 
boundaries on the City’s website.  



Severability.  

If any provision of this ordinance or its applica�on to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity 
does not affect other provisions or applica�ons of this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or applica�on, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are severable. 

 

This ordinance takes effect 30 days a�er adop�on. 

 

Adopted this 17th day of July, 2023. 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       David Ham, Mayor  
Atested by:   
 
 
__________________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
 
 





RESOLUTION NO. 2023 — 5' 
RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION

OF A CONTRACT FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANTS MANAGEMENT

SOFTWARE

WHEREAS, The City of Goldsboro seeks community development grants
management software services from qualified firms to provide equipment and services

for end- to-end grants lifecycle support to enable city staff to successfully manage grantee
activities across multiple grant categories; and

WHEREAS, community development grants management software is a HUD - 
eligible Administration cost; and

WHEREAS, Benevate, Inc. DBA Neighborly Software proposes an engagement
of three years with Year 1 cost at $ 29, 400, Year 2 cost at $ 16, 200, and Year 3 cost at

16, 200 which includes software implementation, licenses for 6 City users, and

management of CDBG & HOME projects. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a
contract not to exceed $ 61, 800 with Benevate, Inc. DBA Neighborly Software for
community development grants management software. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
17th

day of
July 2023. 

Attested by: 

10.4 ' J10 -ti -I - 
Laura Getz, City Clerk

11. 









ilmN0N

p

N

Z

Lu

Q

Z

NZ

QZ

OV) 

cl: OLL20
Q

W
C) 

Q

OLnOO
CO

o

N

m

M

N

aCW

O

a

C7

UC7Z_

U

p

w

Z

F- 

2 " Q

O

wUZaZpOzQ

ON

Vro

Nm

Q) 

O

n

N

O

O

U

N

U

Ln

f6

fC

U

N

C

S= 

O

O

C

C (

Z6

V) E

a

Q- 

E

f° 

o

O

Q

N

U

L > 

to +- 

v

aJ = .

0

7 '

O

F

N

m

O _

N

cu

v

p

O

f0

L

u

v

o

N4-

1

4

2

O

C

f6 = 

v

O

O +, 

E

L

Q) 

L

O

LY '

0Q < 

X _ 

O

a1 = 

N ° 

N-+ = 

f6

a °

O

r

U

Q

m

C

V) 

v

V

CL_ 

O

O = - 

N

N

w `~ 

c

E

E ° 

3

m

t

U

C) 

u(

O

0

N

h0

a) p

c

L

o

a

m

Od
O

O

O

v

41

Y

N

O

O

aJ

3

Y

C

41

CU

a) 

a) 

CL

4- 

aJ

Q

O

ai

O

M

i - 

m

O

ai
0

1

m

x
a) 

mNO

to

L

t

aJ

Z

3

o

bo

0

to

C= 

l0

s

N

L

N

C:) 
N° 

N

O

cu

M

t

C

Q

3

cuE

aJ

E

o

3

E

t

N0

4J

v

m

0c

vE

E

N

c

m

4! 

C

v

L

L

aJ

C

O

2

J

a1

a

m

CL

O

v

CC

W

LO

o

N

d4

L

L

Y

aJ

c

LCU

v

bo

N

O

0C

a

O

L

L

E

i

m

tN

d

to

m

v, 

aJ

m

a

a) 

m

N

N

N

O

N

Q. 

N

aJ

a

E

O

aJ

L

yJ

ra

m

V

Z

O

L

Q) 

L

L

a) 

a

u

U

o

a`

J

Z

O

Y

o

aJ

U

U

P

a° 

W

QO
M

2

H

LU

4

V

O

p

CL

NM
n

4- 

E

aJ

U0

a

aJ

U
t

a) 

M

w+ 

3

p

4- 

U

U

f0

0

O

OU
O_ 

Li

o

v

3

E

O

co

O

v

v

E

vOD

T

vto

N

4-

1

Z

f0

LD

t

f0

C

U

N

f0

Q. 

N

U

a
0

c

N

aJL

t

to

L

t

z

Q

o

E

U

G

U

C

U

M

C

L

U

E

O

p

Q

p

u

aJ

4

a) 

E

N

O+ 

v

O

O

U

U

t

U

O

Q

N

0

aJ

Q

to

co

N

aJ

a) 

W

C }. 

C

aJ

a) 

w

c

4 

v

o

U

v

c° 

c

n

A

a

n

p

v

Ln

C

E

W

3

CL

w

E

N

0

H

E

L

aJ ++ 

U

m

4, 

E

C

aJ

u

O

C

p

a

N

F- 

O

CL
aJ

N

L

j

L

D1

E

U-

0

W

aJ

v

E

R

n

o

C

Q

Q

o

L

l0

iii

Z

aN

J

4-

14N

L

OO
L

i:. 

OU

M

0auL

Q

mN=a) 

m

O

Q

L`" 

O

UN

OO
NM

aJ

N

aJ

Q1

t

p

ZUO
O

U

m

N

O

O

3 

YQO

c

N

Y

U

N

O

N

u

iZ
v

a

f- 

t

3

w
L

a1

t

m

a

Q- 

m

r

Il

fC0

NaJ

M

o

w

3

N

N

z-

0

4- 

r4

o

LL

Z

o

o

3

O

O

m

o

c

Q -

Z

Lr

W

J

r- 

C

a) 

C

j

aJ

u

L

N

OOl
U

onj

Q) 

m

E

N

C

O

o +- 

O

m

O
C

m° 

O

t

L

Y

N

a

M

U

W(

L)

am

U

u m

m

u

aJ

OW
E

oc

v

a, 

3

Z

m

L

00

O

m 

f- 

N-

0

OO00

O

0

O

N

O_ 

W

W

1

v

C

vrt
f03

CO

L

ca

U

CO

E

U

CC

N

0

Ln

0)+

J
i

oaJ

O

y

Q

W

W

r ! 

t

OC

aJ

E

t

A

aJ

C

3

o

f° 

O

Q- 

Ln

4- 

o °

1

N

m

aJ

m

p

aJ

E

o

Cl) 

m

a

fn

L

N

C

H

E

1

In

to

O

Z

t.(

1

Z

m

O

U+ 

G

d

C

In

L

7

m

0

m

O

C

U

r- 

O

CN
Ln

O_ 

N

Q

O

O_ O

aDN

a

Cll

0

L~ 

V

N

f0

N

L

Q

m

S1

m

o

U " 

M

U

O

M

U

w'
f

d

3

m-

0

N

LL

C

L.

L

v

O

ON

Vro

Nm

Q) 

O

n

N

O

O

U

N

U

Ln

f6

fC

U

N

C

S= 

O

O

C

C (

Z6

V) E

a

Q- 

E

f° 

o

O

Q

N

U

L > 

to +- 

v

aJ = .

0

7 '

O

F

N

m

O _

N

cu

v

p

O

f0

L

u

v

o

N4-
14

2

O

C

f6 = 

v

O

O +, 

E

L

Q) 

L

O

LY '

0
Q < 

X _ 

O

a1 = 

N ° 

N-+ = 

f6

a °

O

r

U

Q

m

C

V) 

v

V

CL_ 

O

O = - 

N

N

w `~ 

c

E

E ° 

3

m

t

U

C) 

u(

O

0

N

h0

a) 

p

c

L

o

a

mOd

O

O

O

v

41

Y

N

O

aJCO
CLQ

O

ai

M

1

O

O

1

O

x
a) 

mNO

to

L

t

aJ

3

l0LN

Ot

C

3

aJEma
4! pOACCma

4Ov

LON

d4

L

c

bo

a

R

tN

d

o

m

N

N

N

N

aJ

E

O

aJ

E

rj

ra

V

Z

Q) 

0t
CLO

LL

o

Z

a`

J

Z

O

M

QW

QO
M

2

H

LU

4

V

O

p

Ln

NMn

4- 

aJ

U

a

M

Ut

a) 

M

w+ 

3

p

E

w+ 

ON

Vro

Nm

Q) 

O

n

N

O

O

U

N

U

Ln

f6

fC

U

N

C

S= 

O

O

C

C (

Z6

V) E

a

Q- 

E

f° 

o

O

Q

N

U

L > 

to +- 

v

aJ = .

0

7 '

O

F

N

m

O _

N

cu

v

p

O

f0

L

u

v

o

N4-
14

2

O

C

f6 = 

v

O

O +, 

E

L

Q) 

L

O

LY '

0Q < 

X _ 

O

a1 = 

N ° 

N-+ = 

f6

a °

O

r

U

Q

m

C

V) 

v

V

CL_ 

O

O = - 

N

N

w `~ 

c

E

E ° 

3

m

t

U

C) 

u(

O

0

N

h0

a) p

c

L

o

a

mOd
O

O

O

v

41

Y

N

O



NLOQQ) qncavCLcm

l> 

a) 

O

t

m

C

U

N

m

m

c

i

DO

C

m

C

m

IN

Q

a) 

O

c

M

ei

0CL

CL

a

OU

0

totoCL

c

N

O

O

cLC

t

OA

u

D

a) 

t

41

U

NCOUa, NC

m

3

t

bD- 

t

m

a) 

o

x

t

C- 

s

N> 

N

U

m

to

C

i- 

i- 

NLn

a1

Cm

L

C

m

m

Q

v

a, 

a

aCi

v

L

g

c' 

o, 

a) 

0 ,° 

v

p

0

C

m

3

Em

mt

AC

L '

a

cO

N

m., 

o

v

E

N

N

O

C

a

Q

o

c

p

c

L

m

a) 

v

OU

aj
L

N

c.) 

U

aJ

QW

do

3

a) 

UC

C

ai

m

O

Qp

a

L

CL

m
L

a) 

U

L

ICT

O

Z

0

c

Q

C

Oa)

L, 

c

a

rn

m

i+ 

bp

tf

tOif

Qm

L
a) 

a) 

L

W

v

U

CL

mO

NC

O

Z

Q

O

u

U

U

cn

LnW
ri

H

w

vaa)) 

Q

LDL
Q1

a, 

v- 

7

a, E

a) 

vc

aj

0

Q

Q

cu

c

o

m

u

o

ta) 

L
N

a ., 

o

C

m

m

vi

O

a7

m

Q

C

7

Ua) 

C

LAc

U

m

Nd

o

a) 
N

L

O

p

F- 

m

yC

t

E

cm

m

N

Q

t

9

c

a) 

a- 
a) 

mE

m

m
y

E

uc

w
o

c

c

mc

L} 

cm

N

Oc

c

c

cn C

on

m +' 

3

a) 

0,
o

U

m

0 + 

ai2

O
Z

N

m

c

T

U

m

C

p

U

c

3

o

to0
0

c

a°
1, 

Ln

w

o

m

v

CL +

N., 

u

a) 

L

O

0

in

i

C

U

m

v

t

a, t

ate-+ 

to

m

E

3

0-

C

4

a

aEi

CCD

m

c

CL

E

C

fA0

3

0

ac) 

a0i

N

m

0

m

a

V

Lmn

Cv

a1

o

C

C

Q

C

E— 

m

U

CO

3

a

E

m

C

o

t10

m

CU

L

OL

4- 

N

L

ua

c

p

E

Om

4- 

f ' 

L

O

m

0

aO+ 

U

C

O

c

U

O

c

L

Ca

aJ

N

N

N

p

O

4- 

N

c

3

rp

c

L ( 

O

O

QJ

0' 

O

4' 

c

O

U

O

N

O

c

i

a) 

a) 

N

O

v

i

C

x

U

c

am+ 

j

o

OU

a) 

c

CO

m

m

CO

m

N

N

cu

y

a) 

L

w— 

vi

vi

C

N

o

C

a) 

0

vOi

m

m> Up

m

on

O

7

y

c

U

Cm

a) 

O

O

E

U

O

a

O

Q

O

r

c

O

1

a) 

O

O

ai

aj

3

m

p

L

L

E

C

m

t

L

3

N

c

c

L

7

m.) 

a) 

N

c

a)  

LO

a) 

a) 

Q

t

m

Q

O- 

U

O

OU

N

a) 

Ln

CU

a)

m

E

Z

to

p

a) 

N

V `

O

Uc

O

O

O

a) 

O

m

C

a) 

U

m7
O

O

E

O

OD

OnO

U

NN

OE

u

U

aJ

U

O

O

U

C

0

O

NLn
tf

on. 

O• 

c°

O

LpU

E

O

E

t

C

C

a)

O0

0

O

LO

U

CLO

t

cc

U

p

L

c

a

U

L

a) 

c

a

O

Q

Z
Z

c

n

S

Na

c

E

m

Q

L_

0

m

U

O

4- 

N

v

ca

m

W

Ca

E

a) 

o

t

E

Z3

m

m

C

m

0

m

t

a) a

0

L

v

0

c

u

aE) 

3

E

3

N° 

v°, 

Co

a

c

Ov

i

C

c

3

o °

CD

O

a „ 

m

m

t

m

C

cc

ai

u

Ln

aUi

a

o

O

p

c

E

N

E

O

L

O° 

O

E

c

0

cLo

O

v

O

U
C

N

c

a) 

m

u

Q = 

fl

i

Z

W

O

C

N

f' 

a) 

M

O

L

L

Q

3

CL

m

m

W

OJ

C

a) 

m

O

j

C = 

Q
a) 

E

C

v

CLc
ui

0a) 

E

0

of7

N

iLO

a1

C !'' 

ra

c

c

p

0

O

m

E

aJ
a

m

t—.+ 

V

U

a) 

0

O

c

M

O

O

O

O

O

m

CC

t

O

i

U

2

m

a) 

cuW

n

U

3

m

D

o

m° 

w

t

M

a

co

c-

0

N

E

v- 

a) 

Ca

L

m

N

v

c_ 

cCo

3

2

ao

U

s

4

a) 

tc0CLa0UvDNCOU
a, 

NC

CWC
G

NLn

Cm

L

o, QW
p

mtv

0) 

p

t

aj
L

U

aJ

QW

OLn

U

CL

mL

U

L

ICT

4L

Z

Q

N

a) 

a) 

rn

Ln

tOif

Qm

L
a) 

a) 

W

v

U

CL

mO

Z

It
U

Om

cn

LnW

ri

c

vaa)) 

Q

LDL

Q1

a, 

cc

a, 

E

a) 

vc

0a) 
Q

Q

i

c

o

t

u

o

LN

a ., 

o

C

m

aC, A

a7

c

4- 

C

7

U
a) 

LAc

U

m

Nd

o

a) 

N

L

p

LW

yC

E

vi

C

U

a) 

a- 
a) 

O

a) 

Gam

my

E

uc

w
o

a
N
c

mc

LN

cm

L

m

c

N

cn
C

a) 

m

Cm
L

Q

l7

ai2

OZ

N

M

T

U

U



vi
WJmNzOaNWzQNW

F- 

DDn000NM

0

L

L

Vf

O

4

O

p

U

4-

p

4• 

a)  

a) 

C + 

o

L

0

m : 

N

U

U

t6

A

L

L

O

C

7

m

t0

vE

m 

4

w

C

in

41

c

a

Y

L

In

p

Q
o

m

LO

Q

00

O +- 

W

0 ' > 

0 

n

H

H

00

Q

D '> 

on

E

o

C_ 

On

U

iF

O

vi

7

L

a

0

00

U

M

w

3

0

7

7

V

al

W

O

to

c

ra

L

1

c

o

oU 

0

C
a: 

a) 

a

L

a) 

3

E_ 

CL

4- 

t

c

O

3 +. 

O

4– 
O

00

0O

L

O

0L

w

0— 

a

N

N

Q. 
p

C

dA

0

LLnQ 

MO
O

L

Nm
E

L

c

v

p

ca

f6

0

O

L

L

c0

E

E

a

a) 

p

a; 

cp

of 

n

a-+ 

L

U

p
u

p

O

00

LO

to

C

aJ

O

u

L

41
L

000

LJ

w

00

C

0

c1 

p

6

a1

j

C

m

C

O

Q- 

0

4-

1

O

Q

4- 

al

ai_ 

O

E

O

O

w

U -

0

L-

3

p

N

N

N

Lp

00
a••, 

3

N

E

L

L

O

U

a1

aJ

CO

0

p

L

p

v= (

d

UQ

L

v

ai
L

f0

o

Q

C

4+ 

N

CLo

N

4-

L

CL

w.+ 

O

0

0

Q

O

U

Q

Q-

0

WO

00

Q

E= 

E

m

a
L

0

N

N

LO

C 

N

N •

C

c0

Q- 

CL

L

L

ym

0

O

aJ

C

t' }, 

to

7

7

y

o

al

t

L

Q

U

O

O

m

a1

a

Q

N

Ns 

a) 

LL

00

a) 

aO

to

Cp

0o

aJ

vi

c

c

mai 
o

i
s

a

0

0

C

L

C

o

4- 

0

O

aJ

0o
hv

N

Z'> 

0cA

4- 

c oo

3o

a

No
o

cu

Ln

U

CD

O

O

O

O

O

E

3

Q

ami

t

a 

Q

aa) 

o

c

c

c

o

O

o

v

o

v

v

0

v

v

a) 

x

x

x

p

v

L

V

E

O

Q

raom,,, 

a) 

aJ

N

N

7

N

0

L1

o> 

a

E

m

Q

o

C

C

C

0

aJ -

p

Q

U

O

t

O

O

Q

m

O

p

0

O

4J

o

L

7

0

a1

V

L

m

L

y

O > 

L

p

co

z

0

C

O

N

n

LL

ai

O

U

C

p

cu

QjOi

C

c

OU

m

m

O

f6

a0+ 

0

J

i

LU

C

O ' 

O

0

C

E

E

W

v

z

o

v

o

a, 

a

o

0

0o
a, 

v

a) 

a, 

c

u

a

00

E

co

bD

m

c

L

N

m

W

a

M

Z

aJ -

0

N

Q

m

U

D

M

Z

M

Q

E

V

Ln

m

L

N

L

f41

O

Ln

m

aJ

Ov

N . 

i = 



J

zM! EO

C

a 

Vii

U

OAC

Cm

maJ

O
U
UOL

p

m

1) 

W

m
U

a

iJ

U

of

N

cuaJ

CD

Cl

L

toCE

0O

uO
a)

O

O

u
L

p

O

U

CLOC

LCl) 
m

v
O

m

wbio

u

crN

U

0

Om

r_

L

O

Q

U

aJ

N

3

t

C

C

0LJ
o

t

L

O6b

OaJCL

uOaJ
4- 

mC

G=

0

E

uL

t

LLL

i

L

m

m

U

O

a

E

aJ

m

fl

U

aJ

p

Q

O

m

H

W

L

C

W

t- 

C }- 

QJ

QJ

L

L

OU

NC

m

O

C

U

O1

O

H

O — L) 

O

Q

O

z

Ocu
L

H

o

Z

to

0

Q

OLu

Q) 

mZ

CJA

w
LL

QLl- 

N

L

O

p

LL

Q

O

ZO

H

aJ

O

u

VfW

U

m

CJ

Z

OaCO

ZZ 

a) "

cuO

aJ

O

W = ° 

O

O

CaJ

U

LL

OU

Q

a

C

N
v

aJ

OR

O

V

m

NM

CW

4 . 

LM

N

L

C

L

Z

O -

p

o

m

cu

Q

u

C

C

V)

Z

c

a

m

ca

ai

aJ

m

L- 

CL

A

O

NCO

O

aJ

0

Q

Q

C

4- 

U

Z

N

3

aJ

on

4- 

a

C +- 

Q

L•+ 

U

U

O

aJ

0

C

O

w• 

O- 

u

O_ 

0+- 

C

3

0

OW
O

WcoE

Q •

C

u

U

O

a

La
aJ

aJY

aJ

N= C

m= 

O

C

i= 

dA

O

m

m

0

C~ 

N

a) 

Ln

4O

E

LL

In

0 ? 

m

O

N

aJ

Z

N

m

O

t

m

L- 

U

O

Q

w

U

a) > 

V

U= 

m

n

Q

N

a

N

i' 

O

L

N

C

m

O

O

L

L

z

m

u

C

C

E

p

O

N

E

m

cu

w
f° 

u

Z

3

O

Zm

o

Z

C

o

O_ 

L

41

CCm

W

O

O

O

L

o

O

Q

u

N

O
o

3

a1

C

CC

aJ

L

O

aJ

O- 

O

aaEJ
c

ai

0

v) 

v

Q

NJ

u

O

o

E

p

p

V

p

m

aL

p

U} 

L

N

aJ

CL -

0

AZ

N

L

MaJ
VfZ

O

aJL

0

v

Cm

Q
0

O

L

v

C

o 

o

Q

aJQ)

o

u

s

O

E- 

G

N

CLO

L' 

0- 
O

N

L

kn

a

r aJ

2

m
m

a

m

a; 

a

C

0

c

p

Ccu

N

Nf

C

OO

N

u

m

to

Z

o

N

U

m

o

Z

Q

0

L

w

Q

Q' 

a

O

0C
11z

O

O

L

0

o_

N

m

O

aJ

L

N

aJ

Q

00

O

U

CA

7

O

N

en

C

O

LM

co

U

W

cm

m

zM! EO

C

Q

Vii

U

OA
C

Cm

maJ

O
U
UOL

c

m

1) 

W

m
U

m
m

iJ

U

of

C

m

cuaJ

CD

Cl

L

to
CE

0O

uO
a)

O

O

u
L

p

O

U

CLOC

L
Cl) 

m

vO

m

wbio

u

crN

Om

r_

L

OU

va

Q

U

aJ

N

3

CO

C

C

0LJo

Um

vocp

0aJc

OaJCL

uOaJ

4- 

mC

G=

0

E

cm

uL

LL

LLL

i

L

U

O aJ

Q

OU

c
1) 

WC

iJ

C

m

c

Cm

L

aJ

a

O

u
L

p

U

p

m

w

OU

va

L

aJ

U

N

a

m

m

C

H

m

ZO

a

m
H: 

Q

O

w

m

H

U

W

UL

t- 

cr

4.

1v

O

OU

N

O1

O

H

Y

d4

Q

0

C

N

H

o

Z

o

0

OLu

v

U

m

Z

L

aJ

O

m

L

w
LL

Q
Ll- 

r

m

LL

LA. 

ZO

H

v

w

Z0

L

zCJ

Z

OaCO

ZZ 

V) 

E

to

O

W = ° 

O

CaJ

U

da

aJ

Q

a

C

O

O

N

7

M

Co

NM

NM

CW

w+ 

0

LM

LOQ



F - ZWaaWZ2WLLIZZW

aWZWCCaWO0LArlNMLm

InWJNZOaLA
WDZaNWLMNMt0 

Q

A

a)' E '

U

E

fO

Ua, .

O

L

N

a) 

N

m

p

E

aCE
m

o

Ln
4- 

L

Nv

a

Cc
a) Q) 

NL

m

O

t

U

4- 

a) 

OAc

to

L

Lit

aJC

c '

oA

O

CW

t

a) L

MQ) 

4- 

toC

U

LC

L

v + OCA

Ln
4-

1

W

L

a) .

960
4- 

4- 

0
4-

O

v+ -
i

4-

1

o

to

O

c '

o

o

c

N

3

3

3

c

E

E

o

v

o

v

acm

E

U

N

v

O

N

O

Q

O

J

E

OA

f0

N

p

O

a+ 

a
L

E

c

O

L

N

a

d

N

d

C`° f0

vi

O

U

aJ

M

u

OA

a) 

OA

U

E

L

N

Q

N

i

O

O

cO

C

C

j: 

L

7

U

m

a) 

vii

C

U

N

f0

O

a) O

H

O

O

a) 

E

m

m

a) 

ccO

UaJ

U

a) 

NC

N

a) 

0

N

OO

C

L

Q

N

o

N

a

o

CU

3

o

a) 

N

C

a{ 

6

ai

L

cr

3

O

C

L

3s
n°, 

M

O

C. 

p

tin

0,

N

N

vLn
v+ 

3

C

O

E

C

L

N

i

N

a

c

j, 

N

v

a

N

L - 

a) 

v

Lw
L

o

aL- 

c

E

on

bb

Ln

O

C

C

Q

w

a

aOA

C

a) 

E

a) 

3

v

M

L

U

toL

O

0

0O

s

a) 

a

E

o

ti4

v

a

V

L

Q

Q

L

a"

I

u

i-+ 

E

a

C_ 

Q

O

C

a) 

E

E

ate, 

O

O

E

c`

o

E

o

O

O

C

N_ c

C. 

c

3

OC

afl, 

o

N

U
ai

CL

l7

W

o

Y

tipC

EO

0i

N

u

M

LO

o
U

o

W

vN

a) 

NC

O4-
1

CO

C

o-,, 

u

U

O

COU

CO

v

CN

oEO

r

E

O

N

f0

f0

i

E

i

m

i

C

N

N

co

t0

C' 

O

C

E

O

E

w=

w

Q

y

C

C_ 

U -

a

O

a) 

E

U

Lf

o

a) 

x

a 

tw

a) 

vi

a

o

C

v

v

O

C

L

v

a) 

N

Q

C

w

oo
o

E

a) 

g

2

CL

0

OLa
L

Z

O

O

C

a) 

v

o

4, 

O

ON

o

L

E

cfa

v

c

O

v

t

cv

m

v

E

m

cc

c' 

v

C7

41

a) 

E

L

L

N

Oa) 
C

L

N

C

O

Q

EO

Q

Vj

f6

N

C_ 

u

Cr

N

u

d4

a.., 

Q

0

E} 

O

u

c

C

LQ

E— 

a) 

Uc

A

oCO

O

m

N

O - 

L

C

N

OL

O

o

c

Q- 

N

C. 

O

E

C

3

C

a) 

l7m

f

Du

O

N

a) 

3-

0 N

C

W

a

V

C

C+ E

a) 

a) 

a) 

m

0C

oa

E

rW

E' 

H

ao

O

u

U
fO

a

ON

C

fD

E

c

r

C_ 

E

O ++ 

o

c

O

ON

c

O

3

L

v

o

co

c

c

Cc

oLA

0

u

0

g, 

E

U

m

o

o

C

O

m

C

L° 

H

E

O

E

O

O

c

LN

C

ra

4

Y

mQ

Y

E

a`) O_ 

a) E

N

E

UH

p

u

3

0

C

Q

a) 

u

U

co

aJ

N

N

m

N

C

i

Q

O

u

U

O

C

N

C

N

a) 

Co

c

O

O

a) 

O

m

U

M

N

c° 

E

4-

N

L

a

O

c

O

E

C -

a

C_ 

L>-' 

vE

m

a) 

m

m

47

O

fl- 

mvi
O

in

O

O

7d

a) 

a) C

C

EE

O

a) 

C

a) 

Q

O

N

n- 

o
a

O

p

ON

L

a) 

OE

O

to

Nu

M

v

v

M

Q

a
L

3

o

c

c> 

m

N

m

p

v

M

a

m

o

O

m

o

0

E

a

ou

N

u

m

LM

4o



a, a) NE0uaL0NLa) Ea, viG) cuE
1.

00a, NOCLOUa) LNaUEOUa) r_ ECCLCLaLa) Ea) 

v
lD

Iv
00

a0

E

c

EU

y

IA
N

v

EE

EE

v

7 • 

U

c

acr

ai ; 
s _ 

m

O

d

m

O

N

N

O

U

M

a

U

M

v
i0if

i0'
f

NCalCQ) EmxQ) 
QACE0NNd400Na) LmC: OC .. os - LnW 

N

0

U

N

4-

1L

L) 

N

a) 

4

N

C

O

a) 

a

E

O

a

o_ 

OQ) a) C7

u

tio

L

c

L

j

L

N

p '

a

C

C

c4. --

m

mv; 
rn

N

Y

w

C

m }, 

4-

10

3

E

N

m° 

t

a

O

N

a) 

E

vE

v

a

M

N

0

s

a` 

m

m

a0) :

n

C

C

a) 

c

E

o

CU

m

e

L— 

3

o

t,

O) 

aEi

C

D.-° 

4- 

N

m0

C

m

m

u

a) 

m

vui

C

a

O

t

OU  

4' -

O

C

p

v

oA
a) 

a) ° 

L

on

O

C

O

p

3

N

N _ ' 

C

4ai

a) 

m '^ 

m

al

o ' 

0

L

m

C

CAOD  

3

E

v

C

O

C

o

L

W

o

U .

N

4- 

O

Y

p° 

p

a

O

c

aj

N

c

C

3

E

E

c

wE

c

m

E

u

OD

L

3

a) 

C

E

o

m

cu

C

i- >• 

m

C +, 
E

N

M

me, 

F, 

O

0 '

N

4• 

0v0i

p
U

by
4- 

N

L

EE

L

4-- 

m

O

0

L

E

N

L

L, 

C'. 

L

W '

N

M

m

O

4+ 

m

O ,., U

Ln

v- 

o_ 

0

v `" 

v

c

E

E

ov

ai

F6

i += 

o° 

Vi

m

a

t' 

o

m

c

tin

v

C

w

N

a) 

C > 

C

o

i

c) 

yt

d4

L

a) > 

a) 

0

a) 

E

U

Q

CL) 

y

ON

t

S

N

C

C

U

0

a) 

OAL

C

C

O

0

E

on

to

o

m

m

cw

w

a

m

0

E

w

o° 

O

E

4- 

M

a ° 

a

oo

v

N °° 

O

v
o

a

a, 

E

m

c

E

v

m° 

n

7

L

a

O

a) 

O

a) 

L

N +, 

C

U

i- 

r

C

U

V 

O

a) 

C

L

C

4+ 

U

N

mL

O> 

a) 

C

E

to

m

a+ 

a) 

L

v

L

a) .'

n

0

O

p

m

L

m

vi

v

u

U

0

ob

m

0
4- 

C

C> 

Y

aJ

O

N

O

L "

a

a) 

Q
C

a) 

c

v

0

m

a 

s

m

c

a

c

aui

E

E

w

e

Ln

a) `—°  

to

0

m

r

oc

E

m

m

c

a

O

Y ° '

O

O

U

E

L

r-_ 

3

O

a
a) 

N

U

U

a) 

m

L

v

m° 

a) 

a" 

4 + 

3

a

u

r

C

m

m

a
c

a

t ° 

m

a

v

E

a

to

mc

on

L

m -

C— 

c

tin

a
v

O

o

a
a) 

0

E

v

m

c

v

0

o

t

E

a

c

c

c

3 `

o

a

E

a

a) 

v

v

o

a

c

ao ° 

E

c

N

0

3

v

E

O

N

n '

3 = 

a' 

E

v

e

oW
m ' `

L° 

o

ai ° 

a

c

0tin

aa

0N

3

c

E

0

a; 

o

N

E

E

m

O

t

E

E

a) 

a) 

U

0

C

OD

m

p

fC

4+ 

4- 

C

t

j

p

U

tL9

C

U

y

4+ 

O

a.+ 

3

v

a) 

n

Q,

v

3

v

v

a

vi

L

m

U

o 

Q

o

m

Lnt
s

a

70

t

aui

3

o

E

c

c

v

4- 

v

o

v

v

o

3

a

C

3p> 

a

C

L

C= 

L

i

E

U

G) 

O +' 

3

a) 

al

v

v

m

C

E

a •

X

a

u

v

3

u

c= 

6° 

c

v

o= 

E

c

m

L

aj _

m

L

a) 

t]

A

a
t

a) 

C

p

a) 

m

L

O

3

U

N

a1

N

t'' 

O

E

0_ cu

a

L

O

a

C

p• 

N

L

O

0

i•+ 

Y

C

N

Y

a) 

N

i

3

m

m

yNj

3

t

t

m

v

CUv

QA

m

m

ami

m

C

O

v

o -

a

4- 

C> 

v

E

U

cu

a •

E

0

C

CL

L

L

C

a) 

N

C

LS

N

U

t

v

N

Q) 

p

L

a

E

N

E

C

0

E

U

Q! 

F, 

E

to

o

a 

C

4+ 

7

m

vC

L

E

O

C -

O

u
L

N

La1

m

pU

o

E

vs 

a) 

0

a) 

o

3

i

C

o

c

m

a

io

m

cm

X

m

s

c

c

L

3

U 

m

e

tiA

m '

E '

L

m

O(

u

o

4- 

N

aJ >- 

a
a) 

m

a) 

L -

a

a

O

OA

CL

0

o

C

a

t

L

dA >, 

N '

Y

O .

L

o

C

V

p

C

O

O '' 

C

L

m

4O •

E

C

a

j

al

m

a

ra

o +, .

r

m ,, 

c

4-

a) 

0

E

m

a`) 

m

3

C

a) 

Z

ou

v

0

3

a 

v

y

u ' 

L

a

as

v= 

cu

u • ° 

o

a

v

o

O

a

o

o

m

L= 

U

E

c

iJ

v° p

C > O

a) 

L

m

O

Q- 

aJ

Lo

4. 

t

N +-' 

t

p

Lm

Nr

3

a) 

N_ 

EE °

J

C

a) 

a' N

O

Q

o

o> 

u

a) 

L ` 

E' 

E

c

H

on

E

o

o

c

a0i

E

va

o°
n

v

H

s

m

E

O

OA

N

C

E

N

3

O

0

C

O

v

m

O

O

m

4_ 

C

7

t

v

a

3

m

v
m

a
a) 

Sao
v

C

v-

0

a

aitto

v >- 

v

E

O

c

o

m

O

to

Ln

m

a

N

o

O

i> 

N

4m

L

to

p

a

to

C

a) 

to

N

C

r, 

C

m
cu

in

a) 

p_ 

a) 

a

o °' 

a

s

ro

L

v

C

a

o

c

aLi

a>
iN

c

c

c

E

E

u

m

m

L

pq

O

O

p ° 

1 :+ v

C

O

a) 

a) L

u
U

M

m

v

a) 

ctv
O

o
fv
m

c

v

m

C

t0

m

p

L

L

E

C

do

H° > 

Ms

U

1

m

a-

0

O

m

a

u

E

m

u

a

C

L

ad

E

v

m° 

a
1° 

C

C

C

L

Q) 

U

ci

m

0 

4 

S

a

0



v0
LA

f6

O

n

o

c

3

o°

to

3o
fl

3 . 

ami

a 

a

L

OA

co

0) '

U

L

c

C _

C

c

E

ai

L- 

7

N

O , +, of

U

n

C

C

fa

f6

U }' 

OU

O

L

m

Q) 

m

C

O

O

U

Qj

O> C

Q
Q) .

0O

Q) 

L

a

N

a) +, 

NA

L

Y

LQ1

E

0

O

U

aj

Q
a•

d

N

Y ++ 

w

0

O

ai

C

v

O

U + 

QU1

N +

L, 

m

N

E

O

Y

O

OCA

O "

O

L

C '' > 

O

V

a) 

C

a) O

Q) 

McuL> 

O

Lp
UH

N

L

OA

MN

a

a) 

E

L

O

O

0

E

N

0L

i+ 

O +, V

a) 

N

a

C

V

of - 

m

L

L

L

T

N

to

C

L

C

3 (

d

N

u

U

CL

x

ai

4- 

LS' 

M

Ln

Ln

0

C

N

L

O

Vr

a

O

a) 

L +' 

v

7

V) N

L .

3

O-

41- j

E

Z, 

N" 

Uo

M

O

Lnca

ca

a

a) 

U 

V

c

fO

3

r0

6

L

o

o . + -

a

O -

a

co

c0

aai

yU

L

C

in

L

VCA

O

O `

n

U

L1

Q

C

a) ^ L

C

C

N

N

in

a) 

OL

O

0

U

M

O

C

a) U

H

N

m . 

L

Q) 

f0 -- 

of

M

L

fD

LA

Ln

L

a 

aai

3

U

v

Lv,  . 

On

o `

m

o

W

o

v

a 

CLO

CLO

U

U

i

A

C (

o

O '

L

C

a

6

a

a

y

in

O, 

m

C

O

C

0

Q

w

U 

cA- 

O

vi

u

M

7On

O

E

to

O

O

fd

OA

C

V) 

Q

Q) 

r., +, 

E— 

V

L

ii

a) L

C

4- 

L

EO

V '

a

iri

C

L

C

L

Co

C— 

N

L

O— 

J

a) 

aJ

C

L

M +- 

g

L

E

aj '

tin

O > 

C

m

U

to

C

w

a

3

U

O

Q

O

L , 

a) 

0

0

0

0

L

L

u

to

Maa

C

U

m

o

CL

a 

QE) 

c

O (

A +, 

a

o

v

v 

E

u

o

v

a

C

a) 

u

is

L

p

in

u

L

a

c

V

v

c

O

L

aLnOm
U

O

a) 

Q_ 

axi

a

a) 

p

A

N

vi

U

m

aEi

O

E

C

E

U

M

O

a) 

M

O

C +, 

OA

L

L

R

0

d

E

O

v +, 

aL, 

V) N

E

L+ 

L+ 

M

M

a

C

a) 

O

U +, 

C

d

L>- 

V

a

a1

a

L '

L

i

L

a

7

v> 

Q) 

N

C

v

Q1Q
E

L

N

Lam, 

L

L

O

L- 

y

a

H

L

a

CL

E

a

a

a

on

E >- 

OU

3

rEa

U

to

v 

7

n

C

E

O +'• 

E

E

X

Ln

O

I: 

ON

00

L

L

O

L >

O

4- '

L

Q

Q) 

Q

r

L

Y

C

m

0

H

C

n

O

v

Q

O

0

M

v ` 

C

O

O

L+ 

Q

0

C

m

A

N

Q

a) 

O

Q) >' 

O

a) 

a

O

3

QJL

r- 
a) 

aLn

E

a

a +, 

EO

CL

pof

Q ++ 

m

m

C

N

v

N +, 

V (

O

0CL
O

f0

O

N

UO

E

L

a) 

x

X

L

L

L

L

Omm





MNONOzWUzaz0CCO

ON

O

N  

v

ou

LL

U

UpC •

a) 

0) 

a) 

ate

m

CL' 

y-. 

Q
N

O

O

C

M

m

M

C

L

L++ 

Q. 

U

LL

mOU
O  

4 - 

ca

a0 . 

O

L

Q) 

H

m

m

O

vUCA

CO
Q) 

L

E

u

t

U

CL

Qj

m

Q

4- 

O

O

V_
1

L

C

I1

U

E

C

U

fC

U > 

a) 

O

u

a

a) 

vOi

a)  

m

L  

LO

0W

O- -

0

to

Z

UO

Z

Q

V

O

0

w

aJ

tea

DC

O , +, 

p

w- 

N

O

H

L

LLJ

yo

C: 

LAJ

c

U

O

Z

W

m

a

w

C

3

x

W

0

H

at

v

C

3

3cV° V) 

Z

L
L

L

O

M
MLvCimU

H06
k(

h

ti

HZWaaWaWUJOa

N

c

a) 

o

C

viC

4-- 

0
O

o

C

mo

c

O

7v

7Up

E

1

0

vii

cU

Ctc6

O

CL
a) 

cLo

0=
i

0) 

Q

4— 

O

v

O

W

O

ami

Lr

Q

C

N
u

C

I

Q

a

O

LL

N

7

C

4

CC

Q

Ca

LO

o

ami

M>, 

a

0

v

ULO

a) 

a

C

4
O

U

W

o

v
0

Cl

0

0V

CO

4-- 

N

Nm

i

CO

L

QZ

fd
L

Q

In0

m

vi

v

3

u

c

CO

Ln

a) 

4- 

1

O

on

0

v

4- 

co

M

U

v

C

o

c

3

V

Ln

r_ 

t/

1

0

aJ

O

LJC

O

O

0

O

Z

j

u

O

cuC;- 
L

O

w

L

E

O

tn

v

Q
Q) 

a) 

C

m

a) L

N

LL

N
C

w

4. 

L

a -• 

N

O

L

L

Q

a) 

C

a) 

O

LL

O4-- 

L

LL

CL

L6

O

a) 

a

CO

O

t

C1

Q

C

N

z

a) 

Oa

o

L

u

C: 

C

7

a) 

o

3

i

h

N

a) L

Q

4L C

a. 

LL

u

a) 

a 

V- 

M

a

0

s

C

0

O

U

C

n

O

U

r

C

Y

t

O

O

Upy

N

a

Q

U

H

w

V

7

U

O

O

U

a

i

ULia

H

w

t0f

a) 

O

C

a) 

w

CL

Q

a

a- 

LL

a

Q

LL

E

U

LL

c -
I

N

M

T

u1

Ln

lD

I, 

W

M

O

a-

1

N

M

O

O

O

O

O

1

1

r1

c-
1

r-
1

N

N

N

N

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

H06

k(

h

ti

HZWaaWaWUJOa

v
tua) U0aal

N

co

viC

4-- 

0
O

o

mo

c

7v

7
Up

O
i_ 

0

vii

Ctc6
O

a) 

0) 

z

4— 

O

W

O

w

Q

C

N
u

O

I

a

O

C

Q

Ca

a) 

M>, 

a

0

v

ULO

C

4O

U

W

o

v
0

0

0V

4-- 

N

Nm

CO

L

QZ

fdL

In0

m

vi

v

3

u

c

Ln

0

4- 

1

O

on

Q

0

v

Ln

co

M

C' 

n> 

C

o

c

3

V

Ln

r_ 

t/

1

0

aJ

O

LJ
C

O

O

0

O

Z

m

j

O

O

C

O

w

L

E

O

tn

v

a) 

C

O

O

N

O

m

o

O

J

O

L

L

O

a) 

C

a) 

ai

C

O4-- 

N

m

OCL

L

a

a) 

C

o

L

Q

C: 

c

a) 

o

Ci

N

w

V

a. 

u

u

a 

V- 

M

a

0

s

n

0

O

p

M

N

a

co

U

Q

w

v

7

2

v

v

MM

L

a

a0

U

w

t0f

LIM

vtu
a) 

U0aal



F - zCW LQaW0WOCLi

IL09

ca

m2

zOGWaHzwOLLF - zWLLOF- 01rlMMco+ 

0

a) cOcca) 
Cmavv

L

LLaLvU
a) a) 

O413 UcOVVa) La) cOaCLtoO3viv
LEa, Ea

4- 
0

a) 
NOCLOUvL

ccWCLOaNF - zWQaW0W5U. 0F- ZeiN
c» 

M

Q

aiE

U

viY
U
camOmN

N
0Umm

a-% 

CQ) Etma
a) 

U

L

al

aL

v

O

a

v

y

Q

N

Q

0

a) 

cOcc
a) 

Cm
a

v
v
LLLaLvU

a) a) 

O413 UcOVV
a) 

L
a) 

cO
aCL

toO3vivLE
a, 

Ea

4- 

0
a) 

NOCLOUvL

ccWCLOaN
F - 

zWQaW0W5
U. 

0
F- 

ZeiN

c» 

M

Q

aiE

U

viY
U
camOm

N
N0Umm

a-% 

C
Q) 

Etm
a

a) 





N

s

O

C

YO

L

v

OCA

N

Uf1

f0

Y

N

Q) '' 

Q

YO

f0

O

Q

M

M- 

u "

O

m

N

N

Q) '' 

E

o

O

C

Q) 

Y

d "

O

C

O "

O

Q) 

Y

m +

O+ 

Q) 

i

C

Q +, 

L

O

U

Y

N '

a ._ 

t10

fC

L

ate+ 

0

U

L

V) 

Y

QJ

O

a `

F+ 

E

X

C

C

Q) 

C

L

Y

L ..+, 

7

O

O

L

O

E

Q, 

L

O

O

O

N .-

I

o

y

0

m

p

CC

d

Y  

v- 

i

Y

Q) 

CT

Q) 

tw

N

L, 

Q) 

E : 

Q

Q

Q) = 

N

C ` 

C

Q) 

N

V 

O > > 

t --

I

3

L

Y

O

u

O

L

N

6

Y

Y

M

Q) 

C

E

Q) 

O

N

C

Q) 

OL -

0 •

D

E

O

v

C

4- 

Q) 

a

a — 

Q) > 

30 +_, 

O

O

i

CJ

U

Q

r -

p =- 

CO

O

N

L

N

E

N

OO

Q +, > 

N

V

i

i -

C

Y

N

N

N

m

p

f6

E

Y

4- 

O

L

Q

N

O

Q

m

N

fl. +

N+ 

m

a) 

11L . 
Qj

O

O

7

t

N

v

V

Q) 

c

O

y_ 

U

Q) •

Q

u

3

CU

cu *' 

C

t/

f -

o

Q
m _ > 

Y +

Y' > 

fCQ

L

Q

o

V

tQa

O

N

N

Q

Q

L

L

O

L

C

L

U

Y

C

m

O

Q) 

4- 

C

to

V

m -

p

O

M

v

O + 

O

Q) +

Q+ 

i+ 

3 }, +- 

U +' '- ° 

Q

O

O

N

G

O . > 

CL

Q > 

N

Q) 

c$

O

O

N  ,

U•' 

i

Q) 

cr
Q) 

Q) 

Q) 

M ++ 

Cn

Q '

O

f0 -

Q

v

Q) 

Q

C

N

L

N

YO + 

O (

L6

t

N

Q

CD

c

O

u

m

Q •

L

Y

C

Y -

C

0 -

0

C) 

N

Q" 

Q

L

I +' 

f6

f6 ..

O -

a

C

Q) 

E

Q

V

Q1

C

O

Y

O

Y

Tt

L

Q) 

E

O

L

Q) 

Y

N

O

i

N

V

Ln

L

O >' `~ 

3 +

N, 

C

Q' 

pp

Q- 

V

Q) 

L

O

Q) 

p

cu

CQ

N

Y

ca

Q) 

t

7

u >• 

u

lD ° 

41

v

Q -

O

N

Q) 

O

N

M

O

N> 

Q) 

Ecu
CQ

C'

M

1- 

C "

O

C

C

Y

4- 

7

N

p

a -

i

h0

L ++ 

Q

Q) 

O

O

E

lD +•' 

N

41

Y

O

C

U

L

N

L

O

YO

Q) 

M

y

t

C

r

cv

Z

m

N

m

u

Q

ei

m

0) 

a) 

N

p

O

E

42

o °

o

co

v

o

4- 

ai

iQ

m

L

o

o

0

3

t _° 

E

c

a

E

u

v

a

O

aJ

E ° 

Q) 

DD

to

L

4- 

L `^ 

N +, 

O

N

p

Q) 

Q) 

Q) 

O

OO

N

t

N

Q) 

L

N

O

N

O

N

t

O

N

N ( 

M

4- 

Q > 

E

N , 

Q

t

s

to

Q

u

u

4-'_

O

E

L

4- 

U

L

N

Q) (

O

rp

O

C

Vf

Y

C>'

o

N

c) 

N

O

Q

V

R

v

C

Q) 

111

7

Q) 

Q1

aN

N

Q

OA

y

N

Q . 

Co

Q) >• 

Y

O

J° 

m (

7

p

L

t.+ 

i

O +

L.+ 

ai >^ 

N

i

O '

a > 

N

E

m

vi

a

3

a ° 

3

4- 

3

Q

t

N

N

E +, 

m

O

o > 

L

u° -

a

c) 

3

o

a

o ° 

Q) 

N

Q

o

O

Q

c

N

C

o, 

o, 

o

L

m

L —° 

o

E

N

ei '

o != > 

N

4- > 

N

O

O

E

O

O > 

N

Q

O

t

C

Q

O

Q) . 

O

L

N

Q) 

Q) 

f6

U

3— 

i--

1

Q) 

M

i

L

Q

V }' — 

L

O

u

N

N

E (

L6

ct7

Q

f9

Q) 

E

Q) 

L

C

L

N

N

wl > 

N

N

L

Q

Q) 

C % 

OD

C

v

p

Q

3

m

EO

L

U

3 += 

m

Q) 

u

U

L

C

Q) 

Q1 ` 

O

C30

U

N '

O

N ° 

fN0

N

y

E

4' +' 

O "

O

U0

V

N =' 

f

w

Q) 

Y

L

O

O

U

O

Y

C '

a

In

tw

u

L

Q) "

O

Y

to

O

4 

u

Q) 

Q) 

C "

O _ 

4- 

0

U

ODm
a) 

O

W

a) — 

co

cu

v

C

L7

c

c> +' 

O

u

O

N +

t, 

i '

O

N-

2

76

E -

a

N

N }' 

U

N

7

O

O. 

v

tl0

p

N

H

N

aN' •  

Q

3

7

N

C . 

O (

L6

O

Q

m > 

E

vOi

f6 "

O

O

M

Q) 

O

L •

C

N

Q) 

Z

Q) 

E

C

t

N

Q) 

41

L

o

Y

L

Q) + . 

Q) 

Q

Q) 

M

N

E

L

M

Y

W ,

L

Q

V >• 

N

O

C— 

u

4- 

Q) 

CIO

N

O

E -

a

m

c0) 

O

ON

OQ

i

A

U

4- 

YO

v

O

O

O

O

L

N

6

E

M

Q

C

4! 

L

CO , 

C

i) 

C

L

cu

Y

E +, 

N

O

4• 

t

N

N

d

6

Q) _

u

3

C

C

L •

Q) 

Q: 

E

N

A

m +' "

6

Q) > 

O

co

o

o

o

@
4- 

3

0

Q) 

E

E

v > 

O ° 

C

ai

O. 

E

N

Q +

1

v

C '^ ° 

3

v

Y

E_ 

Vr

6

C^ > 

N

U

V

L

M

O

Q1

L "

d

4- 

4- - 

Q) 

O

m

m

O

N

Q) '

D

Y

vOi

u ` +

O+ 

N

Q) 

Q) 

m

Q) 

Z

Q) 

Q) 

Q" 

N

W

Ln • • 

O

C

u -

Op

Q ° 

N

O

Y

Q) 

Q) 

w

C

v >' -

o > 

N

E

Q) 

a

s >- 

N

m

C  

C

4- 

LCID

Y

O °' 

t

W

U

C  ,} 

N

7

N

o>  

Q) 

O

E = ++ 

0 , -

0

O

Q) 

E

v

u

Q

QEi

E

o

t

o° ' ° 

CU

o ° 

t

Q -

a

v

axi

a

i

N

v°° 

N

v

a

o

L

W

t1

OL '

p

C

v+'
i

Q .

Q

U

CIO
Q) 

Q) > 

Q

Q - 

Q) 

Q) +,, - •• 

L

C

N

E

Q) 

Q _

0

Q) 

O

Q1

Y

N

D

L

3: 

Y

N

Y (

O

4- 

N

L

U

QJ

tO

Q) 

Q) +' 

Q

N

O > 

O

W

N

Q) 

C

L

m

w .` 

O

u

O

o

L

Q

Q) 

t +' +

1 -

Q

Y

Y "

O

C

t

N> 

Q) 

v

rte,,, 

to

N

Q) 

z -

a

H +

1  

Y

t

Z

N   

E  

O

C

N  

E +' 

E

L

o

E

o

O

C

Q)  

Y  

4- 

Q) 

E

u'
i

E

o; 

m _ '

H

fQ

L

Y — 

o ' ' — 

C

L

N

C

Q) ,

H

O

W > 

Y

Q

w

Q) •

C

w

v1

O

Y

O

O

C

C - 

3

C "

O

N

Q

O

Q

O

t

Q) -

C

a) 

a

LL = 

C

L - 

C

co

a) 

N

C

m

ro + 

a) > +,  ` . — 

N

L

C

o

N

o

N

u

a 

o
C

o

N

O

4- 

3 '^ 

d

o °

J

4-  

N

E

o ° 

C -

p , 

m

t

3

oQ

Q > 

3

n° 

O

Q

Q

L

E

m

O>. 

Z

N" 

Q) 

c

C

u

C

fYC

u +,, 

QJ

N

v- 

f0

Q

O

Q) (

j - 

N

N

N

O

o

L

O

C

L > 

r -
I > — 

L

Y

Q) 

N

N

O

Q) 

Q)   

N .> 

Q1

N

L

E

E

u

N

Q) 

Q) 

p

m

a

Q) 

N

3 > 

Y

W

Q) 

H

N +

O, + 

N

Y

Y

v- 

Q) 

Y

Q) >' 

N

u

Q) 

C

Q) 

C

O

C> 

L

C

Q) 

7

U  

f

rH

O

O

Q) 

W

Q) 

a , °

U

N

Q) 

N

L

Q) ° 

C (

N6

C

Q1

Y

Q- 

0

L

O

Y

M

Q) 

Y

E "

O

ON

E ++ 

C

N

f0

C

Q) 

Ln

Ln

Q- 

m

t , ° '^ 

t

3

C

g

4-

1

Q) 

Q) 

c

O `° 

uCL
E ° 

O > 

c

a) 

E ° 

Q) 

aCi ° ° 

L

Q) 

U- 

Q) (

D

a

U

N

N

Y -

i

Q) 

O

Q ° - 

4- 

O

U

u

x

Q) 

N

Q) 

Y

U

CQ

Y +' 

Q! 

U

Q) 

O

r- 

CQ

Y

Y

U

Y

U

Q

W

4- 

W

E , 

U

t

o

Q) 

N

N

Q

C

y

Q) 

C

E

Q) 

Q- 

U .

E

O

C

C

3

E

Y

O

Y

E

p

Q) > 

Z >- 

C

Z

N

Z +, 

3

0

Cr

O

Q

o

u -

p +' 

N +

L- 

O > - 

L

t

0

Q

w

3

U

4- 

U

L

Q

Q

to

Y

OQ

LO

C

p

O

In

Q) 

L

N

L

C +,, 

Y

O

N

W

y,, ` 

Q) 

C

Q) 

C "

a

N

t

O +' 

V

O

L

Y

O >• 

O

Q) + 

f0

L

C

L

E

Q) 

L

Q) 

Q) 

Y }" 

L

W

V

O

Q) 

CO

O %- 

N !

Q   

C

U

Q) 

C

a

Q) 

p

p

A

C

L

f0

N

ra

iii

O

L

N

C .- 

Y

3

o

Q

3

Q

E

N

w

Q) 

No

v

a

aQi

CA  °

v

p

c

v

Q) += ° 

E

L

y

u

w

c °

u

r° 

a>
i

N

Vf

Cn

E

Cry

C

of -

O -

0

N

3

hO

C

pO ++ 

Q) 

O

N

C ' 

Q) 

Q

Co ° 

a

N

a) 

a

N

a

p

a

m

a __ 

E

u

Q, 

Q) 

Q, > 

C

o

o

L ,; 

L , 

E

Y , 

Y

L , — 

4_ 

W > 

W

W

V

W

W

H "

O

y> 

E

O

cQ

Q) 

N

Q

U

L

t

L

C '

E

U :

Ll

cuE
f0

C

O

U `

1

C

Q

O

E

m

CQ ++ 

3

Q

O

W

C

D

W

C

W '

V

at "

a

w

e

L

M } 

Q) (•,

1

Y

E

L

U

C ~ ~ +

O+ 

Q

C

Q) 

O

U

Q) 

Q

Cp "

d

U

N .

E

Q) 

X

N

y

rte-+ .

Q

N 

O

L

C

ui

O

Y

C — 

L

O

C

Y

fC > 

Q) 

Q) 

Q) 

Y

cd

c9 +

O- 

W > 

4- 

L

N

N

Q) 

m

Q) 

L

L

Q) >• . 

v

N

Q

E

Q1

Q

p

Q) 

E

N

N '

a '

6

U

L `

O

O

L = 

L = 

p = 

C = ++ 

O

O

Q1

O

T

Q

L +-' .... 

L

0) 

Q

H

E +.+ > 

L

lD >• 

Q) 

Q) 

L

O

O

O

U

3

a

v

3

v

3

Q

3

v

3

Z (

u

N ' 

E

N

Y

m , , 

o

N

M

N

p ' ^-_ 

o

W

E

Y

Y

Y

N

f6

0

m

PA

O

N

Q) 

QI

QJ 

i

N 

i > 

i

L

N > (

O

Q

L

Y

v

V

v'
i

2m
Ln

m

f° ` `° ° `^ 

a
v

C (

u

E

o

m

c' 

m
o

v

v ° 

0

E

o //' ° 

v= 

Q" 

L

o

f

Q

c.

i

U

U :

0% 

L .- 

4- 

N

u

m

4- 

Y

Q

M .- 

4- 

V

Q

L

Y

m

Y

U

Y



C 

n

C + 

Ln

E

E

Ln

L

a

U

3p
E "' 

Q

4. 

m

CA

m

y

v

o

v° 

u ° ) 

c

av

m

C

a) —

a

00

u

v

aEi

aai

of

U

v

E

v

E 

n

O > 

70
F- 

v

Q

L

aa

c ° -

0

O ° 

CA ° 

O

O `

m

p +

a+ 

0o
U 

U

4-° °

o

Q " 

u

a

a

a) 

m

m

p

E

E

o

O

L

N

E

am

UQ

M

U

L

x

to -

p

CL

O

O

O

N

0a

in

O

M

o

m

a

a

NlD

z

a

a

E

z >. 

a !_' 

L

4• 

H +•, 

U '

A  

a -

p

v -

0

O

a

C > '

n

en

a) 

a

N •- 

a

a

a

c

v

o

M

cat ° 

m ° 

L

C

3

E

o

t

E

a

a

O

L

L

0+ 

W

w

4-

1

L

O

p

a

N

L

U

u' 

L — 

a `- 

E

U

C

a

a

a

C

U +- 

4- 

w

m

vi

L

Y

y_ 

4- 

o

U

v

Q-

0

N

N

U

j

a

Q +

m +

L_ ' '

O

N

y

C

Ep

N `° 

a

m >. 

a

o

E

u

a, 

a

3

o

v .

N

E  

t

U

N •

N

U +•+ 

U

L

4

a) 

N

C

W

m

w

C

u

a)> 

4.

1

N

Q
3

Z

m

u

m

a

a

L

a

m -

0 °= 

3

o

L

3

C

a° 

N

0

3— ° 

E ' ° 

aM
CU

u

a

U

0

Q

C

t

H

N

u4-
1

L +

a- 

a

U

C

a ++

1  = 

a-

0

a

s

v

a

E

O '^ 

4- 

0

0 — +  

m

4- 

4- 

to

a

m

Q

C• 

a

t

a

O

C

u

O

C

m

a

L

ani ° 

E

Z

w

3 + 

c9

a

6

L + 

E

m

C

an ° 

c

a

a ° .

3

rn

L

E

ai

a

E

t

u° 

O

E

t

v + 

o -

c

0

u

v

p^ 

U

t

U _

o

w

to

v

v0i

c

0

cu

Em

U+' 

u

en

U +, 

t

ra > 

E

a

C

o

0

a

a

L ' ,

n

m° 

a

o

a

a

V

E + 

C° 

o

U

U

L

a>, - 

o

p

m

to >> 

a

w ; 

O

m

ai

L

m

a

aQj

a

a ° 

O

U > 

N

C ' > 

a

Ou

U 

0

3 ` 

m

O

E

a

U

c

CL
a + 

u

a

ao

N

E > 

ai

E :

3`-- 

a

O

Z ++ '

a

m

U

O

C

C

3

Q

v

a .

1= 

A

c° `^ 

t

u

a  

E

v •

E

z

L

cv

O

u

o ^' 

m

0

a  +

J —  

n

Z

n

v

a

E

c

a

a ? 

E °' 

m

a

Q

3

0
0

4, 

r+ 

a

in
a

O

i

t

L

GO `~ 

C +' '

a

m

C >- •

C

A

a

C .

H

w

U

N

C

a) 

0

a

Q

N

N "

p

i

C = 

L

a

a +' 

L

C

M

U

a

a) '

7

a

L

4-' 

L

t

a

t + 

O + 

m

5

E

0

m

u

Z

L

O

03

a> +, 

v) 

a

v

tA

Q 

a

u

Q

t

v

t

s '

n

p +- 

m

a

r .

0

O

N '

O  -

Fa

r +' 

m

a- 

O

a

C

m

O

C

a

C (

15

C

7

Q

O

LA ` += 

m

o

O "

o •,

n

a -° 

LL

N

ca _° -
C

a

a ° 

t

E -

0— 

N

41

c

a

a

a >  + 

v

O

m

Q

p

m  

o

4- 

O

a -

p

E

cL

m

u

u

N

41

C

m . 

H

U

m

of

Q `_{ 

C

O

a .- _

a

Q

Q

m

7

3

C

a) 

CL `^ `-) 

t

tA +

a+  

a .

a

t

a

z

O' 

o

a) 

t

L

p

m

o

o

a

o

c

a

a•' --

0

a `

L° 

o

a

c

m

Q

c~ 

a° 

m

3

Vf -

0 > 

o

L° 

a

s , 

4- 

v- 

7 '

n

L

u 

a) 

0

Ln,

n

N

o

0

L

a

a

s

a- 

In

ut

L

a

O

t

O. 

E

C

O

a

N

00

Q

a > 

D_ 

4, 

L

N -

p

N

c

a) 

E

c +' 

Ii

a

U

E

a `

a

O

E

a

aw-)  

C ° _ 

E 

a

O

v

o

c

Z

a

v

X

o

a

c

o

o

n. 

m

n

o }, 

a

v

c

u

a

4-

1 > 

O

O -

a

U

a

C

p -

0

a :

O

Q

j 

c 

N

a

O

m

Q

p

N
0

m

o

a

t > + 

a . 

E

a

Q -

a

a

m

r -

LQ -
p

a., 

a

a; 

a

s

a

L

m

f: 

a

in

vTi ° 

a '

O

a

U

m

Vf

of

C

m "

O

m

C ' 

O > + 

L

C '

C

C > 

Q

N

L `° 

a

v `° . 

E

o

U

O -

a '^ 

v, ° 

Uaj a

C

O , 

cn

t

o

t + 

Y °; 

t;

o

a; 

a

s

E

a .

0

a) 

a

4to

C) 

QJ

CLO

aJ

0

CL

QJ

a -° 

Q

E

E

a ° , 

O

a ' 

m

a

O

OL

U

ate, 

a

O

v+ -
i

L

a

LL

E

O "

a

Q

v

O

L

v

H

C (

n

a. 

m

p

Ln 

cm.) 

p

6

a) 

n

1

Q

c

a ° 

Q° 

m

x

m

a

fO

o

C

O  

a ,

E

vai ._ .

0

c ,`

nn

a -

aa

Q

in ?) 

m

O

O' '

n -> 

u

a) 

C7 - = 

u

a) 

E

u

v + ° 

a

E° = 

U

4- 

3

Q

a

a> 

a

p ° 

4- 

m

U< 

m

0 -

0 ° 

Z., 

U

I

Q

O

U- 

Q

m

v
a

O

C

U

CCa
00aaN

NNOO
N

On

N

o

o

o

E

v

0

m

U1

N

v

C
a

a

n

D

v

LL

V1

VT

ur

0

m

N

a) 

m

C

V1

V? 

N

V} 

NV? 

Vto

WV} 

Nn

NN

n

v

V1

Vn

ri

N

V

w

vv

E

In

VT

VT

V1

m

ov

u

N

u

0

v  v

ca

o

IDD

m

m

Mn

tD

o

m

m

o

0

0

N

ri

M

to

N

ry

V

1

OMCY
a

3  

w

r

Qvro

0

S

a

o
M

0
Ln

0

0
kD

0m

0m

0o

000

0NN

Ur

N

M

V

ri

N

d

x

m

H

w

N

m

ry

m

v

iD

o0

0

Ol

CC
a

00aaN

C0uC00U
a

Uata0- 0mN
m

criN0N
h00Q0

mri

rn

a

N0N

m > 0ut  u

O

C >• M

m

C -

p

L

o

ri

F-  

N

0

I, 

M

N

n

n

o

v

0

N

U1

V

w

O

I 

O

Li

V1

uVI

O

N

m

N

IZT

V1

V? 

N

N

In

O

I

lD

m

E

V1

Vn

ri

N

V

w

N

E

In

VT

VT

V1

N

LLC41

0  
U

0E
v

O

IDD

m

m'

D

o

m

m

O

0

0

rl

I

M

U1

N

V

01

a

v
w

umU
Q) NIn

N

M

V

lD

w

0
0

GJ

m

H

G1

C0uC00U
a

Uata0- 0m
N
mcriN0N

h00
Q0mri

rn

a

N0N

m > 0ut  u

O

C >• M

m

C -

p

L

o

ri

F-  

N

0

I, 

M

N

n

n

o

v

C

m

0

0

r" 

ori

m

m

w

Li

V1

u

VI

O

N

m

m

IZT

tq

m4

V1

I

wN

N

I% 

N

V1

V

V1

N

Ea

m

o

7

j

U

41

0  U

O

IDD

m

m'

D

o

m

m

O

a

m> 

5

rl

I

M

U1

N

V

01

a

v
w

Q
NU1

C0uC00UaUata0- 0mN
mcriN0Nh00Q0mri

rn

a

N0N

m > 0ut  u

O

C >• M

m

C -

p
L

o

ri

F-  



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

June 2023 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item R



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
June 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  July 3, 2023 
 
• Goldsboro Youth Council (GYC) met for its final regular monthly meeting on June 7th.    
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a regular monthly meeting on June 13th. 

The MLK Subcommittee did not meet for the month of June. 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) enjoyed their annual recess for the month of June and 

will resume meeting in July. 
 

• Community Relations Activities:  
1. Staff facilitated a Juneteenth planning meeting on June 13th.  
2. Staff provided support for the Jamz Out Juneteenth event on June 17th.  
3. Staff attended the regular monthly meeting of CALM on June 27th. 
4. Staff attended a Social Meeting Training on June 28th.  
5. Staff engaged in 2 department staff meetings in June. 
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended a Pre-bid conference at TC Coley on June 1st. 
2. Staff completed Lead for NC Fellows Interviews on June 2nd.  
3. Staff attended Choice Neighborhood Planning meetings on June 7th, 15th, & 21st.  
4. Staff attended Region 10 Continuum of Care (CoC) monthly meeting on June 14thand Region 10 Coordinated 

Entry weekly meetings on June 7th, 24th & 28th.    
5. Staff facilitated a CDBG Demo/Clearance discussion with Planning on June 9th.  
6. Staff attended the annual HUD All Grantee training on June 14th.   
7. Staff met with IT & reviewed CD Software proposals on June 21st.   
8. Staff met with NCCEH & Region 10 CE Lead to discuss the Coordinated Entry process for homeless on June 22nd.   
9. Staff engaged in 6 virtual consultations with HUD for the month of June. 

     
• The Department received zero (0) housing complaints, one (1) consumer complaint, and twenty-four (24) requests 

for assistance for the month of June. *Please refer to Community Relations & Development Addendum for a detailed 
summary.   

2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4 0       3 
Consumer/Other 
Requests 

27 36 14 15 19 25       23 

 
2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 
Consumer & Other 
Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43 27 32 27 19 20 20 40 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT Addendum 
June 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  July 3, 2023 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
Nature of Complaint               Resolution 

Lost gift card purchased 
at local nail 
shop/Merchant would 
not refund money 

Referred to Legal Aid of 
NC 

 
Assistance with Resources 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 16 Application provided /Application follow-up provided 
First-Time Homebuyer 
 

4 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Rental assistance 1 Provided Community Resources Listing 
Church information 
update 

1 Updated church listing 

Assistance with paying 
property taxes 

1 Referred to Wayne County Tax Office 

Resources to assist 
others 

1 Provided Community Resources Listing 

Total Requests: 24  
 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
June 2023 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: July 10, 2023 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 12 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interest regarding downtown. Met with 25 existing business owners.  

• Social District preparation – Initial Council presentation made June 20th. 

• South Center Street Development discussions with ACM and three potential property developers.   

• Union Station discussions regarding stabilization, fair market value and potential reuse. Appraisal was delivered 
in March. Exploring grant opportunities to ease the cost of rehabilitation. 

• NC Main Street Annual Statistics – due July 30.  

• NC Main Street conference prep and inventory of downtown maintenance needs.  

• Parking Commission discussions.  

• Merchant/Property Information Mgmt – Integrating to new website. Launched new downtown website. 

• Staff continuing to work with Choice Neighborhoods Team, attending bi-weekly calls. Attended two visioning 
sessions.  

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• Staff is meeting with NC Main Street staff monthly re: 2024 NC Main Street Conference, March 12-14. 

• Mural wall primed with ARPA arts grant. Preparing to apply for a grassroots grant to complete the mural wall in 
the fall.   

• Staff attended two NCMS webinars in June – historic preservation and statistics training. 

• Erin completed the Leadership Wayne program and was selected to serve on the Board of Regents for 2023-
2027. 

• Staff hosted the Public Art Steering selection process and narrowed selections for 13 for public input. Feedback 
concludes July 12; pieces will be installed September 22.  

• Other Meetings: Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting, Social District Discussions, NCFF Board and 
Planning Mtgs, Transformation Grant Discussion, TRC with Planning 

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

• DGDC Merchants on June 6, Design, Economic Vitality and Promotions Committees on June 13, Executive 
Committee on June 14 and DGDC Board of Directors on June 21.   

• Center Street Jam – every other Thursday, May 4 - August 10 

• Sprinkler Fun Days – June 8 – August 10 

• Staff is assisted with Juneteenth celebration planning. 

• Staff supported the Arts Council’s Benefit Concert scheduled for June 3rd. 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  

• HUB Events: Center Street Jam,  Arts Council Benefit Concert - June 3, COG Wellness Event - June 14th, Choice 
Neighborhoods Community Event-  July 8th 

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 

• New Businesses: None this month 

• Coming Soon, The Firm at 156 S. Center;  Spice Bouquet - 112 E Mulberry 

• Arts Council is in process of relocating to 139 W Walnut St.  
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers: 15K; 64.4K reach  



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
June 2023 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.                     
Date Prepared:  07-05-23 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• This project is 99% complete; 
• Waiting on final payment and project close out. 

 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 
 
Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 

• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering 
report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 

• PER/EID Report submitted  to DWI for review and approval; 
• New Pump Station to be named River Bend Pump Station and will be a part of Phase 2 of the Mount 

Olive Pickle Development. 
 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are underway for June 2023. 

 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith continues to work on the final report and to facilitate meetings with all interested parties 

in Wayne County. 
 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Projected completion July/August. 
 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Offer and acceptance documentation was submitted by staff in September 2022; 
• Staff is working on the design phase of this project. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories; 
• Project is scheduled to advertise August 1, 2023. 

 
 



2 

Pavement Condition Survey 
• Project has been suspended. 

 
Turning Movement Count Inventory 

• Project has been suspended. 
 
SJAFB MAG Meter 

• This project is in the design phase; 
• CDM Smith is working on electrical design. 

 
NCSU Floodprint Project 

• Staff is working with NCSU on potential project applications for Fall 2023. 
 
2023 Resurfacing Project 

• Staff is preparing bid documents;  
• Project is scheduled to advertise August 1, 2023. 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
JUNE 2023 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: July 10, 2023 

 
 

FY 21-22
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues May-22 Adjusted Budget May-23 Collected
General Fund 40,892,397$    46,706,187$        39,653,541$    84.90%
Utility Fund 18,552,316      24,870,166          21,535,449      86.59%
Downtown District Fund 94,886             117,019               103,453           88.41%
Occupancy Tax Fund 997,677           1,196,488            1,022,611        85.47%
Stormwater Fund 1,767,696        2,203,023            1,859,348        84.40%
     Total 62,304,970$    75,092,882$        64,174,401$    85.46%

Expenditures
General Fund 35,855,608$    46,706,187$        37,628,899$    80.57%
Utility Fund 13,835,346      24,870,166 16,330,834 65.66%
Downtown District Fund 68,800             117,019 61,982             52.97%
Occupancy Tax Fund 982,969           1,196,488 1,021,103 85.34%
Stormwater Fund 1,777,826        2,203,023 1,794,909 81.47%
     Total 52,520,550$    75,092,882$        56,837,727$    75.69%

FY 21-22
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

May-22 Adjusted Budget May-23 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 18,844,570$    19,271,704$        19,052,956$    98.86%
Charges for Services 23,667,385      30,037,807          26,029,209      86.65%
Revenue Other Agencies 11,133,174      16,800,402          11,355,661      67.59%
Other Revenues 5,452,002        3,639,671            4,407,579        121.10%
Fund Balance -                   2,014,301            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 3,207,840        3,328,996            3,328,996        100.00%
     Total 62,304,970$    75,092,882$        64,174,401$    85.46%

Expenditures
Labor 25,268,372$    29,714,622$        26,774,687$    90.11%
Non-Labor 27,252,178      45,378,260          30,063,040      66.25%
     Total 52,520,550$    75,092,882$        56,837,727$    75.69%

FY 21-22 Actual Total 
Collections Actual May-23 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 27,778$           7,377$                  43,981$           
Surplus 154,548$         -$                      3,876$             

FY 22-23

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 22-23

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report -June 2023
Prepared: tlw 7/11/2023 7:55 AM
Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.
Reviewed: cfg 7/12/2023 10:52 AM

Granting 
Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description

Source 
(Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date 

 Current 
Amount Spent  

 Amount Spent 
to Project to 

Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow Fund
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F 22,201$                     22,201$                  -$                   22,201$             -$                   22,201$             -$                   C3101
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F 73,557$                     73,557$                  24,278$             67,480$             -$                   67,995$             (515)$                 C3101
HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 19,523$                     19,523$                  -$                   19,523$             -$                   19,523$             -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 22,910$                     22,910$                  -$                   22,910$             -$                   22,910$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 353,346$                   353,346$                -$                   216,456$          -$                   216,456$          -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$                   214,732$                -$                   49,554$             -$                   49,554$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,643$                   351,643$                -$                   170,649$          -$                   170,649$          -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 245,547$                   245,547$                -$                   28,472$             -$                   28,472$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$                   427,303$                1,412$               133,792$          -$                   133,792$          -$                   C2102
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,302$                   354,302$                -$                   87,559$             (428)$                 87,559$             (0)$                     C2101
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 252,710$                   252,710$                8,590$               32,592$             -$                   32,592$             0$                      C3101
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 358,697$                   358,697$                25,149$             25,149$             25,149$             25,149$             -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 280,171$                   280,171$                27,467$             27,467$             2,155$               27,468$             (1)$                     C3101
HUD CDBG ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$                   907,913$                36,436$             36,436$             509$                  36,436$             -$                   C3102

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$                   100,000$                -$                   96,570$             -$                   96,570$             -$                   C2101
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$                   150,000$                -$                   117,975$          -$                   117,975$          -$                   22
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$               4,604,077$             -$                   4,982,838$       -$                   4,179,246$       803,592$          R1102
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 188,813$                   200,946$                -$                   274,138$          -$                   106,537$          167,601$          P3101
DOJ NC Dept of Justice/US DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant Federal S 1/3/2019 21,366$                     21,366$                  -$                   18,408$             -$                   18,408$             0$                      P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/25/2019 47,003$                     47,003$                  -$                   42,435$             -$                   42,435$             -$                   P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/19/2020 34,766$                     34,766$                  -$                   30,381$             -$                   30,381$             -$                   P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Federal F 6/8/2020 87,179$                     87,179$                  -$                   87,179$             -$                   87,179$             (0)$                     P3106
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2022 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 12/19/2022 23,574$                     23,574$                  14,368$             14,368$             5,726$               16,413$             (2,045)$             P3102
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$               7,189,383$             -$                   7,385,809$       -$                   6,527,315$       858,494$          R1103

FEMA FEMA GO FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, Federal F 7/24/2020 202,083$                   202,083$                -$                   202,083$          -$                   202,083$          -$                   R1104
UST/Wayne Co US Treasury-Wayne Co. CARES Act Funding Federal F 9/9/2020 966,688$                   966,688$                -$                   966,688$          -$                   966,688$          (0)$                     R1105

NC Tourism NC Tourism Recovery Grant CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism Federal F 10/6/2020 25,750$                     25,750$                  -$                   25,750$             -$                   25,750$             -$                   R1106
Triangle YMCA Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Federal F 11/18/2020 19,681$                     19,681$                  -$                   19,681$             -$                   19,681$             -$                   R1106

UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$               8,813,514$             37,394$             9,143,709$       -$                   5,279,797$       3,863,912$       R1107
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$               9,083,790$             -$                   4,851,571$       -$                   8,519,172$       (3,667,601)$      S1102
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$               1,259,802$             -$                   639,892$          -$                   730,989$          (91,097)$           S1103

Debt Debt Funded 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Debt D 2010 8,605,000$               8,684,163$             1,061$               488,548$          -$                   466,382$          22,166$             S1104
Goldenleaf Goldenleaf Foundation Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. RePrivate P 10/11/2017 598,574$                   598,574$                -$                   598,574$          -$                   598,574$          (0)$                     S1105
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Federal F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$               30,000$                  -$                   30,000$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   S1106

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-000State S 1/24/2022 300,000$                   304,500$                -$                   4,500$               -$                   302,300$          (297,800)$         S1107
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$                   101,500$                -$                   1,500$               2,328$               33,526$             (32,026)$           S1108

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Insta Federal F 6/6/2019 32,400$                     265,513$                198,113$          233,113$          -$                   265,513$          (32,400)$           W1111
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Federal F 3/7/2021 1,484,909$               1,484,909$             -$                   1,519,536$       -$                   1,517,550$       1,986$               W1112
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$               6,029,395$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   25,000$             5,000$               W1113

Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$             11,150,000$           -$                   -$                   -$                   376,000$          (376,000)$         G1102
Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                     80,000$                  -$                   32,691$             -$                   -$                   32,691$             G1103

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$                   632,943$                -$                   557,943$          -$                   251,072$          306,871$          G1104
Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$               5,048,522$             -$                   5,046,649$       -$                   4,980,164$       66,485$             G1105
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,417,326$               6,417,323$             -$                   6,417,323$       2,500$               6,259,362$       157,961$          G1106

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 39,201$                     39,201$                  -$                   45,636$             177$                  42,118$             3,518$               G1107
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 16,277$                     16,277$                  -$                   16,531$             183$                  14,477$             2,054$               G1108

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 50,000$                     50,000$                  -$                   50,254$             6,078$               6,569$               43,685$             G1109
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 56,351$                     56,351$                  90$                    62,273$             -$                   19,487$             42,786$             P3104

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,594,366$               1,594,366$             -$                   1,594,144$       136,023$          1,173,046$       421,098$          T2201
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$               1,151,600$             -$                   1,136,500$       -$                   8,537$               1,127,963$       F3111

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 3,600$                       3,600$                     200$                  3,581$               66$                    66$                    3,515$               F3110

Total 80,216,736$             80,452,893$           374,558$          47,709,008$     180,466$          44,277,116$     3,431,892$       

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-06 June_1.xlsx Grants 2023-06 June 7/12/2023 10:52 AM



Prepared Date: 7/5/23 7:55 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 7/11/23 5:30 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 6/30/2023 5/30/2023 6/30/2022 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 2,655,738.12$              3,777,263.82$              2,756,215.55$              0.00%
PNC - Money Market 8,084,987.99$              5,068,521.69$              9,428,286.75$              3.09%
PNC - Debit Account 2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       1,000.00$                       0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 624,873.05$                  624,170.82$                  15,090,281.59$            1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 259,499.69$                  258,438.44$                  250,111.64$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 9,143,708.97$              9,106,314.71$              4,413,813.25$              n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,539,303.54$              4,520,738.69$              4,375,070.53$              n/a
NCCMT - MM - Street Bonds 2018 -$                                 -$                                 2.90$                               n/a
Truist MMA 24,936,358.96$            24,872,906.05$            -$                                 3.10%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock -$                                 414,245.61$                  0.01%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,284.10$              2,380,264.54$              0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 340,182.27$                  1,872,619.90$              1,868,562.72$              0.24%
Totals 52,966,936.69$           52,483,238.66$           38,597,590.54$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
June 30, 2023

Cash & Investment FY2023.xlsx 6‐30‐23 7/11/2023 5:30 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers ‐ July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

City Manager Timothy Salmon Operational Supplies ‐$                               (5,000)$                             
City Manager Timothy Salmon Consultant Fees 5,000$                           ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ City Manager 5,000$                          (5,000)$                             

GEC Felicia Brown Operational Supplies 400$                              ‐$                                   
GEC Felicia Brown Food & Beverage Resale‐GEC ‐$                               (400)$                                 

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ GEC 400$                              (400)$                                 

IT Scott Williams Travel ‐$                               (1,620)$                             
IT Scott Williams Clothing Allowance 1,620$                           ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ IT 1,620$                          (1,620)$                             

Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular ‐$                               (5,500)$                             
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies 500$                              ‐$                                   
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Security System 5,000$                           ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ Public Works Admin 5,500$                          (5,500)$                             

PW Garage Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular ‐$                               (8,000)$                             
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Machine/Equipment Maintenance 3,350$                           ‐$                                   
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Batteries 300$                              ‐$                                   
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Automotive Parts 8,000$                           ‐$                                   
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Equipment Rent ‐$                               (3,350)$                             
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Vehicle Maintenance‐Fleet Charges 200$                              ‐$                                   
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Car Wash ‐$                               (500)$                                 

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ PW Garage 11,850$                        (11,850)$                           

PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Contract Services 16$                                ‐$                                   
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Vacation Pay Out 621$                              ‐$                                   
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Overtime ‐$                               (637)$                                 

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ PW Buildings & Grounds 637$                              (637)$                                 

PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies 3,568$                           ‐$                                   
PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Tree Service ‐$                               (3,568)$                             
PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Hospital Insurance ‐$                               (21)$                                   
PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher Vehicle Maintenance‐Fleet Charges 21$                                ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ PW Cemetery 3,589$                          (3,589)$                             

Finance Catherine Gwynn Postage 464$                              ‐$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Machine/Equipment Maintenance ‐$                               (500)$                                 
Finance Catherine Gwynn Software License Fees 4,066$                           ‐$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Fees & Dues ‐$                               (500)$                                 
Finance Catherine Gwynn Employee Christmas Party 30$                                ‐$                                   
Finance Catherine Gwynn Office Machine Maintenance ‐$                               (1,020)$                             
Finance Catherine Gwynn Wellness Earnings ‐$                               (540)$                                 
Finance Catherine Gwynn Data Processing Forms ‐$                               (1,500)$                             
Finance Catherine Gwynn Subscriptions ‐$                               (500)$                                 

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ Finance 4,560$                          (4,560)$                             

PW Streets Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 33$                                ‐$                                   
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Education Reimbursement ‐$                               (66)$                                   
PW Streets Rick Fletcher Shoes‐Steel Toe 33$                                ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ PW Streets 66$                                (66)$                                   

PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular ‐$                               (6,800)$                             
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies 6,800$                           ‐$                                   

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_7.xlsx Transfer Summary Jun 7/11/2023 5:19 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers ‐ July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ PW Solid Waste 6,800$                          (6,800)$                             

Engineering Bobby Croom Maintenance Materials ‐$                               (26,000)$                           
Engineering Bobby Croom Signs & Markings Maint. Materials ‐$                               (3,000)$                             
Engineering Bobby Croom Bucket Truck 29,000$                        ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ Engineering 29,000$                        (29,000)$                           

Fire Ron Stempien Medical Exams ‐$                               (1,000)$                             
Fire Ron Stempien Operational Supplies ‐$                               (17,694)$                           
Fire Ron Stempien Uniforms ‐$                               (8,654)$                             
Fire Ron Stempien Protective Clothing 700$                              ‐$                                   
Fire Ron Stempien Other Training ‐$                               (9,000)$                             
Fire Ron Stempien Administrative Car 20,504$                        ‐$                                   
Fire Ron Stempien Salaries & Wages Bonus 248$                              ‐$                                   
Fire Ron Stempien Vehicle Fuel 66$                                ‐$                                   
Fire Ron Stempien Multi‐Peril Insurance 52,294$                        ‐$                                   
Fire Ron Stempien Auto Liability ‐$                               (52,294)$                           
Fire Ron Stempien Shoes‐Uniform ‐$                               (3,700)$                             
Fire Ron Stempien Vehicle Repairs 18,596$                        ‐$                                   
Fire Ron Stempien Vehicle Fuel‐Internal Charges ‐$                               (66)$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ Fire 92,408$                        (92,408)$                           

Police Mike West Travel ‐$                               (31,000)$                           
Police Mike West Postage 25$                                ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Fees & Dues 130$                              ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Contract Services 200$                              ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Other Training ‐$                               (16,000)$                           
Police Mike West Office Supplies ‐$                               (6,300)$                             
Police Mike West Administrative Car 7,000$                           ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Salaries & Wages Bonus 850$                              ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Cleaning Supplies ‐$                               (1,922)$                             
Police Mike West Salaries & Wages Perm. Part‐Time ‐$                               (7,000)$                             
Police Mike West Clothing Allowance ‐$                               (3,300)$                             
Police Mike West Vacation Pay Out 31,000$                        ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Multi‐Peril Insurance 86$                                ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Auto Liability 271$                              ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Salaries & Wages Overtime 80,530$                        ‐$                                   
Police Mike West NCLGERS‐Retirement 3,300$                           ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Telephone 2,000$                           ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Natural Gas 16,000$                        ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Equipment Expense 360$                              ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Vehicle Maintenance‐Fleet Charges 3,000$                           ‐$                                   
Police Mike West Radio Maintenance ‐$                               (2,000)$                             
Police Mike West Gangs Resist Education ‐$                               (3,000)$                             
Police Mike West #N/A ‐$                               (80,530)$                           
Police Mike West Portable Hand Held Radios 6,300$                           ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ Police 151,052$                      (151,052)$                         

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Uniforms ‐$                               (250)$                                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Protective Clothing 250$                              ‐$                                   
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Contract Services ‐$                               (1,000)$                             
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Merchandise for Resale‐PARKS & REC 1,000$                           ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ Parks & Recreation 1,250$                          (1,250)$                             

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Fees & Dues 44$                                ‐$                                   

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_7.xlsx Transfer Summary Jun 7/11/2023 5:19 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers ‐ July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Tree Service ‐$                               (68)$                                   
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Street Sweeper 22$                                ‐$                                   
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Consultant Fees ‐$                               (21,436)$                           
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Postage‐Internal Charges only! 2$                                   ‐$                                   
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Utility Vehicle 3,254$                           ‐$                                   
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Crew Cab Pick‐Up Tk W/Utility Body 18,182$                        ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ Stormwater 21,504$                        (21,504)$                           

Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Software License Fees ‐$                               (8,500)$                             
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Cell Phone Stipend ‐$                               (700)$                                 
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Shoes‐Steel Toe ‐$                               (400)$                                 
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Worker's Compensation Insurance 329$                              ‐$                                   
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Printing ‐$                               (200)$                                 
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Multi‐Peril Insurance 42$                                ‐$                                   
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Auto Liability 231$                              ‐$                                   
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Hospital Insurance ‐$                               (840)$                                 
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Telephone ‐$                               (508)$                                 
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Worker's Compensation ‐$                               (1,000)$                             
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Bank Fees 19,546$                        ‐$                                   
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Vehicle Fuel‐Internal Charges ‐$                               (8,000)$                             

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory 20,148$                        (20,148)$                           

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 200$                              ‐$                                   
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Machine/Equipment Maintenance ‐$                               (2,081)$                             
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Postage‐Internal Charges only! 900$                              ‐$                                   
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Utility Valve Truck 641$                              ‐$                                   
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Call Duty Pay 340$                              ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory 2,081$                          (2,081)$                             

Compost Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance ‐$                               (400)$                                 
Compost Bert Sherman Printing 400$                              ‐$                                   

Transfers ‐ May 2023 ‐ Compost 400$                              (400)$                                 

Transfers ‐ ALL FUNDS ‐ Jun 2023 357,865$                      (357,865)$                         

Transfers ‐ ALL FUNDS ‐ Jul 2022‐Jun 2023 1,177,447$                  (1,177,447)$                     

Control Totals 2,251,042$                   (2,251,042)$                     

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_7.xlsx Transfer Summary Jun 7/11/2023 5:19 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
June 2023 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: July 7, 2023  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 60% of the time. 40% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 4:35.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred 99% of all calls.   
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 1 family due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Station Tours, Birthday Parades, Sprinkler Fun Days, O’Berry Safety Day, Truck Displays, and 
Center Street Jam. We reached 131 Adults and 274 Children with fire prevention materials.  
 

 

 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263 277       255 1530 

Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 4       4 24 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103 116       102 609 

Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42 27       32 190 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45 58       45 271 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69 72       73 436 

Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063 1777       2521 15123 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0 5       3 17 

Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110 88       122 733 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264 246 264 280 231 255 296 245 2490 
Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5 4 1 3 3 1  1 5 1 4 43 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86 99 124 103 73 79 82 88 1058 
Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38 27 24 33 31 30 35 29 343 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56 57 53 73 59 67 78 57 686 
Other: 66 53 68 54 54 83 60 60 70 68 74 100 67 811 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715 1452 1700 1647 1835 1742 1214 1976 23716 
Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2 5 3 2 5 1 2 3 32 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187 112 142 145 135 134 80 135 1622 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
June 2023 
Date Prepared:  July 7, 2023 
 
 
Human Resources  

• Summer Grill Break – Presented by Wellness Committee 
• WA Foster Inspection for Phone & Alarm  
• Updated Personnel Policy Manual – Extended Sick Leave Policy 
• Independence Day Celebration Tailgate for City Hall Employees on June 30th at 11:30 a.m. 
• Researching Background check companies 
• Reviewed Occupational Health Nurse job description and prepared for advertisement 
• Reviewed and completed Police Support Technician job description and FES Worksheet 
• Provided separation pay information to PD for recruitment purposes 
• Consultant with Dr. Grant of Immediate Care regarding standing medical orders for Occupational 

Health Clinic 
• Reviewing Evaluations created for Public Works with new hiearchy 
• Continuation of Laserfische scanning project. 
• Preparing for New Hire Orientation on August 16, 2023 
• Coordinating Hike to the Mountains – Presented by Wellness Committee 
• Preparing for Supervisors Training scheduled for August 1-3 
• Preparing for Customer Service training. 
• Preparing a Heat Related Illnesses presentation 
• Preparing for Pierce Insurance 2024 Open Enrollment for Supplemental Benefits for October 16 – 

27, 2023 
• Preparing for BCBS State Health Plan 2024 Open Enrollment scheduled for October 9 – 27, 2023 
• Updated Safety page on city website with pictures from Safety Awards presentation 
• Preparing for American Red Cross Blood Drive in September 

 
Safety   

• June City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections. 
• Met with Adam Twiss concerning the Paramount’s construction repairs. 
• Worked with Carolina Phone and Alarm on getting the foster Center sprinkler system to code. 
• Met with Public Works, Public Utilities, Parks & Recreation departments concerning the city drug 

policy. 
• Met with employee at Police Department concerning allergies. 
• Assisted with the Fourth of July picnic for city hall employees. 
• Safety and Incident committee meeting. Heard 5 cases. 
• Did field inspections to check on crews during the Heat advisory. 
• Field Safety for private contractors and crews 

 
 
 
 



2 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 70 clinic visits this month.  
 

 

Health Training Sessions: 
• 10 routine BP checks 
• 24 Drug Screens  
• 1 Tetanus shot  
• 3 Finger stick Blood sugar checks 

 
Meetings: 

• June 21, 2023 Meeting @ Fire Station 2 to discuss upcoming Breast Cancer T-shirt sale to help with 
Colors for Cures 

• June 27, 2023 Meeting @ Public Works with Department Heads and Supervisors to discuss 
Workplace injury reporting process  
 

Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  
• No employees COVID positive or Quarantined 
• 2 employees started FMLA (1 continuous and 1 intermittent) 
• 2 Workplace Injuries, both were OSHA recordable  
• Assisted 1 with finding Primary Care Provider 
• 1 referral to EAP 
• 1 referral to a specialist 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

DRUG SCREENS = 24 TOTAL 
New Hire CDL:  1 
New Hire non- CDL:  6 
Promotion CDL:  0 
Promotion non-CDL: 1 

Post-Accident DOT:  0 
 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  6  
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 2 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  8 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 0 



3 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

428 430 428 426 427 431       428 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91 94 110 121       100 

Total Employees 520 519 519 520 538 552       528 
Male  402 402 400 399 412 419       406 
Female 118 117 119 121 126 133       122 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318 318 325 331       321 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

179 173 172 175 183 188       178 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16 16 19 21       17 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 3 3 3       4 
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8 8 8 9       8 
Vacancies  39 45 41 41 37 37       40 
Applications 137 389 354 320 185 138       254 

Applicant Notices 43 90 218 173 63 127       119 
New Hires  10 4 8 1 12 4       7 
Promotions 0 0 0 0 10 1       2 
Resignations 3 8 4 4 5 6       5 
Retirements  1 1 1 1 0 0       1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0 0 0 2       0 

Turnover Rate  1.2% 2.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 1.9%       1.5% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2 2 4 1       3 

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3 2 5 2       2 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

13 3 3 0 0 0       3 

Telework 13 14 14 14 14 14       14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 



4 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427 418 417 420 427 424 422 427 427 423 431 424 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111 113 117 137 143 143 144 137 125 106 100 124 

Total Employees 539 536 531 534 557 570 567 566 564 552 529 531 548 
Male  411 412 409 411 420 428 426 425 429 417 404 408 417 
Female 128 124 122 123 137 142 141 141 135 135 125 123 131 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

321 324 321 325 332 
 

340 339 338 334 324 316 321 328 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188 187 200 204 203 202 206 207 189 188 197 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17 17 19 19 18 18 16 16 15 16 17 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 5 
Vacancies  24 25 30 31 31 33 26 36 34 35 35 27 31 
Applications 308 179 386 215 251 392 121 317 146 309 123 94 237 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90 90 230 173 92 97 476 126 69 43 148 
New Hires  6 4 9 9 7 9 7 7 7 4 4 6 7 
Promotions 3 0 4 4 3 3 0 2 6 8 6 2 3 
Resignations 6 10 9 9 3 8 8 6 7 5 3 3 6 
Retirements  2 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 0 2 5 2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Turnover Rate  2.4% 3.0% 2.6% 2.1% 1.0% 2.6% 2.4% 1.9% 2.1% 1.4% 1.4% 
 

2.1% 2.1% 

Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4 1 4 2 3 4 0 0 2 3 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

76 7 1 1 9 14 23 3 9 7 1 8 13 

Telework 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 
 
 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
June 2023 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: July 5, 2023 
 
 

• GIS Upgrade Completed. 
• Cityworks Server and Software Upgrade Completed. 
• Data Cables and TV Mounts for JOC Completed. 
• Prepped Mobile Unit to be Moved. 
• Upgraded Televisions for Council Meetings. 
• Migrated Getac Servers to New Storage. 
• Updated ShotSpotter. 
• Set up and Relocated Media Room for Council Meetings. 
• Installed Conduit to DGDC building. 
• Updated Business Registration Application. 
• Five IT Staff Completed Customer Service Training. 

 
 

 
2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730 689       750 4497 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694 778       765 4589 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383 294       353  

 
 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503 562 523 624 749 663 656 521 6,255 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540 464 548 590 686 689 795 515 6,182 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473 571 546 580 643 617 
 

478 529  

 
 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
June 2023 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 07/10/23 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for June totaled $7,559,333.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our local 
economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $35,323.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $3,930 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $2,160. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $22,540. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 781 inspections for the month.  During the month of June, fifteen (15) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 348 permits were issued for the month.    Fifty-eight (58) plan reviews were 
completed for June. 
 
 
 
 

 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $9.2 $10.4 $7.6 $17.1
All Bldgs $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $5.0 $6.7 $5.3 $11.5
Residential $ (K) $1.5M $652 $2.8M $2.6M $4.1M $2.9M $2.4M
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $4.2 $3.7 $2.3 $5.6
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $39 $50 $35 $43
Inspections 511 517 626 542 717 781 616
Permits Issued 287 413 347 414 333 348 357
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 53 83 58 55

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $17.8 $6.5 $9.7 $10.7 $8.6 $5.6 $8.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $15.4 $3.3 $6.5 $9.4 $6.4 $2.3 $6.1
Residential $ (K) $813 $3M $472 $4.4M $341 $1.3M $0 $300 $3.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.4M
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $2.4 $3.2 $3.1 $1.3 $2.3 $3.3 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $36 $48 $43 $42 $33 $29 $40
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 531 661 621 587 836 512 612
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 253 306 488 306 288 208 303
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 58 56 74 57 33 23 51



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
June 2023 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 6/10/2023 

 
--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 

• June activity included 15 rental/use days, including 10 public performances. 
o Notable Activity: 

 Yolanda Rabun: Gladys Concert 
 Ms Robin’s Dance Recital 
 Artistic Dance Recital 
 Juneteenth Panel Discussion  
 SJAFB Spotlight Theatre Performances 

• June cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 10 days, 7 public performances 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

 Façade Ornamental Elements removed to be treated and reattached by TA Loving 
 HVAC Mini Split repairs and Controls upgrade coordinated with Piedmont 
 Wheelchair lift – To be revisited in 2024 
 Sound System repair and upgrade – Foundation to fund 

 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $110,336:   Labor: $37,506 / Operations: $6,486 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $66,344 
Revenues: $71,398:   Tickets: -$47,764 / Rentals: -$13,322 / Concession: $3826 / Grants: $6,486  
  

 

  
 

 

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 FY 23 Total Average

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325 $149,481 $63,274 $46,490 $66,591 $75,399 $100,423 $110,336 $849,210 $70,768

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098 $99,030 $49,176 $12,457 $67,200 $47,572 $77,666 $71,398 $542,394 $45,200

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $110,177 $69,919 $27,119 $73,052 $65,217 $56,198 $72,730 $701,308 $58,442

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $85,238 $67,668 $10,947 $35,192 $57,493 $56,429 $55,513 $455,521 $37,960



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
June 2023 
Prepared By: Stephanie Martin/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 7/7/23 

 
• Our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) hosted several 7v7 NC High School football trainings in June –     

400 participants 
 

• Both Mina Weil Pool and Peacock Pool operated on their regular schedules in June – 2,000+ participants 
 

• Lifeguards performed nine (9) saves at our pools during the month of June  
 

• Goldsboro Parks and Recreation (GPR) is the recipient of a FREE swim lesson grant; in addition, GPR also 
received donations from areas businesses – this will allow us to provide FREE swim lessons to a 
minimum of 25 participants 

 
• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted seventeen (17) events during June – 1,995 guests and three (3) 

City of Goldsboro events – 170 guests 
 

• Staff at the GEC had to turn away 33 patrons due to dates already being booked 
 

• Our Annual Cruise the Neuse was held on June 3rd – 101 participants 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted several tournaments this month including Knights of Columbus and 
Southeastern Seniors – 127 golfers 
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center in June – 119 participants  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 281 visitors  
 

• Full-Day Camp for 7-12 year olds and Half-Day Camp for 5-6 year olds held at WA Foster Center – 200+ 
participants   
 

• Senior Card Group Play at TC Coley Community Center – 115 participants  
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during June – 500 participants  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean the park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff 

  



 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JU
L 

AU
G 

SE
P OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                          
Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241 $18,705 $11,441 $11,359              $17,065 
Facility Usage 1250 1975 1802 3225 2065   2165             2080 
Expenditures $6,742 $8,122 $7,537 $6,475 $13,627 $17,384              $9,981 
                            
W. A. Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977 $2,195 $1,170 $1,165 $14,570              $4,156 
Rental Revenue $948 $1,827 $2,918 $1,088  $625 $308              $1,286 
Facility Usage 2633 1632 2022 2651  2983 1546              2245 
Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603 $11,993  $8,585 $26,741              $13,165 
                            
T. C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $497 $1,130 $539 $280  $250 $167              $477 
Rental Revenue $1,890 $720 $450 $450  $450 $1,015             $829 
Facility Usage 197 73 170 193  210 154              166 
Expenditures  $1,874 $1,379 $2,203 $3,934  $6,644 $14,466              $5,083 
                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $36              $6 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $0             $0 
Facility Usage 190 182 98 98  45  74             115 
Expenditures $7,618 $8,447 $6,350 $6,729  $7,462 $11,736              $8,057 
                            
Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $185 $0 $140  $11 $4,082             $736 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $400              $67 
Facility Usage 166 251 295 210  212 2383             586 
Expenditures $3,749 $5,489 $4,688 $3,818  $5,927 $20,543             $7,369 
                            
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $65 $32,120 $23,050 $1,142 $5,780  $2,565              $10,787 
Rental Revenue $6,136 $0 $85 $0  $900 $0              $1,187 
Facility Usage 17550 19750 21900 22350  36285 21222              23176 
Expenditures $4,917 $9,557 $10,461 $10,886 $10,456 $33,132             $13,235 
                            
Golf Course                         

Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850 $48,454 $56,560  $73,812              $50,886 

Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218 $36,482 $53,315 $60,208             $50,294 
Rounds of Golf 1200 1592 2788 1941  2309  2120             1992 
Net -$26,046 -$2,854 $3,632 $11,972 $3,245  $13,603             $592 
                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / Sponsorships $0 $2,000 $0 $0  $1,600 $1,730             $888 
Participation 0 200 70 152  160 101              114 
Expenditures $18 $911 $511 $94  $3,170 $2,194             $1,150 
                            
TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328 $71,429 $78,782  $110,044              $88,370 
TOTAL EXPENSES $95,883 $81,544 $96,571 $80,411 $109,186 $186,404              $108,333 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $530,218          

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $649,999           



 

 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Herman Park Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050 $27,880 $3,200 $1,190 $720 $1,710 $1,505 $990 $3,614 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520 $1,366 $1,013 $1,895 $0 $0 $450 $450 $982 
Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159 1475 470 224 286 468 390 292 386 
Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142 $8,344 $17,670 $8,333 $4,855 $5,048 $4,652 $4,485 $6,948 
               

WA Foster Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453 $3,750 $1,475 $1,185 $1,108 $1,258 $563 $1,952 $1,322 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163 $1,653 $2,950 $1,025 998 $1,238 $513 $1,377 $1,625 
Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814 2495 2268 2814 1825 1719 1579 2325 1779 
Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952 $13,819 $29,738 $15,471 $8,798 $11,022 $9,556 $10,764 $15,177 
               

T.C. Coley Community Center 
Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880 $948 $525 $698 $855 $585 $585 $585 $639 
Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80 $0 $100 $0 $0 $42 $0 $357 $202 
               

Specialized Recreation 
Program 
Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $39 $0 $3 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360 220 203 211 222 230 160 123 179 
Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039 $4,761 $6,253 $2,946 $2,064 $10,867 $11,985 $6,856 $6,064 
               

Senior Programs & Pools 
Program 
Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807 $8,484 $4,936 $2,594 $190 $190 $462 $190 $1,606 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243 3492 3287 1870 268 256 194 271 1073 
Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437 $11,092 $37,817 $30,044 $13,284 $5,555 $3,114 $5,234 $9,621 
               

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX 
Program 
Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384 $2,790 $3,155 $27,200 $27,200 $2,990 $7,460 $1,362 $10,575 

Field / Shelter 
Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $44 

Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914 36785 11450 13125 13125 23100 23000 13425 21478 

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794 $10,597 $16,635 $11,609 $9,099 $8,745 $13,479 $5,587 $15,364 

               

Golf Course 
Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934 $61,883 $51,301 $56,058 $50,749 $58,366 $34,376 $26,979 $47,725 
Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279 $49,110 $57,300 $80,153 $43,513 $41,316 $34,791 $43,762 $44,723 
Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936 1976 1816 1401 1291 1699 1120 541 1478 
Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655 $12,773 -$5,999 -$24,100 $7,236 $17,051 -$415 -$16,782 $3,002 
               

Special Events 
Revenues / 
Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,975 $0 $0 $300 $370 $0 $0 $220 

Participation 0 0 0 1600 0 110 0 0 75 766 0 5000 629 
Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0 $1,599 $0 $0 $472 $472 $0 $1,861 $577 
               

TOTAL 
REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $68,555 $91,845 $81,122 $66,707 $45,952 $34,185 $820,269 

TOTAL 
EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $165,513 $148,556 $82,085 $83,067 $77,577 $78,905 $1,184,112 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $820,269        

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,184,112         

 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in expenditures is loan/bond payments 
and electricity for the areas except for our Golf Course.  All these costs are included in our Golf Course Expenditures. 



1 

PLANNING 
June 2023 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  July 10, 2023 

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   
Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA 
Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to 
Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D 
updates. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports. 

2023 
2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 4 0 1 3 5
Subdivison 3 2 1 3 0 0

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 3 2 1 2 3 4

Special Use 1 3 1 0 2 2
Annexation 1 0 0 0 0 0

Home Occupation 1 0 0 0 0 1
Historic District Commission

Commission Review 0 3 2 2 3 3
Staff Review 0 0 2 2 1 2

UDO Violations
Notice of Violations 4 10 0

Violations with Payments 1 0 0

Notice of Violations 
(Require Lot Cut) 0 0 0 0 38

Notice of Violations
(Total NOV's Issued) 119 125

Grass Cutting 
Payments to Contractor $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,600 

Unsightly Lot
Payments to Contractor $490.00 $4,600 

Tagged Vehicles 0 1 0 3 4

Illegal Signs Removed
56 102 222 156 333 125

Bags of Litter Picked Up
128 303 189 271 189 101

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

 
 
 
 
2022 
 

 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 0 3 4 0 6 2 3 1 5 3 0 27 2
Subdivison 0 0 2 2 0 4 0 1 1 0 1 0 11 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 2 4 3 5 2 1 3 2 2 3 1 28 2

Special Use 3 1 0 1 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 0 21 2
Annexation - - - - - - - - - - 1 1 2 0

Historic District Commission
Commission Review 1 1 1 0 2 0 3 1 0 1 1 2 13 1

Staff Review 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 0 0 2 0 13 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 0 0 0 85 79 47 64 55 28 4 362 45

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0 $4,565 $2,755 $3,675 $2,924 $1,435 784.00$  $16,138 $2,017

Tagged Vehicles 48 25 18 13 3 7 9 6 15 18 3 12 177 15

Illegal Signs Removed
56 92 102 202 88 127 266 79 96 45 29 36 1218 102

Bags of Litter Picked 
Up 202 165 222 286 198 400 326 422 332 247 114 208 3122 260

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
June 2023 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  July 10, 2023  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for June 2023 was 202, compared to 191 for June 2022. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $215,938 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $16,684 was recovered and property damaged was $47,747. 
 
Officers arrested 81 people and issued 217 citations during the month. There were 18 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 1 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2 0       5  
Rape 0       2  1  2 0 0                   5  
Robbery 2 1     4  1 5 4        17  
Aggravated Assault 15 17 26 16 20 17       111  
Breaking & Entering 22 16  12  18 29  24              121  
Larceny 112 88     110    114 160  148            732  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  10 16  12 9  9             66  
Arson 0 0 0  0  1  0          1  
TOTALS 161 134 170  165  226  202           1058  

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1 2 0 0 2 0 0 1  0  0  1 7  
Rape 1 2 1 3 1 1 1 1 2 0 3 3 19  
Robbery 1 2 6 3 5 3 8 2 2 2 5 2 41  
Aggravated Assault     11 12 20 31 27 20 20 19 25 16 13 13 227  
Breaking & Entering 25 19 18 26 19 28 24 16 24 17 10 10 236  
Larceny 92 86     95 118 94 117 106 127 103 162 102 112 1314  
Motor Vehicle Theft 6 6 7 5 15 21 9 7 9 14 15 6 120  
Arson 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2  

TOTALS 136 129 149 187 161 192 168 172 166 211 148 147 1966  

 

 
Revenue collected for June 2023 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

  130.00  
 Fingerprints   $      40.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $ 200.00  
             Total     $   370.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
June 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: July 10, 2023 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o  Currently implementing Capital Projects for the replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and 

at the NRPS. 
o 1 uncertified operator, but the Water Treatment Plant is fully staffed. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily flow for June is 

7.387-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.57-MGD. This puts the WRF at 60% capacity. 
o All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
o Working on implementation several Capital Improvements projects: Bar screen at New Hope L/S, Generator 

at Westbrook L/S, replacement of the underdrain system for Sand filter #2 and Upgrade of the Public Utilities 
Telemetry System Replace Transfer Switches at the Neuse Rive Pump Station and WTP, Replace Bulk Storage 
Tank at the WRF, Construct Bay 8 enclosure at the Compost Facility and Replace flow meters at the WTP.  

o  5 uncertified operators at the WRF, but the Water Reclamation Facility is fully staffed. 
o Ash St. Lift Station upgrade with MOPCO is in service. River Bend Lift Station construction has started. The 

River Bend lift station will replace Big and Little Cherry lift stations. 
Compost Facility 

• Eight hundred and sixty-six cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in June 2023. 
• 1 Compost operator with no Class B driver’s license, but the Compost Facility is fully staffed. 

 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 
 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.35 5.58 6.76       5.94 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64 7.87       8.57 
Compost 163 358 835 1509 888 866       632 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15 6.304 6.330 6.254 5.97 5.80 6.086 5.92 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56 7.85 7.34 7.05 6.99 6.48 6.67 7.62 
Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995 278 419 204 491 619 830 262 599 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 20.0 14.7
1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.7 3.6
30 22 23 24 31 16 24.3
12 12 18 16 24 10 15.3
12 3 5 3 2 3 4.7
3 5 8 5 4 8 5.5

49 61 63 33 44 39 48.2
0 0 0 61 91 82 39.0
0 15 69 75 276 102 89.5

249 207 265 245 279 213 243.0
79$       74$       76$       75$       86$       77$       77.8

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.03 1.030
0 38 0 37 71 56 33.8
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.626

5 4 5 5 4 0 3.8

9 8 23 17 32 20 18.2
70 65 105 145 113 110 101.3
49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 196.5 139.9
4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 0.40 1.9
0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 7.91 10.2
1 3 1 7 4 0 2.7

9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 37.1 31.0 4.5 5 11.9 6.4 13.5
2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.0 4.1 4.1 3.5 4 2.4 3.3
33 37 25 26 19 27 25 24 14 25 26 21 25.2
20 19 20 14 25 17 28 11 12 6 18 6 16.3
2 2 2 1 8 3 2 32 3 5 10 6 6.3
12 27 16 6 12 15 4 8 5 5 8 6 10.3

41 53 42 35 38 48 46 41 29 29 38 34 39.5
32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 90.6 53.3 96.8 38.5 0 0 51.2
0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 147.5 165.7 86.8 11 0 0 80.6

295 200 257 212 224 244 227 253 219 232 204 165 227.7
49$       48$       57$       52$       117$     141$     112$     111$     98$       93$       89$       70$       86.4

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 0.96 1.16 0.97 0.81 0.91 1.05 1.0
20 38 0 0 0 0 0 41 68 87 51 55 30.0
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.6

4 5 4 2 2 5 4 3 2 3 8 5 3.9

0 36 23 16 13 9 17 16 9 15 14 0 14.0
65 51 116 14 56 15 33 57 23 16 16 39 41.8
78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 133.9 209.2 152.3 138.4 69.2 63.4 138.6
0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.13 0.02 0.44 0 0.2 0.2 0.4
0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 9..43 31.60 17.38 20.04 3.08 0.00 12.4
6 2 2 2 3 3 1 7 3 1 4 1 2.9

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2023

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Total Work Orders
 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department
June 2023
Prepared by:  Jamie Stanley
Date Prepared: 10 July 2023

2022

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Waterproofed City Hall elevator and completed several electrical and plumbing repairs in multiple buildings, 
continued mowing routes and ROWs, and assisted with 2 Center Street Jams and 1 additional HUB event.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 21 after hour calls--total of 35 hours. Completed 93 work orders. Cleared sewer 
outfall behind mall, and completed sewer easement at Peachtree St. 

Streets & Stormwater: Poured a combined 163 Sq Yds of concrete on two jobs, one at George St. and Chestnut St., and one at 116 
N. Center St. Repaired 20 utility cuts totaling 155.3 Sq. Yds. of Asphalt. Repaired 3 stormwater catch basins and raised 4 
stormwater manholes. Jet rodded and cleaned 700 LF of stormwater pipe.  Cleared 13 downed trees in Roadways and cut 
overegrown vegetation at 5 locations totaling 3,274 LF.  Crews swept 195.5 curb miles of streets.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
June 2023 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 7/05/23 
 

● Total hotel revenue generated in May was $2,475,292 which is up 9.6% YOY. June revenue not yet released. 

● The top landing page behind the home page was “50-things-to-do-in-wayne-county" with 261 

sessions. Search terms that moved up in ranking were, “downtown Goldsboro nc”, restaurants in Goldsboro 

nc” and “best bbq in North Carolina”, which moved up 13 positions! ( from 47 to 34) 

● Sessions increased 33% compared to the previous month, and 9% YoY, compared to May 2022. June 2023 

numbers, not yet available.  

● Our full-page ad can now be seen in the July issue of Our State Magazine. 

● Worked with Visit NC to coordinate a visit to Grady’s BBQ for Australian Journalist Alexis Buxton-Collins 

with Explore. 

● Conference call with Drew Majors from TGC Group – discussed potential extended stay hotel. 

● Hosted meeting with the Marketing and Publicity Director for SJAFB to discuss Air Show 

● Met with Ashlin Glatthar to discuss WOW Economic Impact Report and After-Action Report 

● Zoom call with Phenom Sports and hotels. 

● Attended Social Media training provided by the City. 

  
             City Occupancy Tax Collections 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 $88,849 $86,324  $944,161 $85,832 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $52,059 $71,272 $83,367 $84,805 $91,505 $939,388 $78,282 

               

               

               
 
 


	Agenda 07-17-23
	ws Item a1 Agency Req PP-United Way
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	ws item a2  - Rec2Council
	Item M - AAP Agenda Item
	ws item d - 230717 Fiscal Policy and Strategic Plan Memo
	ws item e - Public Art Agenda Memo 7.17.23
	Item A1 - Minutes 06-20-23
	Item A2 - Special Meeting Minutes 7-6-23
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, held a Special Meeting called by Mayor Ham to update Council on the Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grant Initiatives and conduct a Visioning Session, held in the Large Conference Room, City Hal...
	UCall to Order.U  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 11:30 a.m.
	URoll Call.
	Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding
	Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews
	Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones (arrived at 11:31 a.m.)
	Councilwoman Brandi Matthews

	Item A2-1 - Exhibit A West Oak Visioning.City Council.07.05
	Item A2-2 - Exhibit B City Council West Oak Visioning Survey Results
	Item C - Annual National Night Out 2023
	Item D - Goldsboro_Wayne Purple Heart Proclamation  2023
	Item E - Z-10-23
	Item F - SU-5-23
	Item G - SU-8-23
	Item H - SU-10-23
	Item I - SU-11-23
	Item J - SU-12-23
	Item K - Social District memo
	Item K2 - revised sd boundary
	Item K3 - Proposed Social District Ordinance rev.LG
	Item L - Grant Software
	Item N - Consent Agenda Item - Valve Truck Chassis Vendor Change
	Item O1 - Ch 32
	Item O2 - Code Update CH 32 - May 2023
	Item P1 - Ch 33
	Item P2 - Code Update CH 33
	Item Q1 - Ch 53
	Item Q2 - Code Update Chapter 53
	Item R - Monthly Reports - June
	Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page
	Community Relations and Development Monthly Report - june 2023
	Community Relations and Development Monthly Report Addendum - June 2023
	ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT - JUNE 2023
	Fire - June Monthly Report
	HR - MonthlyRpt_June
	P&RJune Monthly Report 2023 FLB
	Public Utilities Department Monthly Report - Copy - June 2023
	PW Council Report- 2023 06
	Finance2 - Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-06 June_1.pdf
	Grants 2023-06 June





